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This 2015 Annual Report is about policies, strategies and performance 

of the SEC. We aim to supervise and develop the Thai capital market to 

become the essential mechanism driving sustainable economy and 

determined to perform that duty with knowledge, responsibilities and 

governance. This report applies part of the Global Reporting Initiatives 

Guideline (GRI) – G4 as appropriate, in order that the contents contain 

important information in accordance with international standards and 

beneficial to the readers.

ECOSYSTEM

The SEC strives to develop the capital market ecosystem in all areas 

through insightful understanding of businesses and operating 

environments, as well as incorporating the views from stakeholders. 

Capital market development must achieve sustainability, producing 

economic stability and wellbeing for the people.
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SEC 2015 
A YEAR IN REVIEW

Market Oversight

Improvements to Operations

2015 was notable year for new initiatives and groundwork for 

setting up the 3-year SEC Strategic Plan to develop the capital 

market ecosystem. Central to this, the SEC underlined the 

importance of collaboration based on keen understanding of 

the business environment and the needs of all stakeholders. 

We aim for the capital market to achieve sustainable growth 

that is beneficial to the nation’s economy and the well-being 

of the people.

The SEC’s work in 2015 emphasized the capital market’s  

accessibility to accommodate the desire for more varied fund 

mobilization and investments, raising the market’s ability to 

compete internationally, and strengthening stakeholders’ trust 

in the market. The SEC implemented numerous developmental 

and supervisory work during the year such as:

Market Development
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1.1 Creation of channels for SMEs and startups to 

access the capital market efficiently and at reasonable 

cost. A considerable number of these companies have strong 

potential, some are also in the nation’s strategic sectors.  

Regulations were enacted to support the ability to raise funds 

online through equity crowdfunding.

1.2 Introduction of new products and services to increase 

the Thai capital market’s attractiveness to foreign investors. 

 1.2.1 Deregulation rules for the domestic asset  

management industry to offer a wider range of products 

as their international counterparts and provide more 

choices for the investor. Among rules relaxed, retail funds 

no longer have weighting restrictions applicable to investments 

in non-investment grade or unrated fixed income instruments, 

although they must have higher portfolio diversification.  

Accredited investor funds which are not meant for retail  

2.1 Analysis conducted to spot vulnerabilities of the 

capital market’s structure which could be loopholes 

for exploitation or misconduct. Entire flow examined from  

listing to regulatory enforcement. Measures formulated to  

handle and prevent misconduct in the future, in consultation with  

stakeholders and securities associations, for final proposal to 

the SEC Board and eventual inclusion in the 3-year strategic 

plan.

To better respond to stakeholders’ needs and set the  

foundations for a sustainable organization, the SEC  

implemented measures such as: 

3.1 Organizational restructuring to enable each function 

line to see an entire work flow (end-to-end), hence respond 

more effectively to relevant stakeholders’ needs. 

3.2 Establishment of the SEC’s vision, mission and  

values along with implementation of programs to build deeper 

investors may invest in a greater range of products. 

 1.2.2 Facilitation and encouragement of the offering 

of foreign products, particularly from the Greater Mekong 

Subregion (GMS) countries. Firstly, framework was developed  

to facilitate creation of depositary receipts (DR) with GMS  

securities as the underlying to help boost liquidity of GMS stock 

markets. Secondly, regulations were revised to enable retail 

funds to invest in GMS countries without portfolio weighting 

restrictions. Currently, regulations are in place to facilitate all 

types of foreign and GMS products. Risk disclosure is required 

to be included in the securities offer filing to sufficiently help 

potential investors gauge risk before deciding. Thirdly, we  

established channels for Thai and GMS financial products to be 

offered in major financial markets by entering the Statement of  

Understanding (SOU) with Australia, New Zealand, the  

Philippines, Japan and South Korea in the APEC Asia Region 

3. Improvements to Operations 

2.2 Tightening of rules covering share issuance by listed 

companies via Private Placement to prevent creation of 

unfair treatment or damage to shareholders. Revising 

regulations took into consideration the balance between the 

potential additional cost burden on listed companies and the 

need to improve fairness in the market.

2.3  Strengthening of the handling of complaints and 

misconduct (case management) by revising the approach 

and procedures involved to increase effectiveness.

understanding and foster a culture that nurtures those ideals 

among staff of all levels.  Work must be accompanied by “open” 

to diverse views from all departments with a “collaborative” 

spirit.  The SEC’s staff must also be “insightful” and possess 

“integrity.”  These are key ingredients to produce work that  

genuinely benefits the country and its people, enacting  

regulations that are effective, enforceable, and not an  

unnecessary burden. 

Funds Passport (ARFP) scheme. In Europe, we pushed for 

Thai unit trusts to be offered in Europe through the Alternative 

Investment Fund Managers Directive (AIFMD). In addition, many 

bilateral agreements were made with many nations. Fourthly, the 

SEC launched new regulations to create infrastructure trusts to 

invest in Thai or regional projects. The fifth area of development 

was the encouragement of GMS countries to use Thailand as 

a market to mobilize funds, through the launch of regulations 

facilitating such companies to go public for the first time in 

Thailand through a primary listing. Companies listed elsewhere 

were also encouraged to seek a secondary listing here.

1.3 Revisions to guidelines to provide funds with greater 

flexibility on their investments. This is in line with international 

practices and the direction of the market, thereby increasing 

the competitiveness of asset management companies and  

allow for sustainable growth. Amendments were made to funds’ 

guidelines on investible assets, provident fund investments, 

and increased portfolio diversification.

1.4 Establishment of proper foundations for the  

sustainable growth of  l isted companies and  

intermediaries by launching the anti-corruption progress 

indicator of listed companies, securities companies and  

asset management companies. The scores show their level of 

commitment on anti-corruption. 13 listed companies achieved 

the highest attainable level of five in the 2015 assessment,  

illustrating their ability to embed anti-corruption measures 

widely across their operations to even include supply chains.

1. Market Development

2.Market Oversight



BUILDING EFFECTIVE
CAPITAL MARKET
ECOSYSTEM
The SEC’s development of the capital market 

ecosystem builds on insightful understanding of 

businesses and the operating environment, 

as well as being genuinely receptive to the views 

from stakeholders. 
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MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRMAN

 The Thai capital market faced numerous challenges 

in 2015 from both domestic and global factors. The global 

economic recovery was fragile and China’s slowdown was  

an ever-present concern. Adding more challenges were  

falling oil prices and rising US interest rates. Thailand itself  

struggled to achieve its target economic growth and also jolted 

with an unusual bomb incident in downtown Bangkok. 

 The Thai capital market demonstrated resilience in the 

midst of such conditions, owing to steady foundations. The 

SEC’s commitment in performing our role helped contribute  

to this strength. It is our duty to provide oversight of the  

market to ensure it has structural stability, effective risk  

management practices, good governance, and run by 

qualified businesses and practitioners. Investors must also be  

adequately protected against unfair exploitation.

 The SEC Board plays an important role in establishing  

the direction and focus for the organization. It actively  

contributes ideas and proposals to the SEC Office to  

formulate the three-year Strategic Plan (2016-2018).  

The priorit ies are centered on addressing structural  

problems to strengthen the market’s integrity, efficiency, and  

competitiveness. The Thai capital market must not only be 

attractive, but also entrusted by the global community. The 

strategic plan also tries to encourage businesses and the  

public to fully access and uti l ize the capital market.  

Concurrently, the SEC will be working on strengthening itself 



9ANNUAL REPORT 2015
THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

(Mr. Voravidh Champeeratana)
Chairman
Securities and Exchange Commission, Thailand 

The Thai capital market 
demonstrated resilience in 
the midst of such conditions, 
owing to steady foundations.

to be an organization that can successfully achieve its vision 

and mission.

 We continually emphasize good corporate governance  

within the organization to act as a role model for participants  

in the capital market by embedding GRC (Integrated  

Governance, Risk and Compliance). Such improvements 

include strengthening the nomination of qualified candidates  

for the expert members to the SEC Board and the Capital 

Market Supervisory Board by using a skills matrix to identify  

the needed skills. The resulting board of directors will be  

wel l-rounded and col lectively possess the qual it ies  

appropriate for the work of the organization. Furthermore, 

by also applying new measures to evaluate the organization’s 

performance from a qualitative perspective, we increase  

the motivation to steer the SEC’s operations along principles 

of good governance in the public sector and international 

standards.

 A recent notable achievement was the merger of  

Agricultural Futures Exchange of Thailand (AFET) into the 

Thailand Futures Exchange (TFEX), a policy decision through 

Cabinet resolution late 2015. The market will be more robust 

as standards for agricultural futures and its intermediaries will 

be raised to international levels. This will provide better asset 

protection for participants, reliable settlement and delivery. 

Transition was smooth with the preparations to relocate AFET 

staff to continue their work at TFEX. Meanwhile, the authorities 

at the Office of the Agricultural Futures Trading Commission 

were welcomed into the SEC workforce as their management 

and staff brings valuable expertise and experience. 

 As we approach 2016, the SEC is carefully examining 

what lies ahead. We are constantly monitoring various factors 

and changes to gauge what risks and impact they will bring. 

Operations will be set accordingly, guided by the principles of 

good governance and full commitment to achieve our aims.
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 Sustainable development of the capital market requires 

in-depth knowledge and understanding of its ecosystem.  

Only with such insights can one identify the actual source of 

problems and vulnerabilities, and subsequently the formulation 

of effective solutions to address them. This will strengthen the 

market’s capacity and integrity, allowing all participants to fully 

utilize the capital market.

 Upon taking up the role of Secretary-General, the SEC 

emphasized observation of the entire workings of the capital 

market to spot areas of vulnerability or gaps that may hinder 

this ecosystem.  Solutions were explored methodically through 

stakeholder engagements and consultations with the SEC 

Board, subsequently leading to the enactment of many new 

measures.

 First and foremost, supervisory mechanisms must achieve 

balance.  The capital market itself should also deploy tools to 

supplement the efforts of need-based rules and regulations.  The 

SEC has been revising our approach on many issues, whether 

it is the encouragement of information disclosure, dissemination  

of investor knowledge, or the sharing of our visions with relevant 

stakeholders.  Through keener understanding of our policy 

objectives for the capital market, we hope to draw the support 

and cooperation from all stakeholders.

 To ensure SEC regulations are practical and generate highest 

benefits to all stakeholders alike, we revised the public hearing  

process to bring out the genuine voices of stakeholders.  

Furthermore, when new ideas emerge, we will engage  

stakeholders early to cultivate better understanding of the 

SEC’s future direction. Clear guidance prescribes that sufficient 

time is allotted to collect the necessary feedback.  Supporting 

documentation must also be easy to digest.

 Secondly, a capital market must be trustworthy where all 

facets of the market uphold good corporate governance in 

actual practice (CG in Substance).  At the same time, effective 

investor protection and regulatory enforcement are vital.  The  

SEC’s work has been targeting many such areas:  encouragement  

A capital market 
must be  
trustworthy 
where all facets 
of the market  
uphold good  
corporate  
governance in 
actual practice.

MESSAGE FROM 
THE SECRETARY-GENERAL
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of corporate social responsibility among listed companies and 

businesses, anti-corruption, improvement of case management 

handling, and tightening of guidelines for share issues through 

private placements to prevent unfair practices.

 A third essential feature is for the capital market to be able 

to compete with foreign competition.  This includes being ready 

for further easing of cross-border capital controls as the Bank 

of Thailand’s policy direction now aims at increasingly allowing 

Thais to invest abroad directly.  As part of preparations, the SEC 

made it a strong priority to raise Thai intermediaries’ capabilities 

in offering a wider range of products and services, including the 

liberalization of related rules and regulations. Asset management 

companies were granted more flexibility to progress in tandem.  

The Thai capital market should ultimately offer a wide variety 

of products and services, competing on a level playing field as 

its international counterparts.  For the investor, that means an 

abundance of choices.

 To additionally secure the Thai capital market’s recognition 

on the world stage, the SEC has been working closely with  

financial authorities such as the Bank of Thailand and the  

Office of the Insurance Commission.  Preparations are underway 

as we are eagerly anticipate a review by the World Bank and 

International Monetary Fund’s Financial Sector Assessment 

Program (FSAP) which is scheduled for mid-2018 to early 2019.

 The fourth area of priority is to stay on par with global trends, 

being prepared and able to benefit as the world modernizes.  

Over the previous year, Financial Technology or “FinTech” has 

evolved considerably with the potential to transform financial 

services and reshape businesses.  The SEC is closely gauging  

these changes and revising regulations to accommodate as 

needed.  One measure of success would be a regulatory  

framework that accommodates equity crowdfunding, making 

small businesses and startups able to tap long-term capital 

directly, cost-effectively, and competitively.

 Simultaneously, we are equally keen on improving the 

SEC’s own internal ecosystem. An organizational restructuring 

has given each function line the visibility of entire work flows.  

Such clarity should increase the quality of development and  

supervisory work. New vision, mission, and values not only 

sharpen the way SEC staff works as a team, but also lays the 

foundations for a learning organization that has sustainable 

growth.  Programs are regularly implemented to instill these 

corporate values.

 Internal improvements also guide how we carry out work, 

one of which is the application of our “Toolkit” program, 

a method of systematically checking the thoroughness of  

decisions and work flows of each job undertaken. Policies 

and guidelines for the supervision and development of the 

capital market will be better targeted, ultimately benefiting  

stakeholders and the public.

 As we set our sights for the future, the SEC Strategic Plan 

2016-18 continues to emphasize the fundamentals and balance 

of the capital market ecosystem. Openness to feedback and 

recommendations and incorporating stakeholders’ ideas into 

discussions will strengthen trust, efficiency, and competiveness 

of both the market and its players. Regulations will be practical, 

thoroughly tested, and embraced by informed participants from 

all corners.  Regulations will also sync in harmony with other 

mechanisms in a collaborative manner.  All stakeholders can 

progress forward together while the wider public can access 

and benefit from the capital market. Our sights for the future 

are guided by this vision:

“The SEC strives to enhance the benefits and 

well-being of people through being a trustworthy and 

proactive organization, collaborating with all 

stakeholders to build a sustainable capital market.”

(Mr. Rapee Sucharitakul)

Secretary-General

Securities and Exchange Commission, Thailand
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POLICY AND OVERVIEW 
OF OPERATIONS

 2015 marks the year the SEC laid the foundations to further  

develop the ecosystem of the capital market by adopting  

multiple approaches to promote sustainability of the Thai capital 

market.

Values, Organizational Restructuring, and  
Revision to Work Processes

 To create a workforce driven by the same clear goals, 

possessing genuine understanding of the purpose and role of 

the SEC, the organization’s mission, vision and values received  

a fresh update in 2015. The SEC entered a new stage  

characterized by “Open, Insightful, Collaborative, Integrity” 

which began with an organizational restructuring to regroup 

function lines. The revision let work be handled from end-to-

end which strengthens the staff’s understanding of the entire 

process, improving response to stakeholders’ needs. 

 We revised our operations to obtain a more inclusive 

view of all stakeholders, helping us gain deeper insights into 

the actual problem and the root causes. Revisions were made 

to both work flows and related communications. 

 As part of the work flow revision, the SEC improved  

procedures for conducting public hearings to ensure that 

regulations enacted are indeed effective and embraced by all,  

while mitigating unintended outcomes. Stakeholder analysis  

helped define relevant groups more clearly. We engaged  

stakeholders early when seeking feedback on new ideas.  

Multiple channels and methods were used to suit intended 

audience; documentation designed for easier understanding. 

Objectives were stated clearly. Once regulations were drafted, 

steps were taken to draw in feedback again. Gathering of 

feedback was allotted a longer period, allowing sufficient time 

to digest the issues thoroughly. Views were also subsequently 

consolidated for display on the SEC website.

 Improving communications was another target area. 

While management executives and staff typically engage  

stakeholders on different occasions, we pooled our  

knowledge through regularly scheduled meetings as well as 

ad-hoc sessions where there were chances to openly exchange 

opinions. Final views and proposals were also fed into the SEC’s 

strategic plans.

Creating Stability and Confidence in the  
System
 

 In formulating the SEC’s business plan, we took into  

consideration global trends and other ecosystems to  

understand prevailing conditions and derive the proper  

approach to our work. Critical are factors that could affect  

the stabi l i ty and confidence in the system such as  

(1) volatility of capital flows resulting from uneven economic  

recovery of various nations and pursuit of different monetary 

policies, geopolitical risks in certain regions, (2) opportunities 

created by technological advances is inevitably accompanied 

by threats from cybercrime.  

 In response to aforementioned threats, the SEC aims 

to strengthen market stability and resilience. We (1) revised 

the capital requirements for securities companies and asset  

management companies to cope with market volatility,  

(2) strengthened guidelines on IT security for businesses to 
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prevent cybercrime and (3) updated test scenarios and factors 

to test resilience against systemic risks and conducted stress 

tests. Results indicated that no businesses face such problems.

 The bomb blast at the Rachaprasong Intersection in 

downtown Bangkok in 2015 subjected the system to an actual 

crisis situation. Sentiment was further compounded by the 

sharp drop in China’s stock market. Both events took place 

in close proximity in the month of August and had potential to 

adversely affect the Thai economy and capital market, especially 

psychologically. Sufficient readiness and collaboration from all 

parties kept the Thai capital market composure’s intact. The 

SET and securities companies continued to operate normally 

and the overall market was not adversely affected.

Up to Date, Prepared, and Ready to  
leverage Technology

 Huge advances in technology bring opportunities and 

new channels to offer financial services (Financial Technology 

or FinTech). New players emerge using technology to create 

new financial products and services to cater to a wider range 

of customers, even enabling previously unserved customers to 

access market-cost capital swiftly.

 The SEC has been embracing FinTech to help improve  

financial inclusion for those who cannot yet tap the capital  

market. After considerable preparation, the SEC issued  

guidelines to support fundraising online or equity crowdfunding. 

This will enable small companies or startups to obtain affordable 

cost long term capital for the first time and an ability to compete. 

With many operators expressing interest in becoming funding 

portals, services may debut in 2017.

 Furthermore, the SEC has been also examining the  

potential use of FinTech to transform products and services, 

including supervision of the capital market. Technology could 

provide an alternative to a human operator, for instance, letting 

a computer application construct an investment portfolio  

automatically. Blockchain Technology, which is secure,  

inexpensive, and does not require an intermediary. It has the 

capability to transform stock market activities such as settlement 

and delivery. Big Data Analytics is another phenomenon which 

could be used to analyze securities trading patterns.

 The SEC organized the FinTech Forum, bringing together 

FinTech startups to share their experiences. The venue also 

drew those interested in setting up a business to consult with 

the SEC.

 Apart from the advantages of FinTech, the SEC has 

been also monitoring the effects such as disintermediation, as  

traditional financial services are increasingly circumvented. They 

will need to adapt or move ahead of the game. As mentioned, 

cybercrime can threaten market stability. Investors themselves, 

need to be thoroughly aware of the pros and cons of new  

services created by FinTech. The SEC will strive to build  

readiness in all segments of the capital market.

Improving linkages Between Capital  
Markets 
 

 In another notable global trend, countr ies are  

increasingly highlighting the strength of their capital market,  

creating linkages, and forming alliances to establish common  
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rules and facilitate product distribution among member countries.

 The Thai capital market and its business participants 

need to demonstrate their strengths to attract global investors,  

particularly capturing the opportunity to serve as a gateway to 

the Greater Mekong Subregion (GMS). By being a so-called 

GMS Connector, Thailand could be a fund mobilizing hub offering  

quality GMS financial products to international investors.

 The SEC has been pushing forwards on many fronts 

such as encouraging and creating channels for the issuing of 

foreign financial products, especially from GMS countries, in the 

Thai capital market. We also created frameworks to support 

depositary receipts (DR) with GMS securities as the underlying, 

helping improve the liquidity of GMS stock markets.

 Furthermore, the SEC revised guidelines to permit retail 

funds to invest in GMS countries without portfolio weighting 

restrictions. Emphasis will gravitate towards good disclosure 

of risk information in the filing application, providing investors 

with sufficient data to make a suitable investment decision. 

 The SEC also issued guidelines for the establishment 

of Infrastructure Trusts to raise funds for Thai and regional  

infrastructure projects, particularly assisting GMS companies to 

mobilize funds. Foreign companies are now permitted to seek a 

primary listing on the Stock Exchange of Thailand. Furthermore, 

foreign listed companies can issue a secondary listing here.

 The SEC was also promoting foreign investment in Thai 

unit trusts by recently entering a Statement of Understanding 

(SOU) with Australia, New Zealand, the Philippines, Japan and 

South Korea in the APEC Asia Region Funds Passport (APEC 

ARFP) scheme. The scheme assisted the distribution of each 

other’s fund products. We also encouraged fund distribution 

in Europe under the Alternative Investment Fund Managers 

Directive (AIFMD) as well.

Increasing Competitiveness to  
International Standards

 Transparency and integrity are essential qualities to 

draw international investors and issuers to the Thai capital 

market. Endorsement by a respectable body would increase  

confidence that the Thai capital market is on par with  

international standards.

 The Thai financial sector is therefore preparing to be  

assessed by the Financial Sector Assessment Program (FSAP) 

in the latter half of 2018 to early 2019, a program jointly  

administered by the World Bank and the International Monetary 

Fund. Similarly, the effectiveness of the SEC’s supervision  

of the capital market will be assessed by International  

Organization of Securities Commissions (“IOSCO”) while the 

quality of settlement processes would be jointly reviewed by 

the Bank for International Settlements and IOSCO.

Competitiveness and Resilience of the  
Securities Businesses 

 One contributing factor to the Thai capital market’s growth 

and sustainability is the participants’ growing competitiveness.

 To increase the caliber of asset management companies 

and maintain industry growth, the SEC revised regulations  

regarding investments by funds with the intention of  

strengthening the asset management business’ ecosystem.  
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We are now allowing funds greater flexibility to invest, in  

alignment with international norms and the market’s direction. 

Yet, investors will receive the same level of protection. Funds 

receive greater flexibility regarding investible assets. Guidelines 

are now more concept-based, prescribing asset classes and 

characteristics of securities rather than specifying actual types  

of instruments. Funds also have a broader discretion  

regarding investments and risk exposures. For instance, a retail 

fund may invest in an infrastructure fund not listed on the SET 

despite the target fund not originally issued to retail investors.  

Investment is permitted within allowed limits, whereas old 

regulation restricted investments to just infrastructure funds 

that listed in SET or offered to retail investors.

 Deregulation was also extended to provident funds. 

The investment limit in property funds or infrastructure funds  

was doubled from 15% to 30% of net asset value when  

aggregated with alternative investments such as commodities. 

Other flexibilities allowed provident funds to design portfolios 

as sector funds and impose any necessary investment limits at 

the individual member level instead. This also provided greater  

selection for provident fund members as we increase the  

market’s sophistication and align with international norms. We  

also prescribed greater investment diversification, revised product  

limits for certain investments to reflect market conditions and 

removed product limits for investments by mutual funds.

 Regulations for investments in derivatives were also  

revised in line with international norms, such as calculations of 

investment limits for derivatives and classification of fund types 

to better illustrate the risk exposure. Emphasis will now be on  

net exposure rather than value of investment in these  

derivatives. Investment limits in various derivatives were also 

revised to better suit fund types which vary in risk.

 Another important milestone in 2015 was the merger of 

Agricultural Futures Exchange of Thailand (AFET) and Thailand 

Futures Exchange (TFEX) to raise efficiency and take benefit 

through economies of scale. A single bourse also makes it easier 

for investors. The system should become more robust as we  

lift agricultural futures trading standards and supervision of  

business participants to international levels, thereby  

strengthening confidence in custody, settlement, and delivery.

Development of listed Companies

 Listed companies play an integral role in the economy, 

creating jobs and improving income distribution. The SEC is 

supportive of the advancement and sustainable growth of listed 

companies. We encourage companies to possess corporate  

governance in substance, social responsibility, and adopt  

anti-corruption practices. Listed companies can be role models 

for other companies to aspire to.

 A satisfactory achievement in 2015 was the continued 

solid improvement in the results of the Anti-corruption Progress  

Indicator for listed companies (for more details, refer to  

“Anti-corruption in the Thai Capital Market”).

 The SEC and related authorities are teaming up to develop 

an Integrated Governance Framework to assist companies to 

blend corporate governance into their operations in a practical 

manner. Courses and seminars have been updated to equip 

company directors on leadership roles and creation of effective 

boards. Furthermore, in collaboration with the Thai Institute of 
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1. Twenty-three Thai listed companies were among the TOP50 

ASEAN CG Scorecard achievers at the ASEAN Corporate Governance  

Conference and Awards held in the Philippines. Thailand had the  

largest number of listed companies awarded with such recognition, 

two of which on the TOP5 ranking. 

2. The SEC and capital market organizations co-hosted the 2015 

OECD – Asian Roundtable on Corporate Governance for participating 

decision makers and delegates from public and private sectors, both 

local and international.

1

2

Directors and the Federation of Accounting Professions, we are 

revising training courses to enhance the quality of independent  

directors.

 The SEC also puts considerable emphasis on the quality 

of financial reporting by listed companies since information is 

valuable to investors. Realizing that a good ecosystem hinges 

on quality financial reporting, the SEC and the Federation of 

Accounting Professions has jointly developed courses for 

practitioners that prepare financial accounts and reports. We 

also emphasized the importance of financial reporting to the 

management of listed companies through various means to 

build understanding on this matter.

 The quality of Thai l isted companies is gaining  

recognition on the international stage with commendable  

rankings at the recent ASEAN Corporate Governance  

Conference and Awards held in the Philippines. Among the 50 

companies with the highest ASEAN CG Scorecard points, 23 

were Thai listed companies; two were in the top five.

 The Organization for Economic Co-operation and  

Development (OECD)’s granted the honor for Thailand to host 

the OECD - Asian Roundtable on Corporate Governance  

conference for 2015. The forum’s agenda included  

strengthening corporate governance in the region, discussion  

of challenges and shortcomings, as well as sharing  

perspectives through case studies. The forum drew 

more than 150 participants consisting of management,  

representatives from government agencies and the private 

sector, both domestic and foreign. The forum also marked 

the launch of the OECD’s new “Principles of Corporate  

Governance” which was freshly updated to reflect the 

changed business environment and global capital markets. It 

will serve as an important reference for the development and  

assessment of corporate governance worldwide.
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Score Description

1 - Committed

2 - Declared

3 - Established

4 - Certified

5 - Extended

Indicating commitment of top executives and the organization with board of directors’  

resolution and policy not to involve with corruption.

Indicating determination by means of declaration to join Collective Action Coalition (CAC) 

Project by Thai private enterprises. 

Indicating policy to oppose bribing government officials and those related to corruption as 

well as policy to communicate and educate employees regarding anti-corruption policy 

and practices.

 -  3A : Established by Declaration of Intent

 -  3B : Established by Internal Commitment and Policy

Indicating an implementation audited by audit committee or SEC-approved auditor,  

a certification by CAC or an audit by independent external organizations.

Indicating anti-corruption policy which extends to business partners, consultants,  

intermediaries and business representatives.

Anti-corruption in the Thai Capital Market 

 The SEC’s work prescribed by the Sustainability  

Development Roadmap for listed companies has been  

encouraging listed companies, since 2014, to operate their 

business with social responsibility and good governance. 

Policy direction also called for listed companies to be genuinely  

committed to fight corruption, which could result in listed  

companies being viewed as change agents to inspire  

businesses in other sectors to stand up against corruption.

 The SEC required listed companies to announce their 

anti-corruption policy and measures in the annual registration  

statement (form 56-1) document filing and information  

disclosure prescribed by the application for an offer for sale  

of shares (form 69-1) as of 1 January 2014 onwards. We  

encouraged securities and derivatives companies to establish 

an anti-corruption policy and prescribe measures as well. 

 To aid investors and the public interested in this matter,  

the SEC supported the Thaipat Institute’s creation of the  

Anti-corruption Progress Indicator which classifies the  

effectiveness of an organization’s anti-corruption measures into 

five levels. Joining the Private Sector Collective Action Coalition 

Against Corruption will be positively viewed in the assessment 

as well.
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 The Thaipat Institute reviewed listed companies in 2014 

and 2015, and included market intermediaries in 2015, too. 

The latest results completed on 2 December 2015 revealed 

that most listed companies and intermediaries progressed 

substantially in their preparations to prevent corruption in  

organizations. The review of 583 listed companies showed 

that 542 companies (92.97%) attained a level of 1 or higher, 

compared with 344 in 2014 (60.70%), an improvement of 198 

companies (32.27%). Among these figures, 13 companies  

(2.23%) achieved the highest level of 5. The review of 71 

intermediaries (included eight listed companies) found that 

66 companies (92.97%) had a level of 1 or higher while 29 

companies (40.85%) achieved a level of 4. Results of the  

Anti-corruption Progress Indicator is available at www.sec.or.th 

and www.cgthailand.org. 

 In addition to our aforementioned work on anti-corruption, 

the SEC collaborated with other partners on many important 

issues:

 (1) Thai Investors Association:  Train rights-protection 

volunteers on questioning techniques to effectively probe  

companies about their anti-corruption measures at annual 

general shareholder meetings. The program has been running 

since 2014.

 (2) Institutional investors through collaborative work 

with their respective associations such as the Association  

of Thai Securities Companies and the Association of 

Investment Management Companies: Monitor and probe 

listed companies on their anti-corruption efforts and measures 

at annual general shareholder meetings; a program running 

since 2014 as well.

 (3) The securities companies and derivative  

businesses:  Request that analytical reports also disclose the 

listed company’s Anti-corruption Progress Indicator score. 

Furthermore, investment advisors were also encouraged to 

furnish this information to help investors make better decisions.

 (4) Asset management companies: Seek cooperation 

in disclosing their own Anti-corruption Progress Indicator score 

in fund fact sheets and disclosure reports for funds under 

management.

 (5) Anti-corruption Organization of Thailand (ACT): 

Grant financial support for their launch of a new program  

entitled ACT Good which aims to promote a visual symbol to 

raise anti-corruption awareness widely among consumers. 

Qualified companies will be eligible to display this ACT Good 

logo on their products.
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Develop Competent Investors and Equip 
the General Public with Skills in Utilizing 
the Capital Market for Financial Planning

 The general public should have the opportunity to  

access the capital market, armed with knowledge and ability  

to benefit from investing in it to achieve sufficient well-being 

in life.

 The SEC emphasizes the importance of providing  

investors with the ability to stand up for their rights and  

protect themselves. We are currently working on disseminating  

knowledge to investors on the topics of (1) investors’ rights 

(2) bondholders’ rights (3) unitholders’ rights (4) intermediaries 

customers’ rights, all of which will encourage retail investors 

to exert their rights.

 The SEC pressed for changes to the Provident Fund 

Act, observing the need to prepare for our aging society and 

for citizens to have sufficient financial well-being. Revisions to 

the Act will create needed adjustment to the ecosystem as 

members currently tend to “save little, save temporarily, and 

save ineffectively.” To encourage members to “save more, 

save continuously, and save competently,” the ACT is now  

permitt ing them to increase their employee savings  

contribution rate beyond the employer’s contribution rate.  

Alternatively, they could also transfer their balance from 

a provident fund to a RMF to maintain continuity for their  

investment. If an employee does not select an investment 

choice, the provident fund committee may pick one that is suited 

for that employee, such as progressively reducing the member 

portfolio’s investment risk as the employee ages (Life Path).

 Other programs were also being administered to boost 

financial literacy to enable citizens to achieve financial security  

and prepare for retirement by building awareness of the  

importance of financial planning. The Financial Literacy in 

Workplace program equipped the working-age segment of 

the population with skills on financial discipline and financial  

planning. Training was provided to 131 companies. In addition, 

we are collaborating with the Stock Exchange of Thailand to 

set up ways to increase financial literacy regarding financial 

planning and investing for retirement to be targeted at the 

provident fund segment. The Stock Exchange of Thailand will 

launch these programs in 2016.

 We also conduct activities promoting financial literacy 

at various events. For example, at Money Expo 2015, our 

booth showcased the theme “Creating a Beautiful Life” where 

we provided knowledge-building activities on savings and  

investments to the public. Similarly, the “SEC Open Space” 

booth at the SET in the City 2015 event was a chance to inspire 

people regarding Life Path, personal financial planning, and 

savings to achieve personal goals.

1.The SEC management attended the opening ceremony of Money 

Expo 2015 to welcome the public to learn more about saving and 

investment possibilities at the SEC exhibition booth under the theme, 

“Creating a Beautiful Life.”      

2. SET in the City 2015 visitors gathered in at the SEC booth to  

participate in quiz games and edutainment activities under the theme, 

“SEC Open Space,” which aimed to inspire the public to explore financial 

and life planning in pursuit of personal goals.

1

2
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Fraud Supervision and Regulatory  
Enforcement  

 An efficient, transparent, and fair capital market  

require its participants to show responsibility and integrity, 

providing services of high quality and in compliance with rules 

and regulations. Supervision and regulatory enforcement must 

be firm and wrongdoing prosecuted promptly with penalties 

to match. The SEC has strengthened relevant operations  

and regulations, including strict pursuit of fraudulent cases  

and enforcement of the law.

 Revisions to Work Procedures and Regulations

	 •	 Tightening of share issuance through Private 

Placement (PP) by listed companies to prevent unfair 

treatment and damage to existing shareholders. While fully 

aware the tightening of procedures might add costs to listed 

companies, it was balanced by extra investor protection.

 •	 Tightening	 of	 the	 qualifications	 of	 non-listed	

companies seeking to issue a Public Offering (PO). We are 

additionally requiring that such companies have no prior record 

of serious misconduct within the last five years, before seeking 

approval for the securities issue. The company must also have 

no prior record of having a PO application rejected for reasons 

of serious misconduct. This prevents such companies from 

ever accessing capital from the public at large.

 •	 Improvement	 of	 complaint	 handling	 and	 case	

management via new approach and greater effectiveness  

of operations. IT systems are also being upgraded to  

improve case management services.

	 •	 Comprehensive	 analysis	 of	 processes	 in	 the	 

capital market which are susceptible to fraudulent activities. 

Scrutiny covered securities registration all the way to regulatory  

enforcement, identifying ways to prevent wrongdoing that could 

surface in the future. The Stock Exchange of Thailand and  

Association of Thai Securities Companies were also consulted  

before eventual review by the SEC Board for subsequent  

inclusion in the 3-year Strategic Plan.

 •	 Pressed	 for	 the	 revision	 of	 the	 Securities	 and	 

Exchange Act to improve regulatory enforcement and  

meet	IOSCO	standards	by	inclusion	of	civil	law	to	bolster	

criminal codes in use. The draft is currently under review by 

the Council of State and the SEC is making preparations to 

accommodate use of aforementioned civil law provisions.

	 •	 The	application	of	Dispute	Rules	within	ASEAN	as	best	

practice or guidance for cross-border cases involving financial 

products.
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Dealing with Misconduct and Transaction Monitoring

 •	 Investigation	of	unfair	securities	trading	practices.  

This included market manipulation, false news, and insider 

trading amounting to a total of 70 cases involving fraud and 

wrongdoing committed by executives of listed companies 

or issuers of securities and another 14 cases of misconduct 

regarding accounting or reporting. Another 15 cases involved 

operating securities or derivatives businesses without a license. 

Other types of misconduct amounted to another three cases. 

In total, there were 102 cases in 2015.

 •	 Quality	 inspection	 accounting	 firms	 to	 improve	

their auditing processes. Through in-depth analysis to identify  

loopholes, remedies were derived accordingly including  

subsequent checks to the solution’s effectiveness in actual 

application. This ensures financial reports endorsed by these 

accounting firms are trustworthy, on par with international  

standards.  It is imperative that financial reports are of high 

quality as this affects confidence in the Thai capital market, 

from both domestic and foreign investors. Latest rounds of  

inspections in 2015 showed positive progress by accounting  

firms, revealing their genuine commitment at improving operations.

 •	 Inspection	 of	 information	 and	 transactions	 by	

listed companies to prevent unfair practices or fraudulent  

transfers	 of	 benefits.	 Strengthening	 of	 quality	 of	 

disclosure by listed companies to ensure disclosure reports 

are	 comprehensive,	 clear,	 and	 adequate.	 (1) Inspection 

of financial reports subsequently resulted in five companies  

being forced to revise their financial statements and inform the 

public, (2) inspection of form 56-1, (3) inspection of connected 

transactions or acquisition of major assets being proposed to 

shareholders totaling 52 transactions with a combined value 

of 164,690 million Baht and warning issued to investors on six 

transactions totaling 33,940 million Baht.

	 •	 Inspection	of	securities	companies	on	three	fronts

	 	 I.	 Routine	 inspection:  Focus on securit ies  

companies’ operating procedures and actual performance 

of duties, especially in areas that could cause damage to  

investors or overall operations. Important spots examined  

included Know-Your-Customer / Customer Due Diligence 

(KYC/CDD), supervision of investment advisors, safekeeping of  

clients’ assets, etc. Firms typically targeted for onsite  

inspection were those highlighted by the Risk Based Approach  
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(RBA) assessment, those receiving unusual complaints,  

and firms with large numbers of customers exhibiting  

potentially inappropriate trading practices.  Inspection results 

showed securities companies were within acceptable levels of 

risk; deficiencies were mostly KYC/CDD matters. 

  II.	Theme	 inspection: Such inspections covered 

(1) supervision of securities trading of securities companies. 

With past market conditions being relatively volatile, small cap 

stocks were very active and trading tended to be speculative. 

Furthermore, some investors exhibited potentially inappropriate 

trading practices. The SEC inspected securities companies’ 

effectiveness at supervising their clients’ trading practices and 

found that most brokers have established policies regarding  

this matter as prescribed by the authorities. They did focus 

and monitor their clients’ trades. Strictness varied from 

firm to firm, depending on the nature of each’s clientele.  

(2)  Assessed program trading and determine whether  

brokers have sufficient controls to gauge potential adverse  

impact on the whole market, if any. We examined broker’s  

operating procedures and how program trading was  

carried out, particularly for brokers with large program  

trading volume. Results of the assessment revealed  

that a reasonable amount of supervision was in place. 

For example, brokers’ program trading activities comply  

with SET guidelines regarding the sending of orders,  

where orders are filtered to detect irregularities before  

executed into the SET’s system. There were also capabilities 

to intervene or halt the program if there is fear the program  

trading will affect the market. 

 	 III.	Cause	inspection: A case surrounding the death of 

a prominent businessman connected to a large share transfer 

to another individual involved two securities companies were 

promptly investigated. Results indicated one company failed 

to perform its duties properly in three major areas, namely 

KYC/CDD matters, sufficiently guard clients’ assets, and the  

proliferation of inside information and conflict of interests. We 

filed charges against this company, its management, and  

investment advisors were implicated.

 •	 Inspection	 of	 asset	management	 companies	

and associated businesses. Usual routine inspections were  

carried out on a Risk Based Approach. Most asset management  

companies audited in 2015 complied with regulations.
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Regulatory Enforcement

 •	 Filed	criminal	complaints	against	77	persons	for	

violation	of	the	Securities	and	Exchange	Act: eight persons 

for operating an unlicensed securities business, six persons 

for unfair securities trading activities, one takeover case, 38 

persons related to securities issuance (i.e. failure to prepare 

proper documentation or submit information within deadlines), 

23 persons for fraud or failure to exercise duty of care expected 

of company directors, plus a person in a miscellaneous case. 

In addition, there were four persons charged for violating the 

Derivatives Act.

 •	 Fined	 from	 violations	 of	 the	 Securities	 and	 

Exchange	Act:	 89	 persons,	 total	 fine	 of	 91,441,038.06	

Baht: Securities business: six persons, 2,454,600 Baht.  

Asset management business: eight persons, total fine 2,543,100 

Baht. Unfair securities trading activities: 23 persons, total 

fine 72,448,538.06 Baht. Takeover: four persons, total fine  

2,258,00 Baht. Securities issuance (i.e. failure to prepare proper 

documentation or submit information within deadlines): 48 

persons, total fine 11,736,000 Baht. 

 •	 Administration	 sanction	 against	management:	 

48	 offenders.	Charges were filed against 41 investment  

consultants / investment analysts, four securities company 

executives / authorized persons, one financial advisor, and two 

financial advisor supervisors. Breakdown of measures taken 

consisted of 44 suspensions and four licenses terminations.
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OUTLINING 
A STRATEGY  
FOR SUSTAINABLE  
GROWTH

The SEC’s strategic plan hinges on analyzing 

the root cause and focusing on the target groups 

to ensure that development and problem solving 

will be properly addressed and the capital market 

will progress in a sustainable manner.
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WORKPLANS FOR 
2016-2018

Workplans over the next few years 

consist of continued implementation 

on-going or long-term projects as well  

as a number of issues which may  

require further adaptation or a changed 

approach. Furthermore, there are also 

preparations necessary to meet new 

trends and demands.

•	 External	factors	
 that would impact   
 supervision and  
 development of the  
 capital market over 
 the next three years
 As we formulate future workplans, 

an analysis of the long term outlook for 

the global economy and capital markets 

points largely to a continuation of the 

same trends we observed in 2014. The 

world’s economies and financial markets 

are still very inter-connected and capital 

flows will remain volatile. New regulations  

will tend to be extra-territorial rules and  

capital markets will still be of prime  

importance for economies to mobilize 

capital. The quest for higher returns will 

remain a key objective, while technology  

will advance in leaps and bounds.  

Expected changes over the next few 

years with significant potential impact on 

capital market policy are:

•	 Inter-connected	global	economies	 

 and capital markets.  

 Globalization has made it much 

easier to conduct cross-border fund 

mobilization and investing, creating  

opportunities for the Thai capital market 

to benefit from the vibrancy of the Greater 

Mekhong Subregion (GMS) economies.

•	 Capital 	 markets	 worldwide	 

 are highly competitive. 

 Stock markets across over the world 

are each seeking global recognition by 

trying to position themselves as financial 

centers or gateways to their respective 

countries. They are also keen on boosting  

competitiveness through means such 

as alliances, connectivity with other 

markets, and joint investments to raise 

efficiency and lower costs to entice  

investors and issuers.

•	 Financial	 Technology	 (FinTech).  

 FinTech is sweeping across many 

countries and highly disruptive to  

traditional types of financial services.  

The landscape of the financial services 

industry is being transformed, notably 

with new service providers deploying 

technology to drive how products and 

services can better target customers. 

Simultaneously, segments previously  

unserved can now access financial  

markets at reasonable costs.

•	 The	 capital	 market	 will	 be	 an	 

 important funding channel for  

 SMEs or strategic sectors. 

 Market regulators all over the  

world are challenged by the need to  

widen their role to help facilitate new 

means of fund mobilization to assist 

SMEs or strategic sectors deemed  

vital for the country’s development. This 

means helping these sectors access 

funding easily and swiftly, at reasonable  

costs relative to their risks without  

compromising proper investor protection.

•	 Aging	society. 

 An aging society demands greater  

need for  sav ings to prepare for  

retirement, particularly in Thailand’s  

case where the situation will be relatively  

more pronounced. Failure to adequately  

prepare can lead to social problems and  

pressure on public finances in the long 

term.
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•	 SEC	Strategic	Plan	2016-2018
 Workplans for the next three years stem from the SEC’s careful consideration of 

the global outlook, the country’s own strategic direction, and structural deficiencies of 

the Thai capital market, as well as insights revealed by renewed probing of problem 

issues or consultations with stakeholders. The ultimate aim is for a capital market that 

is trustworthy, efficient, accessible by all segments and capable of helping stakeholders 

achieve their missions. Supervision must be conducted using appropriate measures. 

The various elements of the Strategic Plan will not only rely on issuing regulations 

but also employ softer-side regulations. These include consultative sessions, open 

communications, and the convincing of stakeholders to advance together for our 

collective growth and sustainability.

 The Strategic Plan 2016-2018 consists of four strategies described below. 

 This strategy is further segregated into three sub-strategies to strengthen the 

structure of important mechanisms in the capital market such as fund mobilization 

of listed companies, securities trading, and the marketing of financial products.

  Strategy 1.1 Strengthen the ecosystem involving listed companies

	 Intended	Outcome: The quality of listed companies improves. 

	 Important	measures	to	implement

	 •	 Aim	to	foster	CG	in	substance	by	laying	the	proper	foundations	necessary.	

Integration of CG/ESG (Environment, Social and Governance) into a company’s  

business processes will put good governance into practice. Encouragement of target 

companies can promote buy-in from the directors who are major shareholders.

	 •	 Provide	knowledge	and	awareness	to	the	chief	financial	officer,	accountants,	

internal auditors, and audit committees. Also provide regulations and knowhow to 

instill a greater sense of responsibility to prepare financial reports that are of higher 

quality.

•	 Blockchain	Technology.	 

 As financial transactions can be 

conducted safely at low cost without the 

need for an intermediary, technology has 

the potential to change the face of stock 

markets, settlement, and delivery. 

•	 Sustainable	 Development	 and	 

 Social Responsibility.  

 Globalization, technology, and   

m a r k e t  m e c h a n i s m s  p r o d u c e  

tremendous growth for production  

and consumption, but at the costly  

expense environmental deterioration.  

Sustainable development therefore 

serves as a conscience to remind  

businesses not to solely focus on  

financial gains. Doing so could worsen 

risks for the economy, society, and the 

environment, which eventually threatens 

the longevity of businesses and the  

capital markets themselves.

1
Strategy:

Manage structural problems to strengthen 

the capital market’s integrity
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	 •	 Raise	the	caliber	of	auditors	through	collaboration	with	

the Federation of Accounting Professions to advise companies  

on how to adopt new accounting standards. Approval of  

auditors will also be revised to quicken the process.

	 •	 Encourage	investors	to	incorporate	CG/ESG	into	their	

investment decisions; amend regulations to support shareholder 

rights.

	 •	 Tighten	supervision	of	 financial	 advisors	 (FA)	where	

firms must obtain a license rather than just seeking approval 

to start a financial advisory business. This will lift standards and 

give the SEC to wider range of appropriate enforcement tools. 

	 •	 Require	lead	underwriters	to	perform	a	due	diligence	

on the operations of FA to confirm familiarity with the quality of 

the securities. Additionally require that auditors submit financial 

audit results to the FA to assist their work.

	 •	 Encourage	 the	 disclosure	 of	 information	 from	 the	

prospectus and Form 56-1 to investors in an easily accessible 

manner and a presentation format that is easy to understand.

	 •	 Encourage	the	SET	to	revise	listing	requirements	such	

as taking into account the quality, potential growth, and market 

value of the securities to create listing segmentation.

	 •	 Encourage	the	SET	to	toughen	regulatory	enforcement	 

on companies that no longer meet required qualifications 

 (delisting requirement).

	 •	 Review	 the	 supervision	 process.	 Cooperate	 to	 

oversight of listed companies more effectively with the SET to 

address any loopholes or overlapping work, and make use of 

the best tools.

 Strategy 1.2  Strengthen the securities trading  

ecosystem

	 Intended	Outcome: The SET and Association of Thai 

Securities Companies’ operations achieve international  

standards and uphold public interest.

 Important	measures	to	implement	

	 •	 Communicate	with	 Association	 of	 Thai	 Securities	

Companies to emphasize clarity of their roles particularly if 

they want to be Self Regulatory Organizations (SRO). It is vital 

that they make necessary preparations regarding staffing and 

supervisory capacity to lift operational standards to international 

levels.

	 •	 Collaborate	with	 the	SET	and	securities	companies	

to install preventive measures against unfair securities trading 

activities.

	 •	 Strengthen	 the	 capacity	 to	 effectively	 deal	 with	 

wrongdoers by improving operations, classifying cases in terms 

of severity, and boost efficiency of supporting operations to 

investigate and file legal charges more swiftly. Backlogs of 

pending cases should be minimized as well.

 Strategy 1.3  Strengthening the ecosystem of the 

offering of financial products

 Intended	Outcome: Investor confidence in the financial 

products. Uphold investors’ best interests.

	 Important	measures	to	implement

	 •	 Collaborate	with	the	Bank	of	Thailand	(BOT)	to	monitor	 

the product pricing structures of financial conglomerates to 

prevent mispriced financial products being offered to the public.
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	 •	 Ensure	benchmarks	and	performance	presentations	

are in accordance with international standards.

	 •	 Improve	information	disclosure	and	service	standards	

of firms with limited broker, dealer and underwriter (LBDU) 

licenses, and underwriters. Strengthen sales conduct and 

processes to ensure investors receive proper information.

 Two sub-strategies will be directed at increasing the  

effectiveness and competitiveness of business operators in 

both the domestic and international markets.

 Strategy 2.1 Improve the landscape to foster healthy 

competition in the capital market

	 Intended	Outcome:	A capital market that consists of 

players that offer financial products meeting the needs of  

customers and qualified to compete among foreign players.

 Important	measures	to	implement	

	 •	 Update	regulations	to	permit	securities	companies	to	

introduce a wider variety of financial products and services.

	 •	 Encourage	asset	management	companies	to	develop	

more types of funds or invest in new types of assets.

	 •	 Encourage	more	research	analysis	of	traded	stocks	

and facilitate those who are keen to conduct research analysis.

	 •	 Smoothen	 the	 landscape	 to	 accommodate	 new	 

players running new business models by revising the structure 

of licenses, minimum capital requirements, and regulations to 

permit the creation of new services to cater to investors’ needs.

 Strategy 2.2 Build the Thai capital market’s  

international profile

	 Intended	Outcome: Position the Thai capital market as 

a funding gateway for businesses in the GMS region as well as 

a center for investors intending to invest in GMS.

 Important	measures	to	implement	

	 •	 Collaborate	with	 stakeholders	 to	 position	 the	 Thai	

capital market as a hub for investment in GMS-related  

financial products. Also help develop GMS stock markets grow 

in tandem.

	 •	 Carry	 out	 on-going	 improvements	 to	 achieve	 the	

standards laid out by IOSCO principles and ensure operations 

are in accordance to standards, regulatory guidelines, and 

cooperation agreements made with key supervisory bodies 

such as APEC, ARFP, AIFMD and other bilateral agreements.

 Strategy 3.1  Facilitate businesses to access and 

benefit from the capital market 

	 Intended	Outcome:  Companies can mobilize funds from 

the capital market at competitive costs.

 Important	measures	to	implement	

	 •	 Boost	 new	 channels	 to	 mobilize	 funds	 such	 as	 

infrastructure funds and project-finance bonds.

	 •	 Support	and	equip	SMEs	with	the	ability	to	deploy	tools	

2
Strategy:

Raise the competitiveness and international 

profile of the Thai capital market

Facilitate businesses and the public to 

access and benefit from the capital market3
Strategy:
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available in the capital market by (1) boosting their knowledge 

and use of existing fund mobilization channels through equity 

crowdfunding, private equity trust, etc., (2) exploring the feasibility  

of permitting debt crowdfunding, and (3) supporting greater 

use of technology in the management of SMEs.

 Strategy 3.2 Encourage savings for retirement

 Intended	Outcome: A well-managed provident fund 

industry that provides financial security for members upon 

retirement.

 Important	measures	to	implement 

	 •	 Configure	proper	minimum	level	of	savings	needed	to	

achieve adequate financial security upon retirement. Provide 

availability of Life Path investment plans that adjusts to age. 

Provide members with availability of investment options.

	 •	 Permit	asset	management	companies	to	offer	a	wider	

range of investment policies for members’ excess savings.

	 •	 Provide	knowledge	to	provident	fund	committees	and	

members to stimulate interest in managing provident funds 

effectively.

 Strategy 3.3 Encourage stakeholders in the capital  

market to be prepared, up to date, and capable of  

benefitting from technology

 Intended	 Outcome: FinTech provides services to  

investors while associated risks are managed effectively.

 Important	measures	to	implement	

	 •	 Organize	FinTech	forums	and	administer	programs	to	

provide knowledge and invite FinTech startups to develop new 

types of businesses and services to investors.

	 •	 Issue	regulations	to	facilitate	new	businesses	created	

by FinTech.

	 •	 Support	 the	 SET	 and	 intermediaries	 to	 place	 high	

priority on the effective prevention of cyber risk.

 

 Strategy 4.1  Reinforce the SEC’s management 

framework with the integration of governance, risk, and 

compliance (GRC) into the organization’s operations.

	 Intended	Outcome: SEC is managed in accordance with 

international standards.

	 Important	measures	to	implement	

	 •	 Establish	processes	 for	 the	 formulation	of	 strategic	

plans, leading to actual implementation and achievement of 

intended outcomes as envisioned by the organization’s vision 

and mission.

	 •	 Establish	management	policies	in	line	with	international	 

practices, whereby risk management is integrated into  

decision-making and all other function lines.

 Strategy 4.2 Strengthen corporate culture and  

human resources

 Intended	Outcome: The SEC has a knowledgeable, 

competent, and loyal workforce. 

 Important	measures	to	implement	

	 •	 Maintain	 proper	workforce	 to	 handle	workload	 and	

perform operations effectively.

	 •	 Skills	 development	 training	 and	 establishment	 of	 

succession plan to cope with retirements.

Strengthen the SEC’s ability to sustainably 

achieve its vision and mission4
Strategy:
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	 •	 Leadership	 development	 for	 executives	 to	 develop	

coaching skills and serve as real drivers in the organization. 

Implement activities to strengthen the corporate culture as 

outlined by corporate values. 

 Strategy 4.3 Increase the efficiency of work  

operations

	 Intended	 Outcome:  SEC’s operations contain  

risk-awareness and keen to respond to stakeholder needs.

 Important	measures	to	implement	

	 •	 Build	alliances	between	supervisory	bodies	and	the	

financial market to formulate strategies together.

	 •	 Reduce	 the	 burden	 on	 intermediaries	 by	 updating	 

rules and regulations to match the investment environment. 

Reduce unnecessary requirements and strengthen the capital 

market’s competitiveness.

	 •	 Increase	risk	surveillance	capacity	and	aim	to	develop	a	

sophisticated executive dashboard that enhances management 

of organizational risks and threats to the Thai capital market 

from various events.

	 •	 Adjust	work	approach	to	 increase	consideration	for	

stakeholders and responsiveness to their needs.

 Strategy 4.4  Strengthen data management  

capabilities and keep up with IT technology

 Intended	Outcome: SEC is adept at utilizing data and 

technology to formulate effective policy-making.

 Important	measures	to	implement 

	 •	 Implement	 database	 and	management	 information	

system using data analytics to extract intelligent information 

to support policy-making.

	 •	 Establish	guidelines	to	enable	departments	to	monitor	

and manage their own IT and cyber security matters.

	 •	 Plans	to	prepare	IT	specialists	to	handle	the	supervision	

of the increasing presence of IT-driven business services being 

set up to tap customers.

	 •	 Apply	 greater	 use	 of	 IT	 technology	 to	 enhance	 the	

operations of the SEC to improve our services to stakeholders.

 Strategy 4.5 Efficient resources management

	 Intended	Outcome: SEC has solid financial standing and 

does not burden the private sector.

 Important	measures	to	implement	

 Judging from prevailing external factors and the investment 

environment, priority needs to be placed on sufficient capital, 

fee revenues, and expenses. The following measures will be 

implemented.

	 •	 Conduct	 stress	 tests	 on	 capital	 base	 to	 ensure	 

sufficiency to cope with market volatility, yet capital base  

should not be overly excessive (overcapitalized).

	 •	 Set	fee	structure	that	enables	the	industry	to	remain	

competitive while appropriately covers the SEC’s efficient use 

of resources. 

	 •	 Budget	 expenses	must	be	 in-line	with	 the	 strategic	

plan.

 Successful implementation of these strategies to  

accomplish our mission will require a collaborative spirit 

among all parties involved for the sustainable growth of the Thai  

capital market. The SEC is fully committed to being open 

to feedback, whilst undertaking thorough examination and  

analysis of issues to be insightful. We will base our operations 

on integrity and uphold the interests of the public. 
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ADHERING TO 
THE PRINCIPLES 
THAT WE BELIEVE IN

The SEC adheres to good governance principles 

in its duty to oversee and develop the capital market. 

This characterizes how we work to achieve the goals 

and sustainability for the SEC as well as for the market, 

bringing economic and social stability for the ultimate 

well-being of the people. 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

DEVELOPMENT OF A SUSTAINABLE ORGANIZATION

 Good governance leads to creation of trust in the public 

sector that performs supervisory roles. It is also an important 

foundation for the country’s economic and social development, 

including sustaining for the benefits and well-being of people. 

The SEC, given its role as the capital market regulator, adheres 

to the principles of good corporate governance to ensure its 

duties and development of the capital market achieve intended 

goals and sustainability on three fronts: the sustainability of 

the SEC, the capital market, and ultimately, the economy and 

society.

 The SEC continually works toward being a sustainable 

organization as envisioned by the Sustainability Development 

Roadmap for listed companies initiated in 2014. In 2015, the 

SEC overhauled the way we view corporate governance. 

“Governance” actually transcends beyond the concept of a 

respectable organization; it should also mean the SEC’s work 

is purpose-driven, beneficial to public interest at all times, and 

achievable. Principles of corporate governance must also be 

translated into practical terms, where the organization is viewed 

holistically and values are embedded in processes and working 

standards. The organizational development of the SEC should 

also link to the well-being of people. We have been applying 

guidelines of the International Framework: Good Governance in 

the Public Sector (2014), as conceived by the IFAC (International 

Federation of Accountants) and CIPFA (The Chartered Institute 

of Public Finance & Accountancy).

 •	 Establishment	of	New	Vision,	Mission	and	Values

The SEC announced new Vision, Mission, and Values to obtain 

greater clarity of outcomes and direction, collectively shared by 

both management and staff.

  Vision: Strive to enhance the benefits and well-being of 

people through being a trustworthy and proactive organization, 

collaborating with all stakeholders to build a sustainable capital 

market.

 Mission:  To assure conductive environments for a fair, 

efficient, dynamic and inclusive capital market.

 Values: Open, Insightful, Collaborative, Integrity.

 •	 Establishment	of	Sub-committee	on	Governance	

and Remuneration 

 The sub-committee will drive efforts to achieve good 

governance and develop the SEC into an ideal sustainable 

organization which can also serve as a role model for other 

participants in the capital market. The sub-committee’ role is to 

propose policies and guidelines to achieve better governance  

in the organization in line with international standards. This 

includes proposing proper practices and guidelines on the 

selection, remuneration, and performance measurements 

for the SEC Board, the Capital Market Supervisory Board,  

sub-committees, and the Secretary-General. In 2015, the 

SEC created a corporate governance development plan to 

guide operations and development along the principles of a  

sustainable organization. 

 •	 Enhancement	of	work	processes	using	“Tookit”	

which supports the organization’s vision, mission, and 

values.

 We strive to be responsive to stakeholders with equal 

concern for the society and environment by emphasizing that 
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intended outcomes must always benefit stakeholders and the 

public interest, rather than the SEC in itself. As example, we 

deployed checklists to ensure jobs undertaken receive thorough 

consideration and handling. We trained staff and commenced 

the use of checklists in practice and initiated a practice for all 

departments to apply the use checklists to suit their work.

 •	 New	Guidelines	 for	 Nomination	 of	 Qualified	 

Directors

 The SEC Board and the Capital Market Supervisory Board 

establish and use a skills matrix to assess the qualifications of 

each candidate. The nomination will incorporate the skills matrix 

when these two Boards propose expert members candidates 

to the Selection Committee for approval, thus ensuring the 

resulting SEC Board and the Capital Market Supervisory Board 

possess the collective expertise suited to the SEC’s work.

 •	 Implementing	the	Secretary-General’s	evaluation	

criteria to achieve the organization’s intended outcomes

  The criteria serve as a driver and motivation for the SEC’s 

operations and management to be in line with the international 

standards and adhere to the principles of good governance in 

the public sector.

•	 Anti-corruption

 The SEC has policy which firmly commits to being a 

corruption-free organization, having no involvement in the 

INSIGHTFUL
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INTEGRITY
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“The SEC strives to enhance the benefits and well-being of people through being a trustworthy and proactive organization, 
collaborating with all stakeholders to build a sustainable capital market.”
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giving and accepting ends. We also advocate anti-corruption 

practices akin to international standards and with the same  

expectations we demand of participants in our regulatory  

scope (listed companies, securities companies, asset  

management companies and derivatives intermediaries). 

In 2014, we launched the initiative “SEC: A Corruption-free  

Organization” and began a self-assessment of our own  

anti-corruption capabilities, a collaborative effort with  

Thailand’s Private Sector Collective Action Coalition Against 

Corruption (CAC) of the Thai Institute of Directors (IOD). By the 

following year, the SEC was fully compliant with the guidelines  

of the CAC which demanded strengthening corporate  

governance, staff ethics, and procurement documents to uphold 

“SEC: A Corruption-free Organization.” The self-assessment 

was endorsed by the Audit Committee and the SEC Board. 

 Furthermore, in line with sound international practice, the 

SEC broadened its anti-corruption efforts to cover staff training 

such as arranging “Fraud Risk Management” administered by 

the Federation of Accounting Professions for 80 SEC staff.

 Another source of pride here at the SEC is our “No Gift 

Policy” where we have sought cooperation from other individuals 

and entities to refrain from giving gifts to the management and 

staff of the SEC regardless of occasion or festivity. Successful 

collaboration has enabled this to continue for a 3rd consecutive 

year.

 •	 Continued	Implementation	of	Important	Policies	

and Measures such as

  > Conduct annual group performance evaluation of 

the SEC Board and the Capital Market Supervisory Board to 

improve their effectiveness.

  > Evaluate the ethical standards of the SEC Office  

against international benchmarks, both at the personnel  

level and the organizational level. This includes yearly audit of staff  

and family members’ securities trading activities, preparation 

and disclosure of the report of the SEC Board on internal  

controls over financial reporting, revisions of the code of conduct  

and ethics of the board members, complaint handling  

procedures, and reporting channels for whistle-blowing of  

unethical misconduct by SEC officials, etc.

  > Encourage the engagement of stakeholders in  

the capital market as this is critical for supervisory and  

development work to achieve intended outcomes. Through a 

variety of formats and ways for stakeholders to engage, the 

SEC has been receiving excellent collaboration. We hold joint 

sessions with industry associations to exchange views and 

recommendations for the capital market. We collect feedback 

from stakeholders through either broad-based or focused 

approach, using suitable channels and communication tools. 

Trainings and seminars are regularly held. Experts in  

special ized fields (such as law, asset valuation) and  

representatives of various organizations (such as the Thai Listed 

Companies Association, Thai Investors Association, Association  

of Thai Securities Companies, Association of Investment  

Management Companies, Investment Analysts Association,  

Thai Bond Market Association, Association of Provident 

Fund, the Thai Real Estate Association, the Stock Exchange 

of Thailand, and the Custodian Club) are appointed to join  

sub-committees to formulate or improve regulatory guidelines.
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 The SEC Board and executives consider risk management 

a vital part of corporate culture and prescribed the management 

of 

(1)		 strategic	risk	to	ensure	plans	are	achieved;	

(2)		 operational	risk	to	improve	processes;	

(3)		 compliance	risk	to	respect	relevant	rules	and	 

	 regulations;	and	

(4)		 sustainable	growth	and	readiness	to	drive	policy	and	 

 address needs of stakeholders in the capital market. 

 

 The risk management structure at the SEC is designed 

with Integrated Governance, Risk and Compliance (GRC) as 

a foundation. This ensures risk managers effectively conduct  

their role along principles of good governance. Risk  

management policies must be clear and communicated 

widely throughout the organization, and compatible with  

the compliance systems in place. Risk management should  

also blend seamlessly into the entity’s operations and be  

practical in application.

 The Thai capital market will face higher challenges  

from the global conditions. Uneven economic growth and 

monetary easing administered by many countries throughout 

will inevitably bring volatility to Thai capital market. To provide  

effective market oversight, we place priority on market  

stability and the monitoring of emerging risks in the Thai 

capital market. We continually assess capital outflows and  

their subsequent impact. We have created risk indicators 

as tools to gauge the risks in the Thai market as well as the 

characteristics of investors and market participants to detect  

vulnerabilities. Monitoring also include liquidity positions and 

financial stability of intermediaries and important market  

infrastructure, plus other risks with potential to cause systemic 

risk such as technology. Risk is viewed holistically to help the 

SEC prepare a proper and timely response to extraordinary 

events.

 In addition to market fluctuations and emerging risks, 

unforeseen external events may also affect the Thai capital 

market such as natural disasters, terrorism, pandemics, and 

cyber attacks. The SEC has established business continuity  

management plan to prepare for various scenarios and  

periodically run practice drills to test readiness. This also  

includes ensuring market intermediaries and important market 

infrastructure can maintain business continuity or can resume  

service to the public within a reasonable period of time  

comparable to international norms. Commitment and  

collaboration received from all stakeholders have produced 

positive results in a real occurrence of a bombing incident in 

Bangkok in August 2015 whereby the capital market remained 

resilient and continued to operate smoothly.

RISK MANAGEMENT
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The Accomplishment of the Risk Management Committee

 The SEC Board has approved the 

official appointment of all management 

executives to the Risk Management  

C o m m i t t e e  w h o s e  r o l e s  a n d  

responsibilities cover risk management 

and business continuity.

Accomplishments of the Risk  

Management	Committee	in	2015 

•	 Revised	 frameworks	 and	 policies	

on risk management and business  

continuity to adapt to changes in the  

business environment 

•	 Rev iewed	 st rateg ic 	 r isks	 and	 

emerging risks plus new risk factors  

to update the organizat ion’s r isk  

register. Establishment of the 2015 risk  

mitigation plan.

•	 Blended	 risk	 management	 into	 

the organization’s strategic plan to  

address vulnerabilities and establish  

corresponding measures. 

•	 Regularly	 monitored	 the	 progress	

of the risk management effort to ensure 

intended effectiveness. 

•	 Collaborated	more	 closely	with	 the	

Audit Committee with at least two joint 

meetings held together per year. This 

ensures the risk management and audit 

functions (policy effective as of August 

2015) are aligned. 

•	 Implemented	practice	drills	according	 

to the business continuity plan for major  

incidents and impact. Deployed the  

alternative site and backup systems  

to confirm the effectiveness of the  

e m e r g e n c y  s o l u t i o n  s h o u l d  a n  

extraordinary event occur.

As the SEC puts a considerable 

emphasis on the importance of  

r isk management, we have  

p r o p o s e d  t o  e n g a g e  a l l  

management executives in  

managing risks. This is to ensure  

thorough risk analysis in all  

angles. 
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 In striving to be a sustainable organization and model 

supervisory authority, human resource is a key driver of the 

organization.  Staff must possess the skills and capabilities to 

deliver our vision, mission and values.  In 2015, we integrated  

the organization’s management and human resource  

management to lay the foundations needed to achieve the 

organization’s goals.

Organizational Restructuring, New Vision 
and Values
 The first important step was to revise the organization 

structure such that each function line’s work is better aligned 

with the relevant stakeholders it engages with in order to have 

the exposure and accountability for the end-to-end process.   

This improves insightfulness and responsiveness to the  

requirements of stakeholders, while offering better support to 

them as well.

 2015 was also a year the SEC adopted a new vision.  

This ensures the SEC’s direction is aligned  with stakeholders 

and operations achieve the intended outcomes with clarity of 

direction.  The SEC’s role will also cater to the progress of the 

capital market and country’s economy for the main benefit and 

well-being of the people.     

The SEC strives to enhance the benefits and 

well-being of people through being

a trustworthy and proactive organization, 

collaborating with all stakeholders to build 

a sustainable capital market.

 For human resources that can deliver this vision, the SEC 

established these values for the organization

Open Insightful Collaborative 	Integrity

Willing to embrace views, 

problems, and needs from 

stakeholders in the capital 

market with an intention 

to understand and work 

together.

Abi l i ty to comprehend  

various issues in its entirety  

and formulate solid long 

term plans to meet new 

c h a l l e n g e s  t h a t  m a y  

affect the supervision and  

development of the capital 

market.

Eager to jointly work with 

others	 for	 the	 benefit	 of	

stakeholders in the capital 

market and economy.

Ingrain	 ethical	 and	 fair	 

m e n t a l i t y  s u c h  t h a t  

attitudes, decisions, and 

actions are transparent and 

devoid of bias.

ORGANIZATION MANAGEMENT AND 
HUMAN RESOURCES
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 To foster these values among our employees, the SEC is 

developing its corporate culture in four dimensions.

Training and Development
 Staff development and training aims to strengthen the 

employee’s skills, knowledge, ability to learn and adapt to the 

workplace in their present capacity and any future changes they 

may face. This ensures delivery of the organization’s goals and 

continuity of its operations. Developmental programs in 2015 

included:

 Adoption of Vision and Values

 To embed the organization’s vision and values throughout 

the organization, the SEC launched these programs

 The Voice of Change

 An arena where management executives share  

experiences in propagating values at their workplace,  

including experiences on how to encourage one’s team to  

operate in accordance with such values and the types of  

feedback received. 

 The sharing of experiences under this program illustrated 

the commitment by management executives to embed the 

values into their own teams. Lessons shared by others also 

enable each to apply solutions to one’s own team. Gradually, 

attitudes and operations become more aligned with the values. 

 Change Agent

 Formation of a group of Change Agents to enable  

employees to learn and participate in activities to create  

positive change in the organization together. The Change 

Agents initiated many small projects that apply the organization’s 

values into decision-making, work process and team building. 

The scope of these projects can subsequently expand further. 

This project received the support of distinguished experts with 

long experience in the capital market who devoted time to offer 

knowledge, advice, and inspiration to our staff.

  “SEC Culture” Course

 All new recruits were required to enroll in the “SEC Culture” 

course to understand the mentality and process of working for 

the benefit of others. Employees received first hand experience 

from the individuals and organization that is a role model of 

working for others, based on His Majesty’s Sufficiency Economy 

concept for life and work. 

 The course also explained the corporate vision and values  

through various activities that achieves self-learning.  

Fundamental knowledge of the capital market was also  

included, with content tailored specifically for their job duties. 

Experts on the capital market from both within the SEC and 

private sectors provided training and lectures, coupled with 

field work in the private sector to receive direct exposure to 

the actual operations of stakeholders.

 leadership and Management Skills

 “Life Coach” skills were used to develop leadership 

skills among management executives as these individuals are  

instrumental in carrying out changes in the organization.  

Increased self-awareness triggers personal improvement and 

capacity to support and bring out the strengths in others. The 

SEC has future plans to developing coaching skills among its 

management executives with a view that they can become  

instructors and mentors to bring out the best in the  

organization’s staff.

1

2

1) A working environment that motivates  
 its employees.
2) Two-way communication between  
 management and staff for flow of  
 ideas and feedback.
3) A learning organization that  
 continually strives for improvement
4) Good relationship among employees  
 and family-like environment.
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 Expansion of the Perspectives and Caliber of the 

 Workforce to International levels

 - The SEC and the IMD World Competitive Center 

(IMD), a global institute for management and leadership based 

in Switzerland, jointly launched the “Capital Market Leader 

Program: Building Competitiveness of Nation and Thai Capital  

Markets” for the management executives of the SEC and  

agencies involved with the capital market’s development. It 

covered capital market trends, both at the regional and global 

levels, including innovations of financial products and direction 

of market supervision. The program aimed at building readiness 

for the Thai capital market to compete in the global arena, while 

offering the opportunity for capital market leaders to exchange 

experiences and foster cooperation going forwards.

 - We also encouraged staff to seek job secondment, 

either domestically or internationally, in order to receive 

hands on experience. International job secondments were  

administered through the Visiting Fellow Program (VFP), hosted 

by the Asia Financial Partnership (AFPAC), an agency under 

the Japan Financial Services Authority (JFSA). Through VFP, 

we explored the potential of the mutual fund industry and fixed 

income market, supervisory work, regulatory enforcement, 

and supervision of securities firms. Furthermore, we examined 

the systems and framework the Japanese authorities used to  

supervise its financial markets. In addition, staff handling  

securities regulations obtained job secondment with the US 

SEC in the area of cooperation among national supervisors to 

share know-how on enforcement. 

 - Joint hosting of the APEC FRTI Regional Seminar 

(The Asia-Pacific Economic Cooperation Financial Regulators 

Training Initiative) with the Asian Development Bank (ADB) on 

Cross Border Offering and Investment. The aim was to develop 

deeper understand the capital market and establish closer  

cooperation among regional capital market supervisors. Our 

staff also participated as guest speakers. The 2015 event for 

SEC staff and regional supervisors included 45 participants 

from 11 countries. 

 - Assisted high-potential staff to obtain a Master’s  

Degree abroad at a leading US or UK university, as well as  

support for staff on leave to pursue a degree abroad. 

 We also regularly arranged training for staff, especially on 

topics such as economic outlook, global capital market trends, 

international standards of supervision, Disruptive Technology 

and impact of FinTech, all of which have repercussions on the 

supervision and development of the capital market. 

 Promotion of An On-going learning Culture in  

 the Organization

    Forums exists for staff to regular exchange knowhow 

and experience which served to pass on know-how to  

1.Secretary-General opened up on stage to encourage two-way 

communications among executives and staff of all levels as part of 

the SEC Culture. 

2. The Change Agent Initiative encouraged staff to brainstorm and push 

forward projects for energizing and developing the SEC.

3

4

1

2
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others, enabling better work continuity inside the SEC.  

Employee relationships were strengthened and a family-like 

atmosphere was fostered. Commitment to the organization 

was enriched.

 Apart from formal programs, the SEC also offered  

opportunities for staff to rotate jobs which would allow them to 

widen their perspectives.

Remuneration, Progress, Welfare and 
Safety, and Work-life Balance

 SEC believes that remuneration must be commensurate 

and fair. We survey and monitor wage trends at comparable 

institutions on a regular basis to determine if our wage structure 

is competitive. This is important for staff retention and attraction 

of new qualified recruits. 

 The SEC evaluates the quality of work produced by using 

a Performance Management System and links performance 

to remuneration through Performance Based Pay. Evaluation 

is a two-way process between the line manager and the staff 

being appraised, to ensure fairness, personal development, 

and career progress. The SEC believes staff must advance on 

competency, regardless of whether one belongs in a managerial 

line of work or specialist line. 

 The SEC maintains adequate staff welfare to serve as 

financial security for its staff. Health and security is also provided 

such as vaccinations against major pandemics for both staff 

and family. There is also first aid training for representatives on 

each floor, a program to be subsequently expanded to all staff. 

Plans are in the pipeline to acquire a portable automated external 

defibrillator (AED) and relevant training for staff representatives. 

 The SEC places importance on work-life balance for 

its staff and provides flexible working hours and leave days. 

Exercise facilities, up to 12 sports and recreational clubs, 

and activities with other organizations help boost employee  

interaction as well as relations with external contacts. Leisure 

activities for staff are also arranged to celebrate the usual 

festivities. 

 As of 2015 onwards, the SEC granted provisions for 

female staff to take a religious leave for a duration of at least 

one month, but not exceeding three months. This privilege is 

available once over the duration of one’s employment with the 

SEC. The break will not impact normal leave days. The venue 

for the meditation course must be one that is endorsed by 

the National Office of Buddhism.  This welfare caters to the 

development and fulfillment of our female staff.

Senior executives championed the Voice of Change Project by taking 

turns to share experiences and life lessons with their peers.    
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Human Resources Statistics 2015 2014 2013

1.				Number	of	employees  539 518 504

• Male   164 151 145

• Female  375 367 359

2.		 Employee	classified	by	sex	(%)   

• Male   30 30 30

• Female  70 70 70

3.			Employment	classified	by	type	of	contract	(%)	   

• Full-time employee  91 91 92

• Permanent worker  6 5 3

• Temporary worker  1 2 2

• Outsource 2 2 2

4.				Employment	classified	by	level	(no.	of	staff)   

• Support officer 60 60 60

• Officer  317 302 318

• Assistant director 127 127 98

• Director 26 20 20

• Top management  9 9 8

5.				Employment	ratio	classified	by	level	(%)   

• Support officer 11 12 12

• Officer  59 58 63

• Assistant director 23 25 20

• Director 5 4 4

• Top management 2 2 2

6.				Number	of	new	employee	(no.	of	staff) 45 48 79

• Male   20 14 32

• Female  25 34 47

7.			New	employee	classified	by	age	(no.	of	staff)	

• Below 30 years old 32 28 61

• Between 30-50 years old 13 19 18

• Over 50 years old - 1 -
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Human Resources Statistics 2015 2014 2013

8.			New	employees:	total	employee	ratios	(%)	 9 9 16

9.		Number	of	employees	whose	term	end	(no.	of	staff)	

 (resignation and retirement) 28 34 26

• Male    7 8 11

• Female  21 26 15

10.	Number	of	employees	whose	term	end	classified	by	age 28 34 26

• Below 30 years old 14 22 12

• Between 30-50 years old 11 11 11

• Over 50 years old 5 1 3

11.	Resignation/retired	employees:	total	employee	ratio	(%) 5 7 5

12.	Average	training	hours	of	total	employee	

     (no.	of	days:	year)   

• Male   25 12 6

• Female  25 12 6

13.	Average	training	hours	classified	by	employee’s	level	

  (no.	of	days:	year)   

• Support officer 1 4 5

• Officer  6 5 5

• Assistant director 3 6 8

• Director 22 22 17

• Top management 19 23 2

14.	Male-female	employee	wages	ratio	classified	by			   

       employment level   

• Support officer 5.50:1 5.55:1 6.12 : 1

• Officer  2.40:1 2.50:1 2.40 : 1

• Assistant director 2.21:1 2.34:1 2.45 : 1

• Director 2.91:1 2.30:1 2.38 : 1

• Top management 0.94:1 0.94:1 1.19 : 1
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SOCIAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL 
RESPONSIBILITY

 The SEC has always emphasized social and environmental  

concerns; we promote environmental awareness through our 

work as capital market supervisor. Activities highlighted in  

2015 include:

Creating Opportunities and Giving Back to Society

 We helped create opportunities for the less-fortunate  

members of society by offering support and career  

opportunities to the disabled. At present, the SEC employs  

five disabled persons in jobs which are suited for them.

 We also provided opportunities for students to experience 

working in the real world and acquire exposure to the capital 

market, either academically or through practical experience. 

It also grooms a new workforce to enter the capital market in 

the future. The SEC recruits students from both Bangkok and 

provincial institutions for internships here every year.

 Giving is another effective means of helping society. The 

SEC, its management and staff, donated money and items to 

various organizations such as cash donations to help the victims 

of the Nepal earthquake and blood donations to the Thai Red 

Cross on the anniversary of the SEC’s establishment. 

Energy Conservation

 Given all the challenges we all face, whether it is  

environmental damage, natural disasters, climate change,  

evolution of technology and change, the SEC developed a 

Sustainability Development Roadmap for listed companies late  

2013. It is hoped that listed companies as well as other  

participants in the capital market would improve readiness to 

survive and grow amidst such challenges. Listed companies  

will reveal their social responsibility towards sustainable  

development in their annual reports or annual registration  

statement disclosures.

 Simultaneously, investors are becoming increasingly 

concerned with a business’ sustainability and demand that 

businesses disclose more information regarding their carbon  

emissions and measures to mitigate them. Investors are  

judging businesses’ conduct against standards of good  

corporate social responsibility. Although Thailand is not presently  

subjected to greenhouse gas reduction targets and  

commitments are on voluntary basis depending on the  

organization, future international agreements may raise the 

bar, hence the need to prepare. The SEC encourages listed 

companies to disclose emissions data to not only enhance the 

company’s own image but for the country’s reputation on this 

matter as a whole. Data will also be relevant for international 

investors who prefer to invest in low carbon emitting companies. 

 As a government authority which must exhibit social 

responsibility and serve as a role model for businesses under 

its supervision, the SEC sought the advice of the Thailand 

Greenhouse Gas Management Organization (TGO), the central 

body for the handling of Thailand’s greenhouse gas, to measure 

our own carbon emissions. With operations largely based in an 

office tower which in itself emits carbon gases, we assessed 

the Carbon Footprint for Organization (CFO) or Corporate 

Carbon Footprint (CCF) of our operations to measure our side 

effects on the environment. The SEC disclosed and registered 

its corporate carbon footprint with the TGO on 20 May 2015.

 Following the assessment, we went to offset our entire  

carbon emissions by purchasing carbon credits amounting to  
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2,400 tons from a biogas and power project at a waste water treatment  

facility at a palm oil factory at Swee District in Chumphon. As a   result, the 

SEC’s office was the first “carbon neutral” office building in Thailand and 

certified on 15 July 2015.

 A resulting benefit of conducting the Corporate Carbon Footprint 

was its inspiration to staff to help conserve energy. The SEC provided  

knowledge to its staff to raise awareness on energy conversation as a 

way of life. We circulated a weekly electronic publication called Greener  

SEC-Ciety to explain how to use energy efficiently; a step towards more 

ambitious energy conservation plans for the SEC in the future to cut  

emissions and reduce carbon credit purchases.

 Our total consumption of electricity and water in 2015 rose compared 

to 2014 following an increase in space usage due to retail space and a 

coffee shop on the first floor to facilitate visiting stakeholders and SEC’s 

own staff. We also added work space on the 19th floor to accommodate 

personnel increases and the staff of Office of the Agricultural Futures  

Trading Commission being transferred to the SEC. A total of 1,000 square 

meters of additional space was acquired in 2015, approximately 3.33%  

of the overall space now occupied by the SEC.

Use of Resources

Staff participated in the blood donation to 

the Thai Red Cross Society to celebrate 

the SEC’s 23rd Anniversary.  

The SEC presented a donation to support  

the Thai Red Cross Society’s aid to  

earthquake victims in Nepal. 
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AWARDS

Carbon Neutral Certificate 

General Surasak Karnjanarat, Minister of Natural Resources and Environment, 

 presented the Carbon Neutral Certificate of Thailand Greenhouse Gas Management  

Public Organization to Deputy Secretary-General Chalee Chantanayingyong in 

recognition of the SEC’s contribution to alleviate global warming effect by fully 

offsetting its greenhouse gas emission through the Corporate Carbon Footprint 

(CCF) Campaign. The SEC is Thailand’s first recipient of the Carbon Neutral 

Certificate – Office Building Category.   

SAM Excellence Award 

The SEC is the first public agency in the ASEAN region to earn the ISO 19770-1  

Software Asset Management (SAM) Standard Verafirm Certification from the 

Business Software Alliance (BSA) in recognition of its excellence in managing 

information security and information technology risks while upholding corporate 

governance in protection of intellectual property for the benefit of sustainable 

development and efficient supervision of the Thai capital market.    

SET in the City Award 

The SEC won the Most Outstanding Exhibition Booth Award (based on visitors’ 

most popular votes) in recognition of its professional giving of services and 

advice at the SET in the City 2015 from the organizer, the Stock Exchange of 

Thailand. Designed under the theme, “SEC Open Space,” the SEC booth featured  

multimedia presentation of essential financial knowledge and edutainment  

activities to inspire visitors to draw their own financial roadmap to achieve  

personal goals
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REPORT OF THE SEC BOARD ON INTERNAL CONTROL 
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

 The SEC Board oversees the operations of the Securities and Exchange Commission, Thailand (SEC) by having arranged 

the establishment and maintenance of appropriate, adequate and effective internal control over financial reporting in accordance  

with the criteria in the Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the  

Treadway Commission (COSO).  Such internal control serves to provide reasonable assurance that financial reports are accurate 

and complete and are prepared in accordance with the Thai Financial Reporting Standards, assets are safeguarded, and any 

weakness is detected on a timely basis to prevent material irregular operations.

 The SEC Board has assigned the Audit Committee, consisting of independent members, to review the quality of financial 

reports and the effectiveness of the internal control. The Audit Committee reports to the SEC Board and the Audit Committee’s 

Report addressing these matters also appears in the annual report.

 

 The SEC Board is of the opinion that the overall internal control over financial reporting of the SEC is effective and provides 

reasonable assurance on the reliability of the SEC’s financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2015. 

  

(Mr. Rapee Sucharitakul)

Secretary-General

(Mr. Voravidh Champeeratana)

Chairman
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT 2015

 The Audit Committee performs duties pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Act B.E.2535 (1992) and the Audit  

Committee Charter, which include supervision and oversight of the SEC management in accordance with the Securities and 

Exchange Act, other laws related to the capital market, other applicable laws and regulations and the SEC governance, including 

code of ethics and anti-corruption policy, and provides independent recommendations on good governance, risk management 

and internal control. This is to ensure the SEC operation is appropriate, efficient and effective. 

 Appointed by the SEC Board, the 2015 Audit Committee consisted of three independent expert members of the SEC Board, 

namely Somchai Kuvijitsuwan as chair with Vikrom Koompirochana and Sopawadee Lertmanaschai as members. 

 In 2015, the Audit Committee convened 12 scheduled meetings, the results of the SEC operation as recommended by the 

Audit Committee were monitored, besides the minutes of the meetings are fully and clearly recorded. The Audit Committee also 

had a session with the Risk Management Committee to assure that risk management and internal audit activities kept in line and 

another session with the external auditors to enhance auditors’ independence. 

 The Audit Committee reported to the SEC Board, the quarterly performance and the annual results of the group performance 

evaluation. 

The Audit Committee’s Performance 

 In supporting the SEC board’s supervision and oversight of the SEC administration, the Audit Committee discharged  

key responsibilities in 2015 as follows:  

 
 1. Financial Reporting Review

 The Audit Committee reviewed the SEC financial reports and assessed the effectiveness of the internal control over financial  

reporting to assure that the SEC has established and maintained appropriate, adequate and effective internal control over  

financial reporting, and that the financial statements are accurate and complete and have been prepared in accordance with the 

Thai Financial Reporting Standards.

 2.  Internal Control and Compliance with Applicable Laws                                    
 In consistent with the international practices stipulated by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway 

Commission (“COSO”), the Audit Committee in 2015 reviewed the internal audit reports on the effectiveness, adequacy and  

appropriateness of internal control, risk management, compliance with applicable laws and standards of operations related to:  

(1) audit process of limited brokerage, dealing, underwriting (LBDU), (2) compliance with the Notification of the Electronic Transaction 

Commission on Policy and Practice Statement of Government Information Security B.E.2553 (2010), (3) public offering of shares 

process, (4) assessment of IT security by external assessor, (5) the procurement of the SEC Office Building project administration, 

(6) administration and management of the SEC’s website,  and (7) handling of complaints against regulated entities. 
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 3. Risk Management

 The Audit Committee placed an importance on risk management by recommending that significant risks must be part of  

the SEC’s corporate plan, and the KPI of the executives must be linked to enterprise risk management to assure the  

effectiveness. In addition, a risk-based audit plan must be aligned with the SEC’s enterprise risk management and strategic  

plan. There are also meetings with the Risk Management Committee to discuss and comment on the SEC’s enterprise risk 

management. 

 4. SEC Governance 

 In 2015, the Audit Committee reviewed the SEC’s good governance. Specifically, the Audit Committee participated with  

the Remuneration Sub-Committee considering a roadmap for the SEC’s sustainable development as well as approving the  

performance evaluation approach for the SEC’s Secretary-General. The Audit Committee also proposed the appointment of 

the New CG Sub-Committee for the SEC’s governance development. In addition, the Audit Committee considered the SEC’s 

governance reports as follows: (1) the self-assessment report of the CAC project on the SEC’s Anti-Corruption Policy, (2) the 

audit reports on reporting of securities and derivatives holding of the Capital Market Supervisory Board members, (3) the  

results of the evaluation of the SEC’s internal control according to the regulation of the State Audit Commission, (4) the revision 

of the Audit Committee Charter and the Internal Audit Charter, and (5) the results of the evaluation of the Audit Committee’s 2015 

annual group performance which showed an overall excellence.  

 5. Internal Audit Supervision

 The Audit Committee approved the annual audit plan and supervised the internal audit performance pursuant to the annual 

audit plan by monitoring quarterly and annual performance, and gave recommendations for improving quality and adding value to 

the internal audit performance pursuant to the professional standards of the Institute of Internal Auditors and relevant institutions. 

The Audit Committee also approved the Key Performance Indicators development for internal audit activities. 

 Upon completion of its responsibilities over the year, the Audit Committee is of the opinion that the SEC internal 

control	 system	as	a	whole	was	adequate	and	 functioned	properly.	 	 For	 the	areas	which	 required	 improvement,	 the	

SEC has continuously taken remedy actions. The SEC has also performed its duties completely in compliance with the  

applicable laws and regulations and has laid out a good corporate governance policy that is complete and in line with 

international standards. 

	 Additionally,	the	SEC	financial	statements	have	been	prepared	in	accordance	with	the	Thai	Financial	Reporting	

Standards, appropriate accounting policies have been used, due care has been exercised in forming judgments and  

making	 reasonable	 estimations,	 and	 information	of	 significance	has	been	adequately	disclosed	 in	 the	notes	 to	 the	 

financial	statements.	

(Somchai  Kuvijitsuwan)

       Chair of the Audit Committee
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR
(UNOFFICIAL TRANSLATION)    

To the Minister of Finance
 The Office of the Auditor General (OAG) has audited the accompanying financial statements of the Securities and  

Exchange Commission (SEC), which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2015, and the statement 

of comprehensive revenues and expenses, statement of changes in fund balances and statement of cash flows for the year 

then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
 Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Thai 

Financial Reporting Standard, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation 

of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
 The OAG’s responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on the OAG’s audit. The OAG  

conducted its audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that the auditor complies with 

ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 

free from material misstatement.

 An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial  

statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material  

misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor  

considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design  

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the  

effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used 

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 

financial statements.

 The OAG believes that the audit evidence the auditor has obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

audit opinion.

Opinion
 In the OAG’s opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of SEC as at  

December 31, 2015, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Thai Financial 

Reporting Standards.

(Mrs. Sarunya  Toneon)

Auditor In-charge

(Miss  Khamanat  Jitraviriyakul)

Director of Auditor Office
Office of the Auditor General

February 25, 2016
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 Unit: Baht

     Note  2015  2014  January 1, 2014 

         (Restated)  (Restated) 

Assets 
Current assets

 Cash and cash equivalents 5.1 132,507,169.19   225,747,200.25  106,819,548.07

 Short-term investments 5.2, 5.3  5,106,559,037.64   4,673,487,817.76 4,322,813,549.73

 Accrued revenues 5.4  458,784,929.44   476,433,206.15  425,761,854.79 

 Receivable-The Revenue Department   -          -          2,627,595.35

 Other current assets 5.5  12,350,620.36   9,724,690.62  12,754,966.25 
    Total current assets   5,710,201,756.63   5,385,392,914.78  4,870,777,514.19

Non-current assets     
 Loans to employees   8,204,022.10   8,433,560.00  12,974,814.07

 Property, plant and equipment  5.6  1,112,790,339.76   1,165,406,191.46  1,206,748,899.56

 Intangible assets 5.7 63,834,774.37   40,835,819.02  32,811,513.86

 Other non-current assets   472,637.34   256,752.76  9,003,202.76 
    Total non-current assets   1,185,301,773.57   1,214,932,323.24  1,261,538,430.25

Total assets   6,895,503,530.20   6,600,325,238.02  6,132,315,944.44

      
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.    

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION, THAILAND 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2015
(UNOFFICIAL TRANSLATION)
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Unit: Baht

     Note  2015  2014  January 1, 2014 

         (Restated)  (Restated) 

Liabilities and funds   
Current liabilities      
 Accounts payable   18,758,174.05  55,891,580.47  112,677,576.93 
 Accrued Expenses   29,901,090.66  26,970,804.51  33,323,442.89

 Payable-The Revenue Department   7,532,347.30  5,286,100.10  -

 Other current liabilities  2,770,059.37  1,351,734.94  4,210,570.45

   Total current liabilities  58,961,671.38  89,500,220.02  150,211,590.27

Non-current liabilities     
 Employee benefit obligations 5.8 344,909,853.04  276,143,735.54  182,246,884.18 

 Other non-current liabilities  19,346,650.65  21,530,389.29  20,560,033.58

   Total non-current liabilities  364,256,503.69 297,674,124.83  202,806,917.76 

Total liabilities  423,218,175.07  387,174,344.85  353,018,508.03

Funds       
 Initial capital  1,250,532,337.10  1,250,532,337.10  1,250,532,337.10

 Special reserve for capital market development 5.9.1  1,510,104,631.81  1,447,823,111.27   1,392,630,654.27

 Reserve for a permanent parking building 5.9.3 500,000,000.00   271,214,796.79  -

 General reserve 5.9.4  2,878,568,118.12  2,765,562,994.26  2,636,073,505.89 

 Cumulative results of revenues over expenses   283,687,139.00  404,071,847.61  482,291,115.16

 Other components of funds 5.10 49,393,129.10   73,945,806.14  17,769,823.99

Total funds   6,472,285,355.13  6,213,150,893.17  5,779,297,436.41 

Total liabilities and funds  6,895,503,530.20   6,600,325,238.02  6,132,315,944.44

      
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.    

(Mr. Rapee Sucharitakul)

Secretary-General 

(Mrs. Sureerut Suradecha)

Director, Finance and 

General Administration Department

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION, THAILAND

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2015
(UNOFFICIAL TRANSLATION)
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    Unit: Baht

     Note 2015 2014 

       (Restated)

Revenues     
 Fee income 5.11.1  835,824,026.31   744,693,351.58 

 Information service income  132,135.32   191,985.00 

 Deposit interest income  5,054,030.56   5,956,092.47 

 Investment income 5.11.2 78,337,123.74   142,039,393.66

 Contribution from the Stock Exchange of Thailand 5.11.3 455,700,283.19   470,482,618.45 

 Other income  2,771,245.99  5,829,679.09

Total revenues   1,377,818,845.11    1,369,193,120.25  

Expenses     
 Human resources expenses   711,437,410.97   670,394,865.71 

 Administrative expenses   289,414,446.87   267,658,055.02 

 SEC Board and sub-committees remuneration 5.12 99,309,722.40   89,349,872.45 

Total expenses  1,100,161,580.24   1,027,402,793.18 

Revenues over expenses from operating activities   277,657,264.87   341,790,327.07  

Revenues and expenses for capital market development 5.13   

 Revenues for capital market development   34,775,319.40   79,299,772.02 

 Expenses for capital market development   28,745,445.27   17,018,251.48 

Revenues over expenses for capital market development   6,029,874.13   62,281,520.54  

Revenues over expenses  283,687,139.00  404,071,847.61 

Other comprehensive revenues and expenses    
 Item that may be reclassified to profit or loss :  
   Gain (loss) on change in value of available-for-sale investments  (24,552,677.04)  56,175,982.15 

 Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss :

    Actuarial losses               -    (26,394,373.00)

Other comprehensive revenues over (under) expenses for the year  (24,552,677.04)  29,781,609.15 

Total comprehensive revenues over expenses  259,134,461.96   433,853,456.76 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION, THAILAND  

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE 
REVENUES AND EXPENSES   
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015
(UNOFFICIAL TRANSLATION)
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Unit: Baht

      2015 2014

Cash flows from operating activities    
  Revenues over expenses  283,687,139.00  404,071,847.61 

  Adjustments to reconcile revenues over expenses to

     net cash from (used in) operating activities

   Interest income  (121,044,911.60) (120,616,276.16)

   Dividend income   (26,772,549.32) (21,865,913.13)

   Loss (Gain) on sales of investments   34,714,942.26  (81,092,692.43)

   Gain on sales of computer equipment  (99,999.00)  -        
   Loss on sales of property, plant and equipment   434,603.64   -        
   Depreciation and amortization   93,966,048.05   88,276,968.85 

   Employee benefit expense   70,262,066.00   67,959,529.00 

  Revenues over expenses from operating activities    
   before changing in operating assets and liabilities   335,147,339.03   336,733,463.74 

Operating assets (increase) decrease    
   Short-term investments  (5,491,724.00)  9,633,600.00 

   Accrued revenues  17,483,494.27  (52,203,614.36)

   Advances  (1,205,269.61) (130,856.51)

   Receivable-The Revenue Department   -          7,295,543.68 

   Other current assets  (1,342,764.33)  3,161,132.14 

   Loans to employees   229,537.90   4,541,254.07 
   Receivable-contract deposit  (215,884.58)  8,746,450.00 

Operating liabilities increase (decrease)    
   Accounts payable   309,829.06   926,260.61 

   Accrued expenses   2,930,286.15  (6,352,638.38)

   Unearned revenues  (50,000.00)  121,775.00 

   Payable-The Revenue Department   2,246,247.20   618,151.77 

   Other current liabilities   1,340,428.63  (2,920,610.51)

   Payable-contract deposit   50,000.00  (60,000.00)

   Employee benefit obligations  (1,495,948.50) (457,050.64)

Net cash flow from operating activities   349,935,571.22  309,652,860.61 

The accompanying notes are an integal part of the financial statements.

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION, THAILAND  

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015
(UNOFFICIAL TRANSLATION)
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        Unit: Baht

      2015 2014

Cash flows from investing activities    
  Proceeds from private funds   -     69,189,440.47 
  Investments in private funds  (439,494,984.46) (462,113,577.55)

  Proceeds from withdrawal fixed deposits   30,000,000.00   94,000,000.00 

  Payment of investment in short-term bonds  (34,867,998.20)  -       

  Interest received  121,209,694.04   122,148,539.16 

  Dividend received  26,772,549.32   21,865,913.13 

  Net proceeds from sale of investments  (34,714,942.26)  81,092,692.43 

  Proceeds from (Payment of) deposit and guarantees  (2,183,738.64)  970,355.71 

  Proceeds from sale of computer equipment   100,000.00   -       
  Acquisition of  property, plant and equipment  (28,207,116.57) (27,013,372.72)

  Acquisition of intangible assets  (32,050,310.45) (13,657,600.00)

  Payment of investment liabilities  (5,207,748.80) (9,664,304.00)

  Payment of property, plant and equipment  (44,531,006.26) (67,543,295.06)

Net cash flow used in investing activities  (443,175,602.28) (190,725,208.43)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  (93,240,031.06) 118,927,652.18  
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year   225,747,200.25   106,819,548.07 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year   132,507,169.19   225,747,200.25 

Supplemental cash flow information    

 Items not effecting cash flow    
   Payable for purchase securities   7,769,190.26   5,207,748.80 

   Payable for purchase of property, plant and   4,676,913.31  14,287,593.19 

   equipment and intangible assets

   Total  12,446,103.57   19,495,341.99 

     
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION, THAILAND  

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 
(UNOFFICIAL TRANSLATION)
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1. General information
 The Securities and Exchange Commission, Thailand (SEC) was established on May 16, 1992 under the Securities and 

Exchange Act B.E. 1992 (SEA). Its responsibilities are to supervise and develop the Thai capital market in the following areas:

	 •	 	 	 	 	 	

	 •	 	 	 	 	

	 •	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 •	 	 	 	 	 	

	 •	 	 	 	 	 	

 The SEC is located at 333/3, Vibhavadi Road, Chom Phon, Chatuchak, Bangkok 10900.

2.  Basis of preparation of financial statements
 2.1 Financial statements 

  The SEC’s financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the accounting standards of the Federation of 

Accounting Professions under the Accounting Act B.E 2000, including the accounting standards under the Accounting Professions 

Act B.E 2004 and interpretations of accounting standards promulgated by the Federation of Accounting Professions (FAP). The 

financial statements are stated at cost on an accrual basis except when stated otherwise. In addition, the accounting policies and 

methods of computation are consistent with those applied in the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2014.

 2.2 New accounting standards, new financial reporting standards, new interpretations of financial 

reporting standards and amended accounting standards 

  FAP has issued the accounting standards, financial reporting standards and interpretations of accounting standards 

and financial reporting standards. Effective for periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016 and the SEC has not applied the 

following accounting standards and interpretations before the standards come into effect:

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION, THAILAND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015
(UNOFFICIAL TRANSLATION)
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            Effective Date

 The Conceptual Framework of Financial Reporting (revised 2015)    1 January 2016

 Accounting Standards 

 TAS 1   (revised 2015)  Presentation of Financial Statements    1 January 2016

 TAS 2   (revised 2015) Inventories    1 January 2016

 TAS 7   (revised 2015) Statement of Cash Flows    1 January 2016

 TAS 8   (revised 2015)  Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors 1 January 2016

 TAS 10  (revised 2015)  Events after the Reporting Period    1 January 2016

 TAS 11  (revised 2015)  Construction Contracts    1 January 2016

 TAS 12  (revised 2015)  Income Taxes    1 January 2016

 TAS 16  (revised 2015) Property, Plant and Equipment    1 January 2016

 TAS 17  (revised 2015) Leases      1 January 2016

 TAS 18  (revised 2015) Revenue     1 January 2016

 TAS 19  (revised 2015) Employee Benefits    1 January 2016

 TAS 20  (revised 2015) Accounting for Government Grants and    1 January 2016 

       Disclosure of Government Assistance    

 TAS 21  (revised 2015) The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates   1 January 2016

 TAS 23  (revised 2015) Borrowing Costs    1 January 2016

 TAS 24  (revised 2015) Related Party Disclosures    1 January 2016

 TAS 26  (revised 2015) Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans  1 January 2016

 TAS 27  (revised 2015) Separate Financial Statements    1 January 2016

 TAS 28  (revised 2015) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures    1 January 2016

 TAS 29  (revised 2015) Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary    1 January 2016

       Economics : Disclosures    

 TAS 33  (revised 2015) Earnings per Share    1 January 2016

 TAS 34  (revised 2015) Interim Financial Reporting    1 January 2016

 TAS 36  (revised 2015) Impairment of Assets    1 January 2016

 TAS 37  (revised 2015) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and    1 January 2016 

       Contingent Assets    
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            Effective Date

 TAS 38  (revised 2015) Intangible Assets    1 January 2016

 TAS 40  (revised 2015) Investment Property    1 January 2016

 TAS 41     Agriculture    1 January 2016

 Financial Reporting Standards      Effective Date 

 TFRS 2  (revised 2015) Share-based Payment    1 January 2016

 TFRS 3  (revised 2015) Business Combinations    1 January 2016

 TFRS 4  (revised 2015) Insurance Contracts    1 January 2016

 TFRS 5  (revised 2015) Non-current Assets Held for Sale and    1 January 2016 

       Discontinued Operations    

 TFRS 6  (revised 2015) Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources   1 January 2016

 TFRS 8  (revised 2015) Operating segments    1 January 2016

 TFRS 10 (revised 2015) Consolidated Financial Statements    1 January 2016

 TFRS 11 (revised 2015) Joint Arrangements    1 January 2016

 TFRS 12 (revised 2015) Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities    1 January 2016

 TFRS 13 (revised 2015) Fair Value Measurement    1 January 2016

 Interpretations of Accounting Standards    Effective Date

 TSIC 10 (revised 2015) Government Assistance - No specific Relation    1 January 2016 

       to Operating Activities    

 TSIC 15 (revised 2015) Operating Leases – Incentives    1 January 2016

 TSIC 25 (revised 2015) Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an    1 January 2016 

       Entity or its Shareholders    

 TSIC 27 (revised 2015) Evaluating the Substance of Transactions in the    1 January 2016

       Legal Form of a Lease    

 TSIC 29 (revised 2015) Disclosures – Service Concession Arrangements   1 January 2016

 TSIC 31 (revised 2015) Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services  1 January 2016

 TSIC 32 (revised 2015) Intangible Assets – Web Site Costs    1 January 2016
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 Interpretations of Financial Reporting Standards    Effective Date

 TFRIC 1  (revised 2015) Changes in Existing Decommissioning,    1 January 2016 

       Restoration and Similar Liabilities    

 TFRIC 4  (revised 2015) Determining whether an Arrangement    1 January 2016 

       contains a Lease    

 Interpretations of Financial Reporting Standards     Effective Date

 TFRIC 5  (revised 2015) Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning,    1 January 2016

       Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds

 TFRIC 7  (revised 2015) Applying the Restatement Approach under TAS 29    1 January 2016

       (revised 2015) Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies 

 TFRIC 10  (revised 2015) Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment    1 January 2016

 TFRIC 12  (revised 2015) Service Concession Arrangements    1 January 2016

 TFRIC 13  (revised 2015) Customer Loyalty Programmes    1 January 2016

 TFRIC 14  (revised 2015) The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding   1 January 2016

       Requirements and their Interaction under TAS 19 Employee Benefits 

 TFRIC 15  (revised 2015) Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate    1 January 2016

 TFRIC 17  (revised 2015)  Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners    1 January 2016

 TFRIC 18  (revised 2015)  Transfers of Assets from Customers    1 January 2016

 TFRIC 20  (revised 2015)  Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of the Surface Mine  1 January 2016

 TFRIC 21  (revised 2015)  Levies     1 January 2016

 The SEC management has determined that the above accounting standards, financial reporting standards and  

interpretations will not significantly impact the financial statements being presented.

3. Significant accounting policies

 3.1 Cash and cash equivalents

  Cash and cash equivalents are cash on hand, check in transit, bank deposits with high liquidity (without restrictions 

on use), short-term highly liquid investments that are due within a period of three months or less from the date of acquisition, are 

readily convertible to know amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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 3.2 Investments

  3.2.1 Category of investments

      Investments in bank deposits and debt instruments held for less than one year are classified as short-term 

investments. The investments held for more than one year are classified as long-term investments.

      Investments in private funds considered as short-term investment fund is divided into two funds. The SEC 

has hired the asset management company that has been licensed by the SEC to manage these private funds. The funds are  

independently managed by the selected private fund managers to invest in marketable securities of both debt and equity  

instruments and in alternative investments.  

  3.2.2 Valuation for investments

      Investments in held-to-maturity debt securities are measured at amortized cost.

      The SEC private funds invest in marketable securities of both debt and equity instruments and in alternative 

investments which are classified as available-for-sale on the statement of financial position, and measured at fair value. The fair 

value of marketable equity instruments is based on the closed price on the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET) as at the date of 

financial position statement. 

      Changes in the carrying amount of the available-for-sale securities are recognized as gain or loss on changes 

in value of available-for-sale investments and presented under other comprehensive revenues and expenses on the statement of 

comprehensive revenues and expenses. 

      Cost of investments in debt and equity securities sold is calculated using the weighted average method. Gains 

or losses on disposal of investments are recognized in the statement of comprehensive revenues and expenses.

 3.3 Property, plant and equipment

  Land is stated at cost. Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated  

impairment losses (if any). 

  The costs include expenditures that are attributable to the acquisition of the assets. The cost of self-built asset  

comprises the cost of materials, direct labor and any costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition 

for their intended use. Software that controls the equipment and is integral to the functionality of the related equipment shall be 

capitalized as part of equipment.

  Parts of an item of property, plant and equipment having different consumption patterns or useful lives are recognized 

separately.
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  The gains or losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are the difference between the net  

disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets at the date of disposal and are recognized on a net basis as revenues 

or expenses in the statement of comprehensive revenues and expenses. 

  Subsequent costs due to replacements are recognized as a part of the carrying amount of property, plant and  

equipment if it is probable that SEC will obtain the future economic benefits associated with the replacements and the cost of the 

asset can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. Costs of the day-to-day maintenance 

of property, plant and equipment are expensed as incurred.

  Depreciation is allocated using the straight-line method, except for computer equipment that uses sum of the year 

digits method, over their estimated useful lives as follows: 

      Asset Class  The Useful Life

      Office building and buildings 5 - 35 years

       Furniture and fixtures  5 - 10 years

       Office equipment   5 - 10 years

       Vehicles and equipment         6 years

  Land and assets under construction are not depreciated.

  Depreciation method, the useful lives and residual values are reviewed at least at the end of each financial year and 

adjusted if appropriate. 

 3.4 Intangible assets

   Intangible assets include costs that are directly attributable to system development and licensed software products 

controlled by the SEC and are expected to generate future economic benefits beyond one year. They are stated at cost less 

accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses (if any). Cost of intangible assets comprises the purchase price 

and other directly attributable costs necessary to prepare the assets to be capable to operating as intended. The amortization 

amount is allocated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

      Asset Class  The Useful Life

      Licensed software fee  10 years

       System development costs    5 years
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 3.5  Impairment of assets

  The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed when there is any indication of impairment in value of the asset. If such 

indication exists, SEC shall estimate the recoverable amount of the asset. 

  An impairment losses are recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its  

recoverable amount. The impairment loss is recognized in the statement of comprehensive revenues and expenses, unless it 

reverses a previous revaluation credited to equity, in which case it is charged to equity.  

  When a decline in the fair value of an available-for-sale financial asset has been recognized directly in equity and there 

is objective evidence that the values of the assets are impaired, the cumulative losses that had been recognized directly in equity 

is recognized in the statement of comprehensive revenues and expenses. The amount of the cumulative loss that is recognized 

in the statement of comprehensive revenues and expenses is the difference between the acquisition cost and current fair value, 

less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized in the statement of comprehensive revenues and expenses.

 3.6  Employee benefits

  The SEC provides contributions to the provident fund for the post-employment benefits and other long-term employee 

benefits to which the employees are entitled as follows:    

  (a)   Post-employment benefit (Defined contribution plan)

      The SEC has established and registered a master fund, namely “Registered Provident Fund of the Securities 

and Exchange Commission” registered under Provident Fund Act B.E.1987 since August 9, 1993. The Fund’s investment policy 

has 3 options for members. Employees contribute 3 - 10 percent of their base salaries while the SEC contributes 10 percent to 

the provident fund. The provident fund has been managed by investment professional. Contributions from the SEC are recognized 

as an expense in the statement of comprehensive revenues and expenses in each accounting period as incurred.

  (b)   Post-employment benefit (Defined benefit plan)

      The SEC’s obligations concerning post employment benefits under “Defined benefit plan” and other long-term 

employee benefits are recognized in the financial statements based on calculations performed annually by a qualified actuary 

using the projected unit credit method. 

      The SEC’s liabilities concerning post-employment benefits and other long-term employee benefits as at  

January 1, 2011 were at 187.45 million baht. The SEC has recognized such liabilities using the straight-line method within  

5 years starting from effective date of TAS 19 and recognized obligations incurred in each year as an expense in the statement 

of comprehensive revenues and expenses.
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       Actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately under other comprehensive revenues and expenses in 

the statement of comprehensive revenues and expenses.

 

 3.7 Revenue recognition

  Major revenues of the SEC and revenue recognition are as follows:

  3.7.1 Fee income 

	 	 	 	 •	 	 Application	fees:	Revenue	is	recognized	when	application	form	and	fee	are	received	by	the	SEC.

		 	 	 	 •	 	 Registration	fees:	30	percent	of	the	minimum	fee	requirement	for	registration	is	recognized	when	the	SEC	received	 

registration statement together with the fee, and the remaining balance will be recognized when the registration statement becomes 

effective. The registration fee which is paid annually in proportion to the shareholders’ equity is recognized on an accrual basis. 

		 	 	 	 •	 	 License	fees	and	business	undertaking	fees:	Such	revenues	are	recognized	according	to	accrual	basis.

		 	 	 	 •	 	 Other	fees:	Revenue	is	recognized	when	request	form	and	fee	are	received	by	the	SEC.

  3.7.2 Contribution from the SET Under the SEA, for the purpose of facilitating the operation of the SEC at the rate 

specified by the SEC, is recognized on an accrual basis.

  3.7.3 Investment income or other income

		 	 	 	 •	 	 Interest	income	is	recognized	using	the	effective	interest	method	in	accordance	with	the	proportion	of	the	period.

		 	 	 	 •	 	 Dividend	income	is	recognized	when	the	SEC’s	right	to	receive	payments	is	established.

		 	 	 	 •	 	 Other	income	is	recognized	on	an	accrual	basis.

 

 3.8 Expenses recognition

  Expenses are recognized on an accrual basis.

 3.9 Financial risk management

  To manage investment risk, the SEC has a policy to specify its investment proportion at a risk level of VaRα0.05  =  

3 percent (a probability of less than 5 percent to have a loss more than 3 percent) and expected returns not lower than inflation 

rate. At least 60 percent of the portfolio is to be invested in low risk assets comprising local and foreign bank deposits and debt 

securities with no currency exchange risk while the remaining portion can be invested in high risk assets comprising local and 

foreign bank deposits, debt securities, equity securities, property funds, infrastructure funds, commodities funds and real estate 

investment funds.
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      Unit: Million Baht 

      As previously Adjusted As restated

      reported

Statement of Financial Position   
Balance as at January 1, 2014    
Funds    
   Special reserve for capital market development  1,422.56 (29.93) 1,392.63

   General reserve  2,689.28     (53.21)   2,636.07

   Other components of funds  (65.37) 83.14 17.77

 3.10  Operating leases

  Expenditures under operating leases are recognized in the statement of comprehensive revenues or expenses on a 

straight line basis over the lease term. Potential rents that must be paid during the remaining period of the lease under criteria 

set out in the rental agreement must be included in the calculation of the minimum lease payments.

 

 3.11  The fair value

  The SEC uses the market approach to measure their assets and liabilities that are required to be measured at fair value 

by relevant financial reporting standards, except that the cost approach or income approach is used when there is no active 

market or a quoted market price is not available.

  Fair value hierarchy

  In applying the above-mentioned valuation techniques, the SEC maximizes the use of relevant observable inputs in 

accordance with Financial Reporting Standard No.13 “Fair Value Measurement”. This standard establishes a fair value hierarchy 

that categorizes inputs into three levels as follows:

  Level 1  Use of quoted market prices in an observable active market for such assets or liabilities 

  Level 2  Use of other observable inputs for such assets or liabilities, whether directly or indirectly

  Level 3  Use of unobservable inputs such as the SEC’s estimates of future cash flows

4. Corrections of accounting errors and effects on the adjusted accounts
  The SEC has accounting error correction about the recognition of revaluation of securities available for sale recorded since 

2011, that impact on revenue over expenses in the same year was higher amount of 83.14 million baht and other components 

of funds (Gain on revaluation of available-for-sale securities) lower as the same amount. As a result, general reserve and special 

reserve for capital market development as at December 31, 2013 and 2014 were over. Additionally, the corrections affected the 

investment income and other income as at December 31, 2014. Also, the SEC has restated the adjustment account as follows:
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   Unit: Million Baht 

      As previously Adjusted As restated

      reported

 5.1 Cash and cash equivalents

              Unit: Million Baht 

             2015  2014

 Cash, check in transit and petty cash     0.42 0.62

 Bank deposits   41.36 80.74

 Bonds and treasury   90.73 144.39

 Total    132.51 225.75

5. Supplementary information 

Statement of Financial Position    
Balance as at December 31, 2014    
Funds    
    Special reserve for capital market development  1,476.25 (28.43) 1,447.82

    General reserve  2,820.27     (54.71)   2,765.56

    Other components of funds  (9.19) 83.14 73.95

Statement of Comprehensive Revenues and Expenses 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014    
Revenues    
   Investment income  144.18 (2.14) 142.04

    Other income  5.88 (0.05) 5.83

Revenues and expenses for capital market development    
 Revenues for capital market development  77.11 2.19 79.30
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 5.2  Short-term investments      

            Unit: Million Baht 

Managed by private fund managers   
 - Current and saving deposits  
 - Fixed deposits  
 - Receivables from the sale of securities  
 - Investment in debt and equity instruments and alternative investments 
 - Accrued interest and dividend      
      
Managed by the SEC   
 - Fixed deposits (due date within 1 year)

 - Short-term bonds  
       

Total       

 Fixed deposits with Government Housing Bank (GHB) with due within a year were used as collateral for housing loan of 

employee that were borrowed from GHB. The deposit amount was 114.46 million baht and 108.97 million baht as at the end of 

2015 and 2014, respectively.

   Investment in debt and equity instruments and alternative investments

     Unit: Million Baht

      2015    2014

     Cost  Fair Value Cost  Fair Value

Debt instruments 3,506.20 3,573.44 3,440.85 3,492.31

Equity instruments 771.73 741.74 574.19 583.15

Alternative investments    135.41 147.55    104.48    113.20

     4,413.34 4,462.73 4,119.52 4,188.66

Accrued interest from debt instruments 27.42 27.42 27.00 27.00

Accrued dividend from equity instruments 1.16 1.16 0.22 0.22

 Alternative investments are investments in property funds, infrastructure funds, commodities funds and real estate  

investment trust.

2015

3.48

235.00

10.77

4,462.73

    30.25

4,742.23

   329.46

34.87

364.33

5,106.56

2014

3.10

100.00

0.54

4,188.66

    27.22

4,319.52

   353.97

    -

353.97

4,673.49
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      Debt instruments consisted of :

  Unit: Million Baht 

       2015 2014

Available-for-sale securities   
   Bonds   1,762.85 1,859.25

   Debentures      1,764.30   1,521.23

   Promissory notes and other debt instruments       46.29          111.83

Total     3,573.44 3,492.31

 5.3  Fair value measurement of financial instrument

  The SEC had the following financial assets that were disclosed at fair value using different levels of inputs as at December 

31, 2015, as follows:

   Unit: Million Baht 

      Level 1 Level 2 Total

Investments in available-for-sale securities   
 Equity instruments  742.09 (0.35) 741.74

 Debt instruments         - 3,573.44 3,573.44

 Alternative investments  147.55             - 147.55

 The valuation and inputs for Level 2 valuation

 1. The fair value of Thai Baht and foreign bonds were determined based on market price in Thai Bond Market Association 

(Thai BMA) and market interest rate in Bloomberg.

 2. The fair value of derivatives (Swap and Forward Contracts) were determined based on the price calculated by  

counterparty banks. The reference price can be observed in Bloomberg. (Swap Rate, Interest Rate, Exchange Rate, etc.) 

 During the year, there were no transfers within the fair value hierarchy.
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 5.4  Accrued revenues

 Unit: Million Baht 

              2015 2014

Interest income from saving and fixed deposits      1.30 1.66

Interest income from fixed deposits with Government Housing Bank   0.88 0.97

Interest income from BOT bonds   0.20 0.35

Contribution from the SET   101.78 138.32

Business undertaking fee   353.63 333.57

Annual registration statements fee   0.93 1.50

Others         0.06 0.06

Total     458.78 476.43

 5.5  Other current assets

              Unit: Million Baht 

              2015 2014

Prepaid expenses   7.07 5.36

Value added tax pending receipt of tax invoice   2.70 3.12

Advances    2.21 1.01

Office supplies   0.23 0.19

Miscellaneous receivables   0.14 0.04

Total     12.35  9.72
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 5.6  Property, plant and equipment

   Unit: Million Baht 

      Balance as at   Balance as at

     Dec 31, 2014 Increase Decrease  Dec 31, 2015

Property, plant and equipment (Cost)    
Land    136.75      -   - 136.75

Office building 819.24      5.42 - 824.66

Buildings  0.72      -   (0.47) 0.25

Leasehold improvement 0.06      0.02 - 0.08

Furniture and fixtures  59.48 2.81 (0.17) 62.12

Office equipment  393.10 24.48 (3.27) 414.31

Vehicles and equipment    23.14 -   -    23.14

Total    1,432.49 32.73  (3.91) 1,461.31

Less  Accumulated depreciation

  Office building and buildings    (42.61)    (23.85) 0.04    (66.42)

  Leasehold improvement    (0.02)    (0.01) -    (0.03)

  Furniture and fixtures    (19.37)    (8.55) 0.17    (27.75)

  Office equipment    (187.53)    (51.65) 3.26    (235.92)

  Vehicles and equipment      (17.55)   (0.85)        -      (18.40)

Total      (267.08)  (84.91)     3.47     (348.52)

Property, plant and equipment 1,165.41 (52.18) (0.44) 1,112.79

Depreciation  80.19   84.91

 The SEC on September 9, 2010 obtained legal ownership of the land and building in the amount of 690 million baht. The 

building was renovated and decorated to be a new office building of the SEC. Such building began using on July 2, 2013.

  The gross values of the property, plant and equipment that are fully depreciated but still in use are 8.25 million baht and 

15.04 million baht as at the end of 2015 and 2014, respectively.
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 5.8  Employee benefit obligations 

   Unit: Million Baht 

              2015 2014

Unrecognized transitional obligations as at January 1   37.49 74.98

Recognized as expenses for the year   (37.49) (37.49)

Unrecognized transitional obligations as at December 31      -    37.49

Changes in present value of employee benefit 

 obligations during period   
Present value of obligations at the beginning of year   276.14 182.25

Recognition of transitional obligations   37.49 37.49

Less Benefits paid     (1.49)      (0.46)

Current service cost   19.33 18.30

Interest cost       13.44   12.17

Actuarial losses      -  26.39

Obligations at the end of year    344.91 276.14

 5.7  Intangible assets

   Unit: Million Baht 

      Balance as at   Balance as at

      Dec 31, 2014 Increase Decrease   Dec 31, 2015

Intangible assets    
Licensed software 86.33 9.95      - 96.28

System developments   7.53 1.64      -   9.17

CIP-Licensed software  2.18  20.27      -  22.45

CIP-System developments - 0.19 - 0.19

Total       96.04 32.05 - 128.09

Less    Accumulated amortization

   Licensed software    (47.93)     (8.72)     -    (56.65)

   System developments    (7.27)     (0.33)   -    (7.60)

Total      (55.20)     (9.05)  -    (64.25)

Intangible assets 40.84 23.00 - 63.84

Amortization  8.08   9.05
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       Unit: Million Baht 

              2015 2014

Amount recognized on statement of comprehensive of revenues  

 and expenses for the year ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

Recognition of transitional obligations   37.49 37.49

Current service cost   19.33 18.30

Interest cost      13.44   12.17

Total      70.26 67.96

Actuarial assumptions   
 Discount rate   4.3% 4.3%

 Inflation rate   3.0% 3.0%

 Salary increase rate   5-12% 5-12%

 Medical inflation rate   6.0% 6.0%

 Unit: Million Baht 

                      Medical inflation rate  

       5% 7%

Unrecognized transitional obligations as at January 1   36.40 36.40

Recognized as expenses for the year      (36.40) (36.40)

Unrecognized transitional obligations as at December 31       - -    

Components of cost and medical benefit

 plan obligations   
Recognition of obligations during changes   36.40 36.40

Current service cost   13.76 25.61

Interest cost        9.97 17.58

Total      60.13 79.59

Less Benefits paid      (1.49) (1.49)

Balance      58.64 78.10

Impact of medical inflation rate decrease or increase by 1 percent on the obligation under medical  

|benefit plan for 2015
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 5.9 Reserve 

 Minister of Finance has approved the SEC’s reserve under SEA section 26 according to the document of Minister of Finance 

No. 1007/21406 dated December 7, 2011 and No. 1007/19634 dated November 21, 2013. The rules and method to reserve 

are as follows:

 1.  Special reserve for capital market development is to set aside as priority before other reserves in the amount equal 

to net amount of revenues to the Capital Market Development Fund consisting of the income from investment for the capital  

market development, administrative fine of Derivatives Act and the Trust for Transactions in Capital Market Act, less Capital market  

development expenses such as the knowledge and understanding for the individuals involved through various media, etc.  

The set aside amount must not exceed the SEC’s profit (revenues over expenses) in each year.

  2.  Special purpose reserves are as follow

   2.1 Reserve for a permanent office building is to set aside after special reserve for capital market development. In  

accordance with the SEC resolution at the Meeting No.7/2012 dated July 5, 2012, the SEC board increased amount of the reserve 

from 850 million baht to 1,254.70 million baht. It has fully reserved as at the end of 2014.

   2.2 Reserve for a permanent parking building is to set aside after reserve for a permanent office building until the full 

amount of 500 million baht is reserved. It has fully reserved as at the end of 2015.

 3.  General reserve is the last type of reserve to be set aside from the remaining profit (revenues over expenses) after special 

reserve for capital market development and special purpose reserves until the full amount of 4,107 million baht is reserved. 

 If the set aside amount has reached the amount approved by the Minister of Finance, the remaining revenue shall be sent 

to the Government under SEA section 27. And such reserve rule was effective since the reserve of the financial result of the year 

2012. Types of reserve are as follows:

  5.9.1  Special reserve for capital market development

 Unit: Million Baht 

       2015 2014

        (Restated)

Beginning balance   1,447.82 1,392.63

Add  Additional allocation   62.28 53.69

  Adjustment of return on investment        -    1.50

Total     1,510.10 1,447.82 
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  5.9.2  Reserve for a permanent office building

  Unit: Million Baht 

       2015 2014

Beginning balance              -            -

Add  Additional allocation            - 157.39 

       - 157.39 

Less Transfer to general reserve   -    (157.39)

Total     -  -

  5.9.4  General reserve 
  Unit: Million Baht 

       2015 2014

        (Restated)  
Beginning balance   2,765.56 2,636.07

Add  Transfer from reserve for a permanent office building             -   157.38 
  Transfer from revenue over expenses of the year 2014      113.01  -

       2,878.57 2,793.45

Less Actuarial losses    -   (26.39)

  Adjustment of Return on investment     -    (1.50)

Total     2,878.57 2,765.56

  5.9.3  Reserve for a permanent parking building

  Unit: Million Baht 

       2015 2014

Beginning balance              271.21  -

Add  Additional allocation     228.79 271.21

Total     500.00 271.21

 As at December 31, 2015, the reserve for a permanent parking building has set aside fully but not yet implemented.
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 5.10  Other components of funds

 Unit: Million Baht 

       2015 2014

        (Restated)

Beginning balance   73.95        17.77

Add  Gain on revaluation of available-for-sale securities   - 56.18

Less Loss on revaluation of available-for-sale securities   (24.55) -

Ending balance               49.40  73.95

 Other components of fund balances in the amount of 49.40 million baht were differences arising from value changes between 

carrying amount and fair value of investments in private funds in accordance with the SEC accounting policy in note 3.2.

 5.11  Revenues

  5.11.1  Fee income 
 Unit: Million Baht 

       2015 2014

Annual fees from

 Securities businesses   262.94 251.06

 Asset management businesses   142.83 115.79

 Listed company   88.02 80.01

 Limited brokerage, dealing and  underwriting of investment units (LBDU) businesses 5.78 12.97

 Others      38.00 38.50

Total      537.57 498.33

Other fees    298.25 246.36

Total     835.82 744.69

 General reserve amounting to 2,878.57 million baht was including the set aside amount of 1,623.87 million baht.  

(Minister of Finance has approved the SEC’s general reserve from revenue over expenses until the full amount of 4,107 million 

baht is reserved.) Due to office building payment, the reserve for a permanent office building amount 1,254.70 million baht was 

transferred to general reserve.
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  5.11.2  Investment incomes

 Unit: Million Baht 

       2015 2014

        (Restated)

Income from investment in funds managed by private fund managers   
 Interest income   115.51 112.90

 Dividend income   26.77 21.86

 Gain (Loss) on sale of investments     (34.70)   76.50

Total      107.58 211.26

Income from direct investments      5.54    7.72

Total      113.12 218.98

Less Income from investment for capital market development1       (34.78)  (76.94)

Balance      78.34 142.04

 1 Income from investment for capital market development balance was excluding gain on exchange rate on sale of overseas 

investment in the amount of 1.68 million baht in 2014.

  5.11.3  Contribution from the Stock Exchange of Thailand

  Unit: Million Baht 

       2015 2014

Contribution collected based on   
 Trading value   430.62 445.58

 Listed company’s equity value   23.08 22.90

 Fixed rate       2.00     2.00

Total     455.70 470.48



78

 5.12  SEC Board and Sub-Committees’ remuneration

 Unit: Million Baht 

       2015 2014

Remuneration for commissioners and executives   
Remuneration for commissioners   
 Committees/Sub-committee benefits   20.27 18.96

Remuneration for executives   
 Salary and other short-term benefits   76.28 67.68

 Long-term benefits     2.76  2.71

Total     99.31 89.35

 5.13  Revenues and expenses for capital market development

 Unit: Million Baht 

       2015 2014

        (Restated)

Revenues for capital market development   
 Income from investment for capital market development   34.78 78.62 
 Administrative fines      -  0.68

Total     34.78 79.30

Expenses for capital market development   
 Financial literacy, investor education and other activities   (28.75) (17.02)

Total     6.03 62.28
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 5.14 Commitments and contingent liabilities 

 The SEC office and/or the SEC Board and/or Capital Market Supervisory Board were named in four pending administrative 

cases with claims amounting 210.37 million baht as follows:

 1.  The case involves the allegedly unlawful denial of the plaintiff’s name from listing on the publicly traded companies’  

executive list, maintained by the SEC Office with a 50 million baht claim. Such denial is based on the SEC Office’s opinion  

that the plaintiff possesses prohibited characteristics as specified by the SEC Notification. The case is dismissed by the Central 

Administrative Court and pending the Supreme Administrative Court’s consideration.

 2.  The second case, with a 159.89 million baht claim, involves the allegedly unlawful revocation of the SEC-approved  

auditor status. The case is dismissed by the Central Administrative Court and pending the Supreme Administrative Court’s  

consideration.

 3.  The third case, with 0.48 million baht claim, involves the alleged negligence to properly supervise the complaint about 

the price of the warrants to purchase shares of listed companies being significantly reduced. The case is pending the Central 

Administrative Court’s consideration.

 Nevertheless, due to the fact that the SEC Office and/or the SEC Board and/or Capital Market Supervisory Board have  

carried out their duties with prudence and care, strictly observing the established legal framework, on an equitable basis and  

not acting inconsistently with the law, they are confident that it is very likely that their cases will be successfully defended  

without any damages required to be paid. Therefore, the SEC has not recognized any Provision in the financial statements.

 5.15 Approval of financial statements

 Secretary-General of the SEC approved the financial statements on February 25, 2016.



80

 In 2015, the SEC had total revenues of 1,412.6 million 

baht while total expenses amounted to 1,128.9 million baht. 

Revenues exceeded expenses by 283.7 million baht, a decline 

of 120.4 million baht or 29.8%.

 The SEC typically earns revenues from several sources such 

as fee income from business operators and listed companies, 

subsidies from the Stock Exchange of Thailand, and income 

from investments. Overall, while revenues in 2015 were similar  

to 2014 with only a slight increase of 0.63%, the revenue  

structure for 2015 was noticeably different. License fee  

revenues from securities businesses rose as there were new 

entrants. Return from investments declined as the asset  

management company managing SEC’s investments had 

sold equities to restructure the investment portfolio. Subsidies 

received from the Stock Exchange of Thailand decreased in 

tandem with the market environment.

 On the expense side, the largest components were still 

personnel and operating expenses. Additionally, there were 

expenses stemming from implementation of various projects 

such as the “Being Money-Wise for the Bright Future” project, 

designed to disseminate financial knowledge to the public 

through various media channels. Survey results indicated  

the project had a satisfactory outreach. Other programs such  

as the “ASEAN CG Scorecard” project advocated good  

corporate governance in the Thai capital market. This project 

promoted the assessment of corporate governance among  

Thai listed companies using ASEAN benchmarks. 23 Thai  

companies ranked among the top 50 best companies.  

Furthermore, we hosted the OECD – Asian Roundtable 

on Corporate Governance in 2015 in conjunction with 

the Stock Exchange of Thailand and the Thai Institute of  

Directors. This event showcased the Thai capital market’s  

commendable strength and progress in the area of  

corporate governance. Other projects aimed to improve the 

effectiveness of general shareholders meeting such as the 

“AGM Checklist” project administered by the Thai Investors  

Association to uphold shareholder’s rights and equitable  

treatment. 

 The 7% overall increase in total expenses in 2015  

stemmed mostly from rises in personnel expenses.

 The SEC’s operating assets include property, building 

premises, and equipment worth 1,112.8 million baht and  

there are plans to acquire a parking space to facilitate visitors  

and SEC staff. 500 million baht has been reserved for this  

purpose. Note that currently the SEC has no contingent  

liabilities.

 In 2015, we also made an accounting adjustment  

related to the value of available for sale securities, where  

gains were incorrectly booked in 2011 since these  

investments were understated by 83.14 mil l ion. The  

discrepancy was adjusted in the revised 2014 financial  

statements. For 2016, the SEC forecasts revenues of  

1,148.0 million baht and expenses of 1,205.6 million baht 

based on assumptions that fee structures remain the same as 

2015. Fees applicable to securities companies are poised to 

be revised in 2016, which marks the end of a 3-year period 

agreed with business operators. 

 In summary, the SEC remains financially sound, with 

sufficient resources to implement work plans and adequate 

reserves to ensure sustainable operations in the long run.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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THE ECONOMY AND CAPITAL MARKETS IN 2015 AND
THE OUTLOOK FOR 2016

The Global Economy

 The global economy in 2015 grew at a slower pace than 

the year before. Although the major economies, namely the 

US, Europe, and Japan, were recovering, progress was frail 

and uneven. Each chose to pursue different monetary policies.  

The US’s strong recovery prompted the Federal Reserve  

(Fed) to raise interest rates for the first time in seven years. 

Emerging markets, on the other hand, experienced slower 

growth in 2015 as they faced falling commodity prices and 

China’s slowdown. Concern over China’s economy, downward  

pressure on oil prices and the anticipated upswing in US  

interest rates made currencies more volatile and triggered  

unprecedented capital outflows from emerging markets.

 29 August 2015, subsequently dubbed “Black Monday,” 

saw a sharp drop in China’s stock markets that led to heavy 

selling of stocks across the world. Fears mounted over  

divergence of a slowing economy in China and rising equity  

market underpinned by speculative trading. As such, the  

Chinese authorities intervened in the market with various 

measures to stall the downward slide; they prohibited major 

shareholders from divesting and restricted margin loans. In the 

latter half of 2015, the global economy and financial markets  

continued to be pressured by continued falling oil and  

commodity prices. With rising risk in the global economy 

and financial markets, investors trimmed risky assets and  

switched into safer securities such as US, Japan, and German 

treasury bonds. As a result, their long term yields stayed low 

despite the Fed signaling the beginning of an upward interest 

rate cycle with a 0.25% hike in December.

 The International Monetary Fund expects the global 

economy to grow by 3.6% in 2016, an improvement over last 

year’s growth rate of 3.1%. Growth is forecasted to be primarily  

driven by the US and Europe. Nevertheless, considerable 

downside risks exist to threaten global growth. China’s attempts  

to fix its economic structure could compromise growth there.  

Volatile commodity prices, the tempo of the Fed’s rate hikes  

and geopolitical risk, can all be headwinds against emerging 

markets’ economic growth. Global economic and market 

risks will transmit through trade and investment, interest  

rates, exchange rates and asset prices. Amidst this volatile  

environment, investors could turn risk averse and switch out of 

risky assets; the tendency for capital outflows from emerging 

markets may continue.
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Economic Growth in 2015 and Forecast 

for 2016
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and Forecast 2016-2018
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The Thai Economy

 The Thai economy grew 2.8% in 2015, markedly better than the  

growth rate of 0.8% achieved a year earlier. The key driving force was a  

resurgence of consumer spending that responded positively to the  

government’s stimulus and softening of oil prices. Government investment 

expanded considerably, coupled with strong growth from tourism. However, 

export revenues were lackluster due to the impact of the slowdown of key 

trading partners such as China and ASEAN, as well as weaker prices.

 Economic stability remained satisfactory with inflation low and a  

current account surplus. On capital flows, Thailand saw a net outflow of 

18,788 million USD because of foreign net sales of Thai securities, both  

equities and fixed income. There was also the expansion of Foreign  

Investment Funds and direct investments abroad by Thai companies.  

Capital outflows and the appreciation of the USD caused the Thai baht 

to lose 9.5% of its value in 2015 to 36.03 baht per USD. Nevertheless,  

Thailand’s position remained solid given moderate foreign debt exposure 

and ample foreign reserves.

 For 2016, the National Economic and Social Development Board 

(NESDB) expects the Thai economy to expand 3.3% with a range of  

between 2.8-3.8% compared to 2014. Growth will be assisted by  

government spending stimulus, accelerated budget spending and  

investment in large infrastructure projects such as transport infrastructure  

and water management. Various economic stimulus programs will also  

encourage private investment and consumer spending to recover.  
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Inflation is likely to rise slightly to a range of -0.1% to  

0.9%, but not a threat to the prevailing policy of monetary  

easing. It is possible that the Thai economy will not achieve  

the targeted growth rate due to key risks from external  

factors, particularly the economic slowdown of Thailand’s  

trading partners and geopolitical risks. These risks can affect  

exports and tourism directly. The drought can also be a  

potential problem if intensified and prolonged as this  

threatens the agricultural and industrial sectors. Delays in  

government investments and tensions in local politics  

surrounding the drafting of the Constitution and handling of 

political cases are additional risk factors.

SET Index and Net Foreign Trading in 2015

Thai Capital Market

Equity Market 

 The Thai equity market was less vibrant in 2015 as  

international financial markets turned volatile, particularly 

from concerns over China’s slowdown resulting in a market  

correction. The Fed’s interest rate increase also led to continued 

outflows from the equity market. With lackluster commodity 

prices and the Thai economic recovery yet to reach full steam, 

corporate earnings of listed companies were affected. This is 

illustrated by the poor share price performance of large caps in 

key sectors such as energy and banking. The SET index closed 

2015 at 1,288.02 points, down 14.0% over the preceding year. 

Average daily trading value was 41,141.4 million baht while 
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Short sale of the Thai Capital Market in 2015

market capitalization shrunk by 11.4% in 2015 to 12,282,754.7 

million baht. The mai index closed at 522.62 points, a drop of 

25.4% over the year before. Average daily trading value was 

3,160.9 million baht and market capitalization at the end of 

the year was 323,478.4 million baht, down 15.6%. In 2015, 

foreigners were net sellers of 154,345.5 million baht in the SET 

and 1,285.2 million in the mai market. 

 To address the overheated stock market in the latter half 

of 2014, the SET under the approval of the SEC, tightened 

the monitoring of unusual trading activities to increase market 

oversight effectiveness. This involved stricter rules on the use 

of cash balance accounts to transact securities, the use of  

collateral, net settlement, and temporary suspension of trading.  

After the implementation of new measures on 5 January 

2015, the turnover ratio had gradually cooled off. In 2015, the  

short sale value was 2.8% of the total SET100 trading  

value, compared to 2.3% last year.

Issuance of Equities

 Total fund raising through the SET and mai amounted 

to 170,975 million baht in 2015, a decline of 23.8%, over the 

preceding year. Within this amount, 38,771.0 million baht was 

raised in the primary market through Initial Public Offerings 

(IPO) by 20 new companies listing on the SET and another 12 

companies on the mai. However, the value of IPOs fell 32.7% 

since average IPO sizes were relatively smaller. The year’s major 

IPOs came from Global Power Synergy Plc. at 10,035.1 million 

baht, 4 new real estate investment trusts (REITs) totaling 9,710.6 

million baht, one property fund at 1,720.0 million baht and two 

infrastructure funds amounting to 75,855.0 million baht.
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 Fund raising in the market from existing shareholders  

accounted for 132,204 million baht in 2015, down 20.8% from 

the previous year. The SEC tightened rules regarding Private 

Placements to address unfair treatment of pricing the offer 

below market or setting a predetermined subscription price in 

order to protect existing shareholders and prevent misuse of 

investor funds. In such cases, the potential issuer must obtain 

prior approval from the SEC. The SET will also impose a 1-year 

silent period on shares issued under these cases.

Bond Market

 The bond market continued to expand in 2015 with total 

debt securities outstanding of 10.0 trillion baht, up 7.9% over 

2014. Of this amount, government debt securities totaled 7.5 

trillion baht, up 7.6% from the preceding year while corporate 

Yield Curve for Government Bonds                                          

(27 December 2014, 30 June 2014, 30 December 2015)

debt securities totaled 2.4 trillion baht, up 9.5%. The Thai bond 

market saw foreign net outflows amidst the trend of rising US  

interest rates coupled with risk aversion against volatile  

emerging markets. Foreign holdings in the Thai fixed income 

market declined from 683,215 million baht in 2014 to 571,019 

million baht, or a drop of 5.7%. The entire Thai government yield 

curve shifted lower during 2015 due to cuts in the policy rate 

from 2.0% to 1.5%, sending short term yields lower by 0.54% 

while long term yields dipped by 0.18-0.36%.

 The value of outright trading of debt securities in 2015 

averaged 80,879.98 million baht per day, an increase of 5% over 

2014. Volume rose for all types of debt securities in the shifting 

interest rate environment. Trades were predominantly between 

dealers and clients, at 74% of total volume. Funds ranked top 

most active, accounting for 48% of trading activity, followed by  
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Outright Trading Value in 2015 other investors, foreign companies, domestic companies, and insurance  

companies, respectively. Trading among dealers accounted for 26% of 

volume.

Issuance of Debt Securities

 A total of 9.8 trillion baht was raised through all types of domestic debt 

securities combined in 2015, which was 7,498 billion baht or 0.1% lower 

than in 2014. Issuance of government debt securities totaled 7.1 trillion 

baht while corporate debt securities were 2.7 trillion baht. For government 

debt securities, total value rose 13% from the issuance of Bank of Thailand 

bonds, government bonds, and treasury bills, while state enterprises were 

less active. 

 Corporate debt securities issued in Thailand by Thai companies and 

foreign companies declined by 23% compared to the previous year. Short 

term debt securities accounted for 2.1 trillion baht, down 28% due mainly 

to fewer issuance from foreign companies (data include branches of foreign 

banks) following the merger of the Bank of Ayudhya Plc. (Krungsri) and the 

Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. (BTMU) Bangkok branch. Issuance of 

long term corporate debentures totaled 590,430 million baht, similar to  

Source: Thai Bond Market Association
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Debt Instrument Offering in Private Sector by Type

2014 levels. Non listed Thai corporates issued up to 146,828 million baht, 

up 29%.

 Issuance of long-term baht denominated bonds by foreign entities  

amounted to 25,000 million Baht, a sharp increase compared with 11,590 

million baht in 2014. The ASEAN+3 Multi-Currency Bond Issuance  

Framework (AMBIF) could support Thailand’s ambition to become a fund 

raising hub for CLMV countries going forwards. The scheme boosted the 

issuance of Baht bond in Thailand as part of the aim of turning Thailand into 

a fund raising hub for CLMV countries which will be seeking more funding 

going forwards. 

 The private sector was expected to seek funding through debt  

securities while we remain in a low interest rate environment. This is evident 

by the higher number of companies issuing debt securities. Among the  

134 issuers of long term debt registered with the Thai Bond Market  

Association, 38 companies were new and the total number of issuers  

rose by 49%. On the other hand, there were 180 issuers of short term  

debt, up 35% with 62 companies being new issuers. The SEC and the  

Thai Bond Market Association are supportive of Thai companies  

participating in fund raising through the bond market. There were 

Government Debt Instrument Offering by Type

Bil. Baht

Source: The Securities and Exchange Commission
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programs such as the “One Step Beyond with Bond  

Issue” project to provide knowhow to businesses, streamlined 

issuance procedures and subscription, plus other privileges 

such as application and registration fee waivers.

 The outlook for the fixed income securities market for 2016 

expects similar levels of debt issuance as 2015. Note that many 

companies have already mobilized funding since late last year. 

Moreover, it is possible that yields may rise this year in tandem 

with interest rate hikes in international markets, meaning the 

cost of mobilizing funds this way could be more expensive. 

The Derivatives Market

 The Thailand Futures Exchange (TFEX) had a total  

turnover of 48.54 million contracts, averaging 199,749  

contracts per day. This is noticeably higher than the  

average of 169,505 contracts per day in 2014 due mainly  

to higher volumes of SET 50 Index Futures, followed by the 

SET50 Index Options. Single Stock Futures saw volumes  

averaging 81,103 contracts per day, roughly similar to 2014. 

The trading of precious metal and energy futures declined  

along with global sentiment. Total open interest for TFEX at  

the end of 2015 stood at 941,492 contracts, up 3% from a 

year ago. Individual investors were most active, accounting 

for 53.6% of total activity, followed by institutional investors  

at 34.8% and foreign investors at 11.6%.

 In the beginning of 2015, the market attempted to  

boost liquidity of the SET50 Index Options by increasing the 

number of market makers and by collaborating with Settrade  

to facilitate the trading of options online (Options Wizard).  

Additional 10 underlying securities were added to broaden  

the range of Single Stock Futures from 60 to 70 stocks.  

Position limits on USD Futures were relaxed from 5,000  

Net Open Position and Future Trading Volume per Day in 2015
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contracts to 10,000 in preparation of liberalization by the Bank 

of Thailand. Furthermore, the contract schedules of oil futures 

were revised to align with crude Brent contracts which served 

as the underlying. 

 In addition, a Cabinet resolution on 1 December 2015 

placed agricultural products under the Derivatives Act B.E. 

2546 (2003). The Thailand Futures Exchange debut agricultural 

products with the trading of contracts of Natural Rubber Ribbed 

Smoked Sheet No. 3 on 15 February 2016. 

 In 2016, it is expected that the market will continue to  

grow on the back of a broader investor base following the  

merger of the Agricultural Futures Exchange of Thailand 

(AFET) with TFEX. At the same time, TFEX will face increased  

competition from other bourses eager to draw investors from 

Asia such as the launch of NYSE’s Intercontinental Exchange 

Futures Exchange (ICE) in Singapore on 17 November 2015.

Future Contract Proportion 2015

SET 50 Index
Options
0.63%

Single Stock
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INDUSTRY OVERVIEW:  
SECURITIES AND DERIVATIVES BUSINESSES 

The Securities Business

 At the end of 2015, the securities industry consisted of 42 securities companies which comprised of 37 stock brokerages 

and another five non-brokers.  Two new companies started operations last year. 

             2014 2015

Securities company1  

 - Broker2       35 37

 - Non-broker3      5 5

Total          40 42

 In terms of the industry’s overall development, companies  

began to adopt different business models. Traditionally, most 

securities companies were full-service brokerage house, and 

extended their client base through branch expansion and  

investment consultants, but a few began to shift their strategies  

to focus more on their areas of expertise and leveraged IT 

technology as tools to provide services, expanded client base, 

or built customer relations. This is particularly evident in the way 

new operators chose to build their business primarily through  

online brokerage services. They employed fewer staff,  

investment consultants in particular, and deployed more  

outsourcing of securities operations to service providers. With 

respect to the industry’s future direction, it is expected that  

the evolving technology, especially Financial Technology  

(FinTech), will be the driving force to facilitate many more  

different business models and thus enabling a greater variety 

of securities services to tap different customer niches. Public 

1 This includes brokerage licensed firms and type A licensed firms
2 Both member and non-member of the Stock Exchange
3 Four firms operate non-brokerage business and one ceased all kinds of securities business operation

access to capital market would be improved and far-reached 

which would benefit investors and capital market as a whole.

 The securities brokerage industry was expected to  

face more competition, especially through the reduction of 

commission fee. This is due to the fact that new players 

adopted online business model, which resulted in lower cost 

of operations, and thus enabling a more competitive pricing of 

commission fee. However, some operators chose not to enter 

into pricing war by emphasizing on offering various types of 

services such as provision of premium securities research or 

extended coverage of securities research, allotment of Initial  

Public Offering (IPO) shares, provision of margin financing  

services, financial planning, and customized investment  

advice. With the established firms’ edge in offering a greater  

range of services, the overall market share structure did not 

change significantly. The industry top 10 players held 50.01% 

of the market in 2015, roughly similar to a market share of 



4 Financial data presented was collected from unaudited financial statements.
5 Financial data came from 38 out or 42 securities firms, excluding securities firm solely operating investment advising business.
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52.96% in 2014. In addition, over the past year, the Thai 

equity market was under considerable strain from various 

factors, both internal and external, such as domestic political  

instability, concerns over China’s economic slowdown, out-

look of rising US interest rates, and the prolonged fall in oil 

prices. Subsequently, the equity market fluctuated and daily  

turnover averaged at 41,141 million baht. This took a toll on 

brokerage revenues, the securities industry’s main income, to 

decline by 2,470 million baht or 8%. Total net profit slid 26% 

to 8,112 million baht and retained earnings weakened by 

1,166 million baht or 3%. The industry’s total assets stood at 

282,686 million baht, a slight 3% drop from 290,033 million 

baht as of 2014.

 With respect to market trading activities, retail investors 

still ranked as the most active investor group, accounting for 

59% of total market turnover in 2015, a slight drop from 62% 

in the preceding year. They particularly preferred trading online 

through the internet, making online trades account for a rather 

sturdy share of 37.2% in 2014 and 37.9% in 2015. Total size 

of margin accounts peaked at 60,000 million baht in February 

of 2015, but declined to 54,492 million baht by the year end 

which was close to 54,355 million baht at the end of 2014. 

Value of collaterals outstanding stood at 178,075 million baht 

or 3.3 times the value of total margin accounts.

unit: million baht 

           2014 2015

Total Assets           290,033       282,686 

 Cash, cash equivalent, and deposits          120,289       108,000 

 Investment, net           38,705         42,431 
 Receivables – securities and derivatives business          96,608         96,527 

 Receivables – clearing house     18,564         19,965  
Total Liabilities          201,581       192,654 

 Loans and debt instruments        34,660         32,701 

 Payables – securities and derivatives business         143,875       139,161 
 Payables – clearing house            10,105         9,762 
Shareholders’ Equity            88,452 90,032

 Common stock       40,988         45,159 

 Retain profit (Loss)           35,973         34,808 

Financial Position 4 5
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Comprehensive Income Statement 

unit: million baht 

           2014 2015

Revenues                   44,100  41,746 

 Fee – brokerage                 30,441 27,971 

 Profit (Loss) – own trading account                  6,408  5,662 

Expenses                   30,645  30,686 

 Operating expenses                25,268  24,954

Comprehensive profit (loss)                10,989  8,112

Margin Loan
                       

         2014 2015

Margin loan (million baht)     54,355 54,492

Collateral (million baht)     195,854 178,075

SET Index (point)     1,497 1,288

          2014 2015

Net Liquid Capital (million baht)    74,323 75,145

Net Capital Ratio (%)     94 105

    
Note: Minimum regulatory requirement – Net Liquid Capital 25 million baht, and Net Capital Ratio 7%

Net Liquid Capital

 All securities companies maintained net liquid capital substantially higher than the minimum requirements.  As of the end 

of 2015, the industry’s net liquid capital increased to 75,145 million baht from 74,323 million baht at the end of 2014.  The Net 

Capital Ratio rose from 94% at the end of 2014 to 105% at the end of 2015.
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The Derivatives Business

 The derivatives business continued to grow in 2015. 

The market expanded by 35% with an average daily turnover  

rising from 147,025 contracts in 2014 to 199,749 contracts 

in 2015. This was principally due to the popularity of SET50 

Index Futures in which trading volume increased to the level  

of 51,351 contracts per day. Gold futures trading volume,  

however, declined to a mere 278 contracts per day owing  

largely to 50 baht Gold futures. This was due to bearish 

global gold prices amidst concern over US interest rates hike.  

Geopolitical instability in many places across the world was not 

enough to keep gold prices afloat.

 A Cabinet resolution on 30 December 2014 called for 

the merger of the Agricultural Futures Exchange of Thailand 

(AFET) with the Thailand Futures Exchange (TFEX) to improve 

economies of scale, convenience to investors, and increase 

competitive advantage. The operations and staff of the  

Office of the Agricultural Futures Trading Commission (AFTC) 

and AFET were transferred to the SEC and TFEX, respec-

tively, and the merger of the two futures markets took place  

as quickly and smoothly as possible to minimize impact on  

stakeholders.

 In preparation for the supervision of the agricultural  

futures market, the SEC issued and amended relevant rules. 

This involved the inclusion of agricultural products as an  

underlying covered by the Derivatives Act B.E.2546 (2003)  

and the creation of agricultural derivatives licenses to accom-

modate smooth transition of the derivatives operators formerly 

under the Office of the Agricultural Futures Trading Commission  

to become the agricultural derivatives operators under the  

SEC. These measures took effect on 16 December 2015 and 

licenses were granted to two such operators on 25 December 

2015, permitting them to carry out derivatives brokerage in 

futures contracts on TFEX by 15 February 2016. 

 In 2015, there were a total of 46 derivatives operators,  

of which 34 companies also held securities licenses. There 

were nine operators that were licensed to engage only in 

derivatives brokerage business. This included one agricultural 

derivatives broker.
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          2014 2015

Derivatives broker

 - with securities brokerage business   33 34

 - without securities business   7 9

 - without securities and derivatives brokerage business6   3 3

Total       43 46

6 Two businesses engaged in non-securities business and one cease operation
7 Financial data presented was collected from unaudited financial statements.
8 The financial data shown were from the seven derivatives brokerage operators which solely dealt in derivatives business in 2015

 With respect to the operating performance specifically 

those dealt only in derivatives, there were improvement in term 

of market share.  This was largely due to the seven derivatives 

brokers which formerly specialized in gold futures brokerage 

but later expanded into equity futures brokerage. The market 

share of this group rose from 8.77% in 2014 to 11.68% in 

2015.  However, the overall revenue of the group declined by  

20 million baht to 247 million baht, with the corresponding  

expense. The group showed a net loss of 87 million baht in 2015 

which was comparable to the net loss 88 million baht in 2014.

Financial Positions 7 8   

unit: million baht 

          2014 2015

Total Assets                        2,055  2,848

 Cash, cash equivalent, and deposit                    1,031  1,044 

 Receivables – clearing house                       707           693 

Total Liabilities                        1,121   1,929 

 Loans and debt instruments   33          718 

 Payables – securities and derivatives business             1,045          840

Shareholders’ Equity                           934         919 

 Common stock     1,195 1,270 

 Retain profit (Loss)     (261) (351) 
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Net Liquid Capital

 All derivatives brokerage firms maintained net liquid capital higher than the minimum requirements, with an aggregate net 

liquid capital of 1,388 million baht in 2015 compared with 699 million baht in 2014. The Net Capital Ratio rose from 176% in 2014 

to 239% at the end of 2015.

Comprehensive Income Statement

Unit: Million Baht 

          2014 2015

Revenues                     267 247 

 Fee - brokerage                 111  117 

 Profit (Loss) – own trading account              92     57 

Expenses                    353  334 

 Operating expenses                  273  242 

Comprehensive profit (loss)     (88)  (87)

         2014 2015

Net Liquid Capital (million baht)    699 1,388

Net Capital Ratio (%)     176 239

Note: Minimum regulatory requirement – Net Liquid Capital 15 million baht, and Net Capital Raito 7%.
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INDUSTRY OVERVIEW:  
ASSET MANAGEMENT BUSINESS

Classified by 
investment policy

Mutual fund and trust fund       
 Equity fund 470 388 717,067 603,077 113,989 19%

 Fixed income fund 490 711 2,211,920 2,060,707 151,212 7%

  Money market fund 40 41  267,303   258,946  8,357 3%

  Daily fixed income fund 80 80 1,139,921   777,697  362,224 47%

  Term fund 370 590 804,697   1,024,065  (219,368) (21%)

 Mixed fund 254 223 231,332  209,196 22,136 11%

  Mixed fund which specifies a 47 46 29,706  31,480 (1,773) (6%)

   proportion for investing in equity 
  Mixed fund which does not specify 195 165 180,670  163,564 17,107 10% 

   a proportion for investing in equity 
  Mixed fund which does not invest in equity fund 12 12 20,955  14,152 6,803 48%

 Others  112 103 75,142  69,448 5,693 8%

  Property fund  52 52 282,414 279,036 3,378 1%

   (Type 1)  

  Specific fund 50 50 280,412  276,976 3,435 1%

  Non-specific fund 2 2 2,002  2,060 (57) (3%)

 Real Estate Invesment Trust (REIT) 8 4 43,600    27,601 16,000 58%

  Managed by asset management company 3 1 9,700  4,990 4,710 94%

  Managed by other REIT managers 5 3 33,900  22,610 11,290 50%

 Infrastructure fund offered to 5 3 221,532  143,362 78,171 55%

    general investors

Total mutual funds and trust funds 1,391 1,484 3,783,006 3,392,427 390,579 12%

Number of Funds

2015 2015
NAV 

(million baht)

1014 2014

% NAVNAV (million baht)

Change

1 Excluding Finansa Asset Management Company which deactivated its license on December 30, 2015
2 Excluding specialized funds and trust funds

 As of the end of 2015, mutual funds had a total of 4.1 trillion baht net assets value, an increase of 300 billion baht or 7% 

from the previous year. The industry comprised 201 asset management companies, 12 of which were affiliated with banks. They 

posed the largest share of the market at 94%2 of total, leveraging on their ability to distribute through the vast network of existing 

bank branches.
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 Classified by foreign investment       
Foreign invesment fund 551 519 859,493   828,528  30,965 4%

Local investment fund 840 965 2,923,513 2,563,899 359,614 14%

Specialized fund       
 Property Fund for instituitional investors 27 53 86,541 116,970 (30,429) (26%)

  Property Fund for Resolving Financial  7 14 18,015  26,432 (8,417) (32%)

   Insitution Problems (Type 2) 
  Mutual Fund for Resolving Financial  - 6 - 5,477 (5,477) (100%)

   Institution Problems (Type 3) 

  Property and loan fund  20 33 68,525  85,061 (16,536) (19%)

   (Type 4) 
 Vayupak fund 1 1 233,207  316,811 (83,604) (26%)

 Country fund  2 2 502  628 (127) (20%)

Total specialized funds 30 56 320,249 434,409 (114,160) (26%)

Grand Total  1,421 1,540 4,103,255 3,826,836 276,419 7% 

Classified by 
investment policy Number of Funds

2015 2015
NAV 

(million baht)

1014 2014

% NAVNAV (million baht)

Change
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Asset Management 
Company NAV 

(million bht)

2015
Change 

(million bht)
Market 
Share

Market 
Share

2014
% 

Change

NAV

Asset Management Company       
 1 Kasikorn Asset Management Company 922,071 22% 873,020 23% 49,051 6% 
 2 SCB Asset Management Company 800,924 20% 792,628 21% 8,296 1%

 3 BBL Asset Management Public Company 536,044 13% 434,217 11% 101,827 23% 
 4 Krung Thai Asset Mangement Public Company   411,063 10% 660,105 17% (249,042) (38%)

 5 MFC Asset Management Public Company  310,044 8% 77,023 2% 233,020 303%

 6 Krungsri Asset Mangement Company  263,287 6% 219,029 6% 44,258 20%

 7 TMB Asset Management Company  216,023 5% 194,623 5% 21,400 11%

 8 Thanachart Fund Management Company  140,928 3% 136,443 4% 4,485 3% 

 9 UOB Asset Management (Thailand) Company 137,900 3% 128,461 3% 9,439 7%

 10 CIMB-Principal Asset Management Company 53,321 1.3% 27,028 0.7% 26,292 97%

 11 Land and Houses Fund Management Company  49,996 1.2% 41,090 1.1% 8,906 22%

 12 One Asset Management Company  48,953 1.2% 47,151 1.2% 1,802 4%

 13 Aberdeen Asset Management Company  43,626 1.1% 43,734 1.1% (108) (0.2%)

14  Phatra Asset Management Company 35,373 0.9% 32,439 0.8% 2,933 9%

15  Tisco Asset Management Company 33,434 0.8% 29,645 0.8% 3,790 13%

16  Asset Plus Fund Management Company  30,264 0.7% 22,300 0.6% 7,964 36%

 17 Solaris Asset Management Company  25,869 0.6% 15,459 0.4% 10,410 67%

18  Manulife Asset Management (Thailand) Company 6,699 0.2% 6,789 0.2% (90) (1%)

19  Phillip Asset Management Company 2,722 0.07% 1,421 0.04% 1,301 92%

20  Maybank Asset Management (Thailand) Company 815 0.02% 758 0.02% 57 8%

21  Finansa Asset Management Company -    - 20,862 0.5% (20,862) (100%)

REIT Manager       

 1 RMI Company 16,059 0.4% 16,063 0.4% (4) (0.02%)

 2 WHA Real Estate Asset Management Company  8,582 0.2% 3,115 0.1% 5,468 176%

 3 Ticon Management Company 5,601 0.1% 3,433 0.1% 2,168 63%

 4 Amata Summit REIT Management Company 3,657 0.1%  -    - 3,657 100%

Tota l  4,103,255 100% 3,826,836 100% 276,419 7%

NAV 
(million bht)
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 The declining interest rate environment in 2015  

prompted investors to seek investment in funds that  

could offer better returns. This was illustrated by the cash 

outflows from fixed income funds that were term funds1 

into daily fixed income funds2  as the latter generate higher 

returns. The total net asset value of daily fixed income 

funds rose from 780 billion baht to 1.1 trillion baht last 

year, up 47%. Foreign investment equity funds, particularly  

those focusing on Europe, Japan and the healthcare  

sector had potentially higher returns than domestic equity  

investments and therefore rose in popularity from 150 billion 

baht to 230 billion baht or 51%. These investments helped 

the asset management industry see a net expansion of assets 

under management.

 644 new funds were launched in 2015 with a combined net 

asset value of 1.2 trillion baht, a decline compared to 875 new 

1 Excluding fixed income term funds targeting accredited investors
2 Excluding money market funds

fund launches in 2014 worth 1.8 trillion baht. Fixed income 

term funds tailored for accredited investors accounted for 

the largest type of new launches at 71% of total, raising 

880 billion baht. The most popular were foreign investment 

funds. Infrastructure funds comprised 6% of new fund 

launches or 78 billion baht, through two funds namely the 

Jasmine Broadband Internet Infrastructure Fund and the North 

Bangkok Power Plant Block 1 Infrastructure Fund in alignment 

with government policy to support basic infrastructure projects. 

2015 saw four new real estate investment trust funds, raising 

9.8 billion baht, namely the LH Hotel Real Estate Investment 

Trust, the WHA Business Complex Freehold and Leasehold 

Real Estate Investment, the Amata Summit Growth Freehold 

and Leasehold Real Estate Investment Trust, and the MFC 

Industrial Real Estate Investment Trust.

 Asset management companies earned a net profit of 3.54 

billion baht in the first half of 2015, an increase of 716 million baht 

or 25% compared to the same period in 2014.  Profit growth 

unit: million baht 

      June 2015 December 2014 June 2014

Revenues   14,842 23,349 10,884

  Fee    13,019 21,250 9,921

Earnings   3,523 6,026 2,823

Total earnings  3,540 5,758 2,824

resulted from the expansion of assets under management 

which produced a 31% increase in management fee income 

compared to the same period in 2014. 
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 Mr. Voravidh Champeeratana obtained a BBA (Management) and a MPA 

(Public Administration) from the University of Manila. He was also accorded 

Honorary Doctorate in Public Administration (Fiscal Management) from 

Udon Thani Rajabhat University. Prior to taking office as Chairman of the 

SEC board, he served in several key positions, including Budget Director of 

Bureau of the Budget, Chairman of Krung Thai Bank Plc., member of the 

Commission for Judicial Service, member of the Commission of Mass Rapid  

Transit Authority of Thailand, Chairman of the Commission of Thailand  

Institute of Scientific and Technological Research, member of the Commission 

of Marketing Organization for Farmers, member of the Council of National 

Institute of Development Administration (NIDA), member of The Foundation 

of Princess Mother’s Medical Volunteer (PMMV). 

 Other current posts include member of the Committee for Examination of 

Draft Laws and Draft Auxiliary Regulations Proposed to the Cabinet – Third 

Group (Independent Agencies and State Enterprises), member of the  

Sub-committee for Economic, Monetary and Financial Reform and Chairman 

of the Maha Sarakham Provincial Ethics Committee.

 Mr. Somchai Sujjapongse obtained a bachelor’s degree (honors) in  

Economics from Chulalongkorn University, master’s and doctorate degrees 

in the same field from the Ohio State University Columbus. Before taking  

office as Permanent Secretary of the Ministry of Finance, he held various 

key positions in the Ministry of Finance, including Director-General of the  

Customs Department, Director-General of Fiscal Policy Office, Director-

General of State Enterprise Policy Office, etc. In an academic area, he was a 

special instructor at Department of Economics, University of the Thai Chamber 

of Commerce and Ohio State University. 

 His current key posts include Chairman of the Board of Director, Krungthai 

Bank Plc., Director of PTT Plc. and Director of Thai Airways International Plc.

Mr. Voravidh Champeeratana
Chairman 
(since September 15, 2015) 

Mr. Somchai Sujjapongse
Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Finance 
Ex-officio Member (since October 1, 2015)
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 Ms. Chutima Bunyapraphasara obtained a Bachelor of Science in  

Political Science from Chulalongkorn University and a Master Degree in  

Economics from Western Michigan University. Prior to taking office as  

Permanent Secretary of the Ministry of Commerce, she was Director-General 

of Department of Trade Negotiations, Director-General of the Department of 

Foreign Trade, Director-General of the Department of Internal Trade,  

Inspector General of Ministry of Commerce, Commercial Counsellor of 

Permanent Mission of Thailand in Brussel and Director of Multilateral Trade 

Division, Department of Business Economics.

 At present, she also serves the position as Director of Industrial Estate 

Authority of Thailand and Board Commissioner of Port Authority of Thailand.

 Mr. Veerathai Santiprabhob obtained a BA in Economics (1st Class  

Honors) from Thammasat University, MA and Doctorate in the same field from 

Harvard University. Before taking office as Governor of the Bank of Thailand, 

he held various key positions in the financial and capital markets, including 

Executive Vice President and Chief Strategy Officer, The Stock Exchange of 

Thailand, Executive Vice President and Head of Business Bank of Strategic  

Planning Division, Siam Commercial Bank Plc., advisor of Thailand  

Development Research Institute and director of leading listed companies.

 His current posts include member of State Enterprise Policy and  

Supervisory Committee, Committee Member of Thammasat Section,  

Anandhamahidol Foundation, Executive Board Member of Buddhadasa 

Indapanno Archives, member of the Board and Treasurer of Royal Initiative  

Discovery Foundation and member of the Board of Mae Fah Luang  

Foundation under Royal Patronage.

Ms. Chutima Bunyapraphasara
Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Commerce
Ex-officio Member (since June 27, 2014)

Mr. Veerathai Santiprabhob 
Governor, Bank of Thailand 
Ex-officio Member (since October 1, 2015)
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Mr. Sarawut Benjakul 
Expert Member 

(since May 11, 2015)

Ms. Gallayanee Parkatt
Expert Member 
(since May 11, 2015)

 Mr. Sarawut Benjakul obtained an LLB (2nd Class Honors) from  

Ramkhamhaeng University, Barrister at Law from the Institute of Legal 

Education Thai Bar Association, Master of Laws in Commercial Law from 

University of Bristol, Master of Laws in International Legal Studies from the 

American University and Master of Laws from Howard Univeristy, Honorary 

Master of Laws from Ramkhamhaeng University and Honorary Doctorate  

of Laws from Nakhon Pathom Rajabhat University. He has versatile  

experiences in laws and served in several key positions, including Chief 

Judge of Sakonnakorn Juvenile and Family Court, Chief Jude of Office of 

the President of the Supreme Court, Deputy Secretary of General Office of 

the Judicial Affairs.

 At present, he also serves in the positions as Deputy Secretary-General of 

Office of the Judiciary, Secretary-General of the Institute of Legal Education 

Thai Bar Association, member of the Government Pension Fund, member 

of Commission for Judicial Service, Chairman of the Board of the State 

Railway of Thailand. In an academic area, he is a special lecturer at Faculty 

of Law, Thammasat University, Ramkhamhaeng University and the Institute 

of Legal Education Thai Bar Association, Honorary Member of the Council 

of Mahasarakham University, Prince of Songkla University, Kalasin Rajabhat 

University and King Mongkut’s Institute of Technology Ladkrabang.

 Ms. Gallayanee Parkatt obtained a bachelor’s degree in Accounting  

from University of the Thai Chamber of Commerce, a master’s degree in 

Business Administration-Finance from National Institute of Development 

Administration, a Master Degree (By Research) and Doctorate Degree in  

Finance from RMIT University. At present, she holds a number of  

significant positions such as Chairman of the Executive Board of Doctor of  

Business Administration Program, Sukhothai Thammathirat Open  

University, an expert on research in Financial and Accounting, an academic  

expert on evaluation of academic performance on determining as  

Associate Professor and Assistant Professor in public and private  

universities, Independent Director and Audit Committee of TV Thunder Plc. 

and SPC Precious Metal Co., Ltd.  
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Ms. Pranee Phasipol
Expert Member 

(since May 11, 2015)

Ms. Sopawadee Lertmanaschai 
Expert Member 

(since August 19, 2013)

 Ms. Pranee Phasipol obtained a Bachelor and a Master Degree in 

Accounting from Thammasat University. She has versatile experiences in 

accounting and held various key positions in the Ministry of Commerce, 

including Inspector General, Commercial Advisor, Deputy Director-General 

of Department of Business Development and Deputy Director-General  

of Department of Insurance. She also served in key positions of other  

organizations, such as, Advisor of Thai General Insurance Association,  

Advisor to member of Federation of Accounting Professions.

 Her current posts include Chairman of Sub-committee on Determining  

Accounting Professional Ethics, member of Business Operation of  

Foreigners, Ministry of Commerce, member of Life Insurance Fund, member 

of Sub-committee on Monitoring and Evaluation of the Support Arts and 

Crafts International Centre of Thailand, Independent Director and member 

of the Audit Committee of SCI Electric Plc., Thaivivat Insurance Plc. and 

Dusit Thani Plc.

 Ms. Sopawadee Lertmanaschai obtained an LLM, a Bachelor and 

a Master of Science (Accounting) from Thammasat University. She has  

versatile experiences and served in several key positions in the capital  

market,for example, Chairman of Advisers to the Market for Alternative 

Investment (mai), Chairman of the Capital Market Opportunity Center, the 

Stock Exchange of Thailand, Deputy Manager of the Stock Exchange of 

Thailand, Chief Executive Officer of Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd. 

and Secretary-General of the Government Pension Fund. She also served 

as Director of IRPC Plc., Dhipaya Insurance Plc., Nok Airlines Plc. and Royal 

Porcelain Plc.

 Her other current posts include Director of the Federation of Accounting 

Professions, Adviser to the Federation of Thai Capital Market Organizations, 

Expert member of the Board of National Savings Fund, board member of 

Metropolitan Electricity Authority, Director of Provincial Waterworks Authority, 

board member of Government Pharmaceutical Organization, Independent 

Director of Intouch Holdings Plc., Maybank  Kim Eng Securities (Thailand) 

Plc. and Eco Energy Group Co., Ltd.
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 Mr. Vikrom Koompirochana obtained a BA (History) from Chulalongkorn

University, an MA (History) and a Doctorate (International Relations) from 

Michigan State University. He was also accorded Honorary Doctorate in 

Humanities from Schiller International University. He had served in many 

significant positions in the Ministry of Foreign Affairs, including Ambassador 

Attached to the Ministry (European Affairs), Ambassador of Thailand to several 

countries, namely, Singapore, Malaysia, New Zealand, Italy and Ireland, Deputy 

Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Foreign Affairs. He served in the position as 

Ambassador of Thailand to the United Kingdom until his statutory retirement. 

 He is now Chairman of Sports and Recreation Management Co., Ltd., 

Chairman of the Board of Country Group Development (CGD) Plc., Chairman 

of Audit Committee of Oishi Group Plc., Director of Bangchak Petroleum Plc., 

Independent Director of MFC Assessment Plc. and Honorary Adviser to the 

British Chamber of Commerce Thailand. 

 Mr. Somchai Kuvijitsuwan obtained an LLB from Ramkhamhaeng  

University, a Barrister at Law from the Institute of Legal Education Thai Bar 

Association, and a Master of Political Science from National Institute of 

Development Administration.  A well-recognized legal expert, he previously 

served as Director General of Department of Policy, Strategy and Budget 

Planning, Director General of Department of Public Prosecutor Commission 

and Director General of Department of Economic Crime Litigation. 

 Currently, he is a member and Chairman of Audit Committee of PTT Global 

Chemical Plc., an Expert Member of Board of Appeals, Customs Department.

Mr. Vikrom Koompirochana
Expert Member 

(since October 8, 2012) 

Mr. Somchai Kuvijitsuwan
Expert Member 

(since October 8, 2012, the second term)
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 Mr. Rapee Sucharitakul earned a Bachelor Degree in Laws from University  

of Essex, a Master Degree in Commercial Law from University of Bristol, 

respectively. He has versatile experiences in capital and financial markets  

and held several key positions in the private sectors, for example,  

member of the Board of Governors, the Stock Exchange of Thailand,  

Director of Thailand Futures Exchange, Association Director of Federation 

of Thai Capital Market Organizations, Director of Association of Investment 

Management Companies, Director of Thai Institute of Directors Association 

board member of Thai Financial Planners Association, Project Director of 

Private Sector Collective Action Coalition Against Corruption Project, Thai 

Institute of Directors Association,  Director of Kasikornbank Public Company 

Limited, Executive Chairman of Kasikorn Securities Public Company Limited,  

Executive Chairman of Kasikorn Asset Management Company Limited,  

Advisor to the President of Muang Thai Life Assurance Plc., Independent 

Director of Big C Supercenter Plc.   

 At present, he is also a committee member of the State Enterprise Policy 

Committee, member of Financial Institutions Policy Committee, Director of 

Office of Insurance Commission, Director of National Savings Fund and 

Director of Government Pension Fund.

Mr. Rapee Sucharitakul
SEC Secretary-General

Ex-officio Member and Secretary of the board (May 1, 2015)

As of 31 December 2015
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 Mr. Rapee Sucharitakul earned a Bachelor Degree in Laws from  

University of Essex, a Master Degree in Commercial Law from University  

of Bristol, respectively. He has versatile experiences in capital and  

financial markets and held several key positions in the private sectors,  

for example, member of the Board of Governors, the Stock Exchange of 

Thailand, Director of Thailand Futures Exchange, Association Director of 

Federation of Thai Capital Market Organizations, Director of Association of 

Investment Management Companies, Director of Thai Institute of Directors 

Association , board member of Thai Financial Planners Association, Project 

Director of Private Sector Collective Action Coalition Against Corruption 

Project, Thai Institute of Directors Association,  Director of Kasikornbank 

Public Company Limited, Executive Chairman of Kasikorn Securities Public 

Company Limited, Executive Chairman of Kasikorn Asset Management 

Company Limited, Advisor to the President of Muang Thai Life Assurance 

Plc., Independent Director of Big C Supercenter Plc.   

 At present, he is also a committee member of the State Enterprise Policy 

Committee, member of Financial Institutions Policy Committee, Director of 

Office of Insurance Commission, Director of National Savings Fund and 

Director of Government Pension Fund.

Mr. Rapee Sucharitakul
SEC Secretary-General

Chairman (since May 1, 2015)

CAPITAL MARKET SUPERVISORY BOARD
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 Mr. Krisada Chinavicharana obtained an LLB from Chulalongkorn  

University and an MBA from the University of New Haven. He served in  

several key positions at the Fiscal Policy Office, Ministry of Finance,  

including Adviser in Economics and Financial Affairs, Deputy Director of  

Fiscal Policy Office, Director of the Bureau of Legal Affairs. In other  

organizations, he was Director of Krung Thai Bank Plc., board member of 

Electricity Generating Authority of Thailand, board member of Aeronautical 

Radio of Thailand Ltd., board member of Islamic Bank of Thailand, Director 

of Bangkok Commercial Asset Management Co., Ltd.

 His current posts also include board member of the Bank of Thailand,  

Director of Government Pension Fund, and Director of Bangchak  

Petroleum Plc.

 Mr. Chalee Chantanayingyong obtained a BBA in Finance and  

Banking from Thammasat University, and an MBA in Finance from Texas  

A&M University. His profound knowledge and experience in financial 

and capital markets include eleven-year service at the Bank of Thailand 

(BOT) during which he had very much involvement in drafting the  

Securities and Exchange Act (SEA). When the SEA was enacted in March 

1992, he was transferred from the BOT to work for the newly established 

SEC as Deputy Director of Corporate Finance Department, Director of 

Corporate Finance Department, Director of Investment Management 

Supervision Department and Assistant Secretary-General, respectively.  

Besides working at the SEC, he was appointed as member of the Board 

of Supervision of Auditing Practice, member of the Trade Competition 

Commission, member of and secretariat to the National Corporate  

Governance Committee and member of the Investment Management  

Sub-committee of the Social Security Fund.

 His current key posts include board member of the Bank of Thailand, 

board member of the Good Governance and Appeal Petition Committee, 

member of the Audit Committee of the Bank of Thailand and board member 

of the Anti-Corruption Organization of Thailand. 

Mr. Chalee Chantanayingyong
SEC Deputy Secretary-General

Ex-officio Member (since October 14, 2011)

Mr. Krisada Chinavicharana 
Director-General, Fiscal Policy Office

Ex-officio Member (since June 27, 2014)
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Mr. Pratib Yongvanich
Expert Member 

(since January 18, 2012)

 Mr. Pratib Yongvanich obtained a BBA in Accounting from Chulalongkorn 

University and an MBA (Marketing) from Case Western Reserve University.  

His extensive experiences in the capital market include his services as  

board member and Vice Chairman of the Stock Exchange of Thailand,  

board member of the Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd., President of 

Asia Plus Securities Plc., Executive Director of Association of Thai Securities 

Companies, Senior Manager of Siam Commercial Bank Plc. and Director of 

Ticon Plc.

 Mr. Kampanart Lohacharoenvanich obtained a Bachelor of Art in  

Economics from Thammasat University, and a Master of Science in the 

same field from Kansas State University. He is a renowned expert in the 

capital market industry with extensive experiences in relevant to securities 

and derivatives businesses as well as listed companies. His prominent roles 

in several important positions include Chairman of Association of Securities 

Companies, Vice Chairman of the Stock Exchange of Thailand, Vice Chairman 

of the Federation of the Thai Capital Market Organizations, board member of 

Thailand Futures Exchange Plc., President of Trinity Securities Co., Ltd. and 

Chairman of Audit Committee of Inoue Rubber (Thailand) Plc. 

Mr. Kampanart Lohacharoenvanich
Expert Member 

(since January 18, 2012, second term)
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Ms. Pornanong   Budsaratragoon
Expert Member 

(since April 8, 2014)

Ms. Suchada Pavananunt
Expert Member 

(since April 8, 2014)

 Ms. Suchada Pavananunt obtained a BBA in Finance and Banking 

from Chulalongkorn University and a Master Degree in Public and Private  

Management, School of Public Administration, National Institute of  

Development Administration. She has versatile experiences in money and 

capital markets and held various key positions, such as, President and Chief 

Executive Officer of Thanachart Fund Management Co., Ltd. and Managing  

Director, Marketing and Deposit Products of Thanachart Capital Plc. At  

present, she served as Chairman of Sub-Committee on Consideration of 

Rules Concerning Fund Management.

 Ms. Pornanong Budsaratragoon obtained a BBA in Quantitative  

Analysis from Chulalongkorn University, an MBA in Management  

Information System from University of Dallas and a DBA in Finance from 

Chulalongkorn University. Her previous posts include expert member of 

National Savings Fund, Fiscal Policy Office, member of Risk Management 

Committee of One Asset Management Limited, Independent Director of 

Bangpakong Terminal Plc.

 At present, she serves as Associate Professor of Banking and Finance, 

Faculty of Commerce and Accountancy, Chulalongkorn University, member 

of Education Committee of Thai Financial Planner Association, member of 

the working group on examination and assessment standards, the Stock 

Exchange of Thailand.  

As of 31 December 2015
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EXECUTIVES

01  l  Mr. Rapee Sucharitakul 

 Secretary-General

04  l  Ms. Tipsuda Thavaramara

 Deputy Secretary-General

07  l  Ms. Paralee Sukonthaman

 Assistant Secretary-General

10  l  Ms. Nataya Niyamanusorn

 Assistant Secretary-General

08 01030406 02 05 07 0908 01030406 02 05 07 09 10

As of 31 December 2015

02  l  Mr. Chalee Chantanayingyong

 Deputy Secretary-General

05  l  Ms. Waratchya Srimachand

 Senior Assistant Secretary-General

08  l  Ms. Duangmon Chuengsatiansup

 Assistant Secretary-General

03  l  Mr. Vasant Thienhom

 Deputy Secretary-General

06  l  Mr. Prakid Punyashthiti

 Senior Assistant Secretary-General

09  l  Mr. Sakkarin Ruamrungsri

 Assistant Secretary-General
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SEC STRUCTURE

As of 31 December 2015
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1. Board Structure

Pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Act B.E. 2535, 

the SEC is comprised of two boards:

• The SEC Board is entrusted with policymaking

for overall market supervision and development including  

appointment of various sub-committees to support the  

operation of the SEC Board.  

• The Capital Market Supervisory Board is in

charge of issuance of rules and regulations pertaining to  

business undertaking in the capital market and reports 

the  performance to the SEC Board.

The SEC Office operates in accordance with policies  

assigned by the SEC Board and the Capital Market  

Supervisory Board with the Secretary-General as the highest 

chief executive.

1.1 SEC Board

The SEC Board structure as stipulated in the  

Securities and Exchange Act consists of 1) Chairman- appointed  

by the Cabinet 2) Three ex-officio members comprising the  

Permanent Secretary of the Ministry of Finance, the Permanent 

Secretary of the Ministry of Commerce and the Governor of 

the Bank of Thailand 3) Four to six expert members by the 

nomination of the Selection Committee and appointed by the 

Minister of Finance, at least one each in the legal, accounting  

and finance fields and 4) Secretary-General of the SEC as 

board member and secretary. The Chairman, the expert 

members and the Secretary-General shall hold the office for 

a four-year term and may be re-appointed, but not more than 

two consecutive terms. 

1.2  Capital Market Supervisory Board

The Capita l  Market Superv isory Board as  

stipulated in the Securities and Exchange Act consists of  

1) the Secretary-General as Chairman 2) the Deputy

Secretary-General appointed by the Secretary-General  

3) the Director-General of the Fiscal Policy Office or the

appointed Deputy Director-General, and 4) not more than  

four expert members appointed by the Minister of Finance  

upon the Selection Committee’s recommendation.  At least 

two of the expert members must have experiences managing 

listed company or securities company. The expert members’ 

term in office is four years and shall not hold the office for more 

than two consecutive terms.

2. Check and Balance Mechanism

To support operation of the SEC Board to ensure  

transparency, fairness and integrity, the SEC Board has  

appointed committees and sub-committees to be important 

mechanism of check and balance.

2.1 Audit Committee

Audit Committee is responsible for supervising and 

reviewing of the SEC management in accordance with the 

Securities and Exchange Act, other laws related to the capital 

market, other applicable laws and regulations and the SEC  

governance, including code of ethics and anti-corruption  

policy. The Audit Committee also provides independent  

recommendations on good governance, risk management 

and internal control. This is to ensure the SEC operation is 

appropriate, efficient and effective.



113ANNUAL REPORT 2015
The SecuriTieS and exchange commiSSion

  The Securities and Exchange Act stipulates that 

the Audit Committee consists of not less than three but not 

more than five members. Of this total, at least two members 

must be expert members of the SEC Board and appointed 

member shall be competent or have experiences in accounting, 

finance, law or capital market.  The term of office for the Audit  

Committee shall be as follows: (1) Audit Committee that 

is SEC Board including expert member shall have term of  

office that is identical to their terms on the SEC Board.  

(2) The others excluding SEC Board shall hold office for  

a term of four years and may be re-appointed, but not more  

than two consecutive terms. 

 2.2  Remuneration Sub-committee

  The Remuneration Sub-committee is responsible  

for studying guidelines for determining compensation,  

considers the appropriateness of compensation for the SEC 

Board and other sub-committees appointed by the SEC  

Board, and proposes recommendation to the SEC Board. 

The Sub-committee is also responsible for evaluating the 

performance of the Secretary-General in accordance with  

the strategic plans and the key performance indicators 

(KPIs) of the SEC and KPIs of the Secretary-General. The  

Sub-committee consists of three expert members from the SEC 

Board, each holding the office for a two-year term.  

  In late 2015, the SEC Board agreed to dissolve the 

Remuneration Sub-committee and transferred duty to the Good 

Governance and Remuneration Sub-committee.

 2.3 Good  Gover nance  and  Remunera t ion  

Sub-committee 

  The Good Governance and Remunerat ion  

Sub-committee’s duty is to suggest policy and guidelines 

for development of good governance of the organization,  

including guidelines or criteria for the nomination, remuneration  

and evaluation of the SEC Board, the Capital Market  

Superv i so ry  Board ,  the  Sub-commi t tee  and the  

Secretary-General. The Sub-committee consists of three 

members from the SEC Board, each holding the office for a 

two-year term.

3. The Meeting Attendance of the Boards 
and Sub-committees

 The SEC Board holds meeting at least once a month 

according to the pre-scheduled annual meeting calendar. 

The Secretary-General presents draft meeting agendas to the  

Chairman for approval. Once approved, the drafts will be placed 

on the meeting agenda and submitted to the SEC Board for 

consideration not less than seven days prior to the meeting. 

In order to make careful and prudent decision, the SEC Board 

may ask for additional information from the board’s secretary 

and also attend training programs related to the capital market.

 In the meeting, the Chairman of the SEC Board shall 

chair the meeting. In case the Chairman is unable to attend  

the meeting, the Permanent Secretary of the Ministry of  

Finance shall assume the duties of chairing the meeting. 
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 The members attending the meeting shall not be less 

than half to constitute a quorum. Members of management 

may attend the meeting on relevant topics. 

 Any member of the SEC Board having conflicts of  

interest in any agenda item is required to declare such  

conflict in advance and excluded from participating in the 

consideration of such item agenda. 

 In this respect, the meetings of the Capital Market 

Supervisory Board, the Audit Committee and the appointed 

Sub-committees follow similar guidelines.

 Details of the meetings of each Board and the  

Sub-committees for the year 2015 are as follows: 

(1)  SEC Board

Total Attendance/ No. of Meetings

Name

SEC Board

Remarks

Audit 
Committee

Remuneration    
Sub-committee

Good Governance 
and Remuneration 

Sub-committee

Mr. Achaporn Charuchinda 

Mr. Voravidh Champeeratana

Permanent Secretary of 

the Ministry of Finance

- Mr. Rungson Sriworasat

- Mr. Somchai Sujjapongse

Permanent Secretary of 

the Ministry of Commerce

- Ms. Chutima Bunyapraphasara 

6/8

3/3

6/8

2/3

8/11

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1/1

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Holding office until 

August 25, 2015

Holding office from 

September 15, 2015

Holding office until 

September 30, 2015

Holding office from

October 1, 2015

Chairman

Ex-officio Members

Position
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8/8

3/3

5/5

3/5

11/11

11/11 

9/11

5/6

5/6

6/6

4/4

7/7

-

-

-

-

11/12

12/12

12/12

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1/1

1/1

-

-

-

-

3/3

3/3

-

-

6/6

-

-

6/6

-

-

-

-

Holding office until 

September 30, 2015

Holding office from 

October 1, 2015

Holding office until 

May 10, 2015

Holding office until 

May 10, 2015

Holding office from 

May 11, 2015

Holding office from 

May 11, 2015

Holding office from 

May 11, 2015

Holding office until 

April 15, 2015

Holding office from 

May 1, 2015

Ex-officio Members 

Expert Members

Member and 

Secretary 

Total Attendance/ No. of Meetings

Name

SEC Board

Remarks

Audit 
Committee

Remuneration    
Sub-committee

Good Governance 
and Remuneration 

Sub-committee

Governor of the Bank of 

Thailand

- Mr. Prasarn Trairatvorakul

- Mr. Veerathai Santiprabhob

Mr. Kumchai Jongjakapun

Mr. Prasong Poontaneat

Ms. Sopawadee Lertmanaschai

Mr. Vikrom Koompirochana

Mr. Somchai Kuvijitsuwan

Mr. Sarawut Benjakul

Ms. Gallayanee Parkatt

Ms. Pranee Phasipol

SEC Secretary-General

- Mr. Vorapol Socatiyanurak

- Mr. Rapee Sucharitakul

Position
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Chairman

Ex-officio Members

Expert Members

SEC Secretary-General 

- Mr. Vorapol Socatiyanurak

- Mr. Chalee Chantanayingyong

(acting Secretary-General, thus

ex-officio Chairman)

- Mr. Rapee Sucharitakul

SEC Deputy Secretary-General

- Mr. Chalee Chantanayingyong

Director General, Fiscal Policy Office

- Mr. Krisada Chinavicharana

Mr. Kampanart Lohacharoenvanich

Mr. Pratib Yongvanich

Ms. Pornanong Budsaratragoon

Ms. Suchada Pavananunt

-  Holding office until 

 April 15, 2015

-  The meeting occurred 

 during the appointment of a 

 new Secretary-General was in 

 process.

-  Holding office from  

 May 1, 2015

5/5

1/1

7/8

13/13

13/14

14/14

14/14

13/14

14/14

NamePosition RemarksTotal attendance/

No. of meetings
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4.  Remuneration of the Boards and Executives

 4.1 Details of the remuneration of the boards and sub-committees

  The Securities and Exchanges Act contains provisions that the SEC Board and the sub-committees appointed by 

the SEC Board shall receive compensation as specified by the Minister of Finance.  The Capital Market Supervisory Board and 

the sub-committees appointed by the Capital Market Supervisory Board shall receive compensation as specified by the SEC 

Board.  The details of the remuneration are as follows:

Remuneration SEC Board Capital Market 

Supervisory Board

Audit 

Committee

Legal 

Sub-committee

Good Governance and 
Remuneration 

Sub-committee/
Appellate 

Sub-committee/
Draft Notification 

Sub-committee /Other 
Sub-committees

unit: baht

Remuneration of Committee

Chair Chair Chair Chair ChairMember Member Member Member Member

Monthly stipend

Attendance fee/meeting

Additional monthly 

remuneration paid to 

expert members of the 

Capital Market Supervisory 

Board who fall under the 

prescribed condition*

50,000

25,000

-

50,000

25,000

-

50,000

-

-

-

10,000

-

-

5,000

-

40,000

20,000

-

40,000

20,000

100,000*

40,000

-

-

-

8,000

-

-

4,000

-

Remark  *  The prescribed condition means being an expert member who has been affected by the restriction of working in any company or  

  organization under the supervision of the SEC, such in which case an expert member must be able to perform  

  additional work under the prescribed conditions. 
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Audit 
Committee

Remuneration of SEC Board

unit: baht

Name Position SEC Board Other 
Sub-committees

Total

Remuneration

Mr. Achaporn Charuchinda Chairman 540,322.58 - - 540,322.58

Mr. Voravidh Champeeratana Chairman 251,666.67 - - 251,666.67

Mr. Rungson Sriworasat Member 480,000.00 - 10,000.00 490,000.00

Mr. Somchai Sujjapongse Member 160,000.00 - - 160,000.00

Ms. Chutima Bunyapraphasara Member 640,000.00 - - 640,000.00

Mr. Prasarn Trairatvorakul Member 520,000.00 - 15,000.00 535,000.00

Mr. Veerathai Santiprabhob Member 180,000.00 - 15,000.00 195,000.00

Mr. Kumchai Jongjakapun Member 272,903.23 - 20,000.00 292,903.23

Mr. Prasong Poontaneat Member 232,903.23 - 4,000.00 236,903.23

Ms. Sopawadee Lertmanaschai Member 700,000.00 480,000.00 24,000.00 1,204,000.00

Mr. Vikrom Koompirochana Member 700,000.00 480,000.00 8,000.00 1,188,000.00

Mr. Somchai Kuvijitsuwan Member 660,000.00 600,000.00 33,000.00 1,293,000.00

Mr. Sarawut Benjakul Member 407,096.77 - 64,000.00 471,096.77

Ms. Gallayanee Parkatt Member 407,096.77 - - 407,096.77

Ms. Pranee Phasipol Member 427,096.77 - - 427,096.77

Mr. Vorapol Socatiyanurak Member and  220,000.00 - - 220,000.00

 Secretary

Mr. Rapee Sucharitakul Member and 460,000.00 - - 460,000.00

 Secretary

Mr. Chalee Chantanayingyong Member and 20,000.00 - - 20,000.00

 Secretary
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Remuneration of Capital Market Supervisory Board

Mr. Vorapol Socatiyanurak Chairman 300,000.00 - - 300,000.00

Mr. Rapee Sucharitakul Chairman 575,000.00 - - 575,000.00

Mr. Chalee Chantanayingyong Member 770,000.00 - - 770,000.00

Mr. Krisada Chinavicharana Member 740,000.00 56,000.00 - 796,000.00

Mr. Kampanart Lohacharoenvanich Member 760,000.00 30,000.00 1,200,000.00 1,990,000.00

Mr. Pratib Yongvanich Member 760,000.00 29,000.00 1,200,000.00 1,989,000.00

Ms. Pornanong Budsaratragoon Member 740,000.00 13,000.00 1,200,000.00 1,953,000.00

Ms. Suchada Pavananunt Member 760,000.00 10,000.00 1,200,000.00 1,970,000.00

 4.2 Detail of the remuneration of the executives

  In 2015, SEC executives consisting of the Secretary-General, Deputy Secretary-Generals, Senior Assistant  

Secretary-Generals and Assistant Secretary-Generals, altogether 10 persons, received compensations including salaries,  

provident fund, car allowance and gasoline totaling 75,648,344.66 baht, compared with 67,083,392.74 baht in 2014. The  

increase was due in part to the appointment of another Deputy Secretary-Generals in 2014. The figures of that year reflected the 

impact of such appointment during the last two months whereas the figures in 2015 showed the remunerations of all executives 

under the new organizational structure. 

  In addition, a partial increase was due to the change in remuneration option with regard to executive car allowance. 

Excluding these two factors, the increase of the remunerations of the executives were in line with the average salary increase 

of employees.

  

Other 
Sub-committees 

unit: baht

Name Position Capital Market 
Supervisory Board

Additional 
Remuneration

Total

Remuneration
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STATISTICAL HIGHLIGHTS*

Equity offerings 
                                                unit: million baht 

Type of Offerings  2013 2014 2015p

Initial public offerings   39,870 57,636 38,771

Secondary public offerings 1/ (SPO)  166,010 166,880 132,204

Total    205,880 224,516 170,975

Note:   1/ Source: the Stock Exchange of Thailand 

Debt securities offerings 

unit: million baht 

Type of Offerings  2013 2014 2015p

Domestic offerings  5,441,826 3,496,768 2,680,611 

  By Thai juristic persons  2,502,923 2,642,205 2,648,355 

  Short-term debt securities  2,062,083 2,063,398 2,089,465 

   Public offerings  126,786 57,187 21,035 

   Institutions / High net worth  investors  1,352,104 1,372,558 1,370,686 

   Private placements   583,194      633,653  697,743

 Long-term debt securities       440,840  578,807  558,890

   Public offerings  153,351  159,393 127,755 

   Institutions / High net worth investors  263,415    369,411 356,844 

   Private placements  24,075 50,003 74,291 

Real Estate Investment Trusts (REITs) 
                                   unit: million baht 

Type of Offerings   2014 2015

Initial public offerings   27,226 9,711

Public offerings   - 5,752

Total     27,226 15,463

* Last update as of the making of this report

p = preliminary data
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Debt securities offerings  
       unit: million baht 

Type of Offerings  2013 2014 2015p

 By foreign juristic persons   2,938,903 854,563 32,256

   Short-term debt securities    2,913,553     842,973 716 
    Public offerings  - - -

    Institutions / High net worth investors  2,913,553      842,973  716 

    Private placements  - - -

   Long-term debt securities        25,350        11,590  31,540

    Public offerings  - - -

    Institutions / High net worth investors         23,350       11,590 31,540

    Private placements           2,000  - -

 Overseas offerings     150,420   147,422 44,161

Total     5,592,246 3,644,190  2,724,772

p = preliminary data 

Government debt securities offerings classified by types of securities 

                           unit: mllion baht 

Type of Securities  2013 2014 2015p

Domestic offerings  6,981,731 6,311,984 7,120,643

 Government bonds  517,866 534,995 615,918

 Treasury bills  389,907 833,657 996,402

 Promissory notes  - 133,810 69,014

 State enterprise bonds 1/  223,606 132,070 122,004

 BOT bonds and FIDF bonds  5,850,352 4,677,452 5,317,305

Oversea offerings  - - -

Total    6,981,731 6,311,984 7,120,643

Source:  Bank of Thailand

Notes:   1/Excluding debentures issued by state enterprises that are limited companies.

p = preliminary data              
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Asset management business

Mutual funds    1,315 2,571,762 1,428 3,259,868 1,329 3,469,168

Property funds  107 371,113 105 396,006 79 368,954 

Real Estate Investment Trusts  - - 4 27,601 8 43,660

Infrastructure funds  3 129,779 3 143,362 5 221,532 

Private funds  2,668 437,519 3,100 488,107 3,602 630,084 

Provident funds  426 748,123 418 837,075 412 883,493 

1. Local investment funds  506 899,424 491 987,108 485 1,051,298

    A. Local funds  504 898,676 489 986,480 485 1,050,796         

   (1) Equity funds   212 376,184 205 476,312 224 472,283   
   (2) Fixed income funds   198 436,469 171 412,266 142 487,703 

   (3) Mixed funds  86 74,576 102 85,783 111 80,035 
   (4) Other funds  8 11,446 8 12,119 8 10,775

    B. Country funds  2 748 2 628 2 502 
   (1) Equity funds  2 748 2 628 2 502

2. Foreign investment funds  809 1,672,337 937 2,272,760 842 2,417,870

    A. Totally invested overseas 2/  437 632,047 519 828,528 551 859,493

    (1) Equity funds   93 36,269 159 104,433 224 221,682 

    (2) Fixed income funds   224 527,097 225 587,359 174 483,824 

    (3) Mixed funds  36 18,886 55 57,076 65 105,740

    (4) Other funds  84 49,796 80 49,660 88 48,247 

Types of Funds

Investment Policies

No. of

Funds

No. of

Funds

No. of

Funds

NAV 

(million baht)

NAV 

(million baht)

NAV 

(million baht)

2013 2014 2015

Number of mutual funds and net asset values 1/ classified by investment policy

No. of

Funds

No. of

Funds

No. of

Funds

NAV 

(million baht)

NAV 

(million baht)

NAV 

(million baht)

2013 2014 2015
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    B. Partially invested overseas 3/  372 1,040,290 418 1,444,232 291 1,558,378 

    (1) Equity funds  19 16,653 21 22,332 22 23,102 

    (2) Fixed income funds   274 730,730 315 1,061,083 174 1,240,393 

    (3) Mixed funds   62 286,200 67 353,148 79 278,764 

    (4) Other funds  17 6,707 15 7,669 16 16,119 

 Total     1,315 2,571,762 1,428 3,259,868 1,329 3,469,168

Notes:  1/  Excluding mutual funds being liquidated and Thai Trust Fund.

    2/  Funds with a policy to invest overseas, as an average in an accounting year or as at a particular time, not less than 80 percent 

     of NAV.

              3/   Funds with a policy to invest overseas, as an average in an accounting year or as at a particular time, less than 80 percent  

     of NAV.

1. Property funds for individual investor  47 232,913 52 279,036 52 282,414 

   A. Specific fund  45 230,870 59 276,976 50 280,412 

   B. Non-specific fund  2 2,043 2 2,060 2 2,002

2. Property funds for resolving financial   15 28,507 14 26,432 7 18,015

 institutions  problems (Type II Fund)   
3.  Mutual funds for resolving financial   7 7,115 6 5,477 - -

 institutions problems (Type III Fund) 
4.  Property and loan funds  38 102,578 33 85,061 20 68,525 

 (Type IV Fund)   
Total       107 371,113 105 396,006 79 368,954

Note:  1/ Excluding mutual funds being liquidated

Number of property funds and net asset values 1/ classified by investment policy

Investment Policies

Number of mutual funds and net asset values 1/ classified by investment policy

No. of

Funds

No. of

Funds

No. of

Funds

NAV 

(million baht)

NAV 

(million baht)

NAV 

(million baht)

2013 2014 2015

Investment Policies No. of

Funds

No. of

Funds

No. of

Funds

NAV 

(million baht)

NAV 

(million baht)

NAV 

(million baht)

2013 2014 2015
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Issuance and offering of derivative warrants (DW)                                                                                                                                         
 unit: issue          

      2013 2014 2015

Total    723 1,373 1,598

Note: New issue only

Provident fund status  

        31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2015   Change(%)

NAV (million baht)  837,075 883,493 5.55

No. of funds   418 412 (1.43) 

No. of employers  14,505 15,496 6.83 

No. of employees  2,676,545 2,780,189 3.87 

 

Cash and bank deposits  235,838 28.17 205,727 23.29 (30,111) (12.77)

Government bonds, treasury bills and debt   186,049 22.23 203,321 23.01 17,272 9.28 

 instruments guaranteed by the 

 Ministry of Finance      
Bills of exchange and promissory notes  5,050 0.60 10,476 1.19 5,426 107.46 

Debentures   213,613 25.52 255,635 28.93 42,022 19.67 

Common shares, preferred shares and warrants 129,420 15.46 132,460 14.99 3,040 2.35

Investment units  64,340 7.69 77,385 8.76 13,045 20.27

Others    7,203 0.86 5,196 0.59 (2,007) (27.86)

Liabilities   (4,438) (0.53) (6,707) (0.76) 2,269 51.13 

Net Asset Value  837,075 100.00 883,493 100.00 46,418 5.55 

   

Investment of provident funds

Investment Types Value 

(million baht) 

Value 

(million baht) 

Value 

(million baht) 
%NAV %NAV %NAV

2014 2015 Change
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Provident funds with employee’s choice policy 

       2014 2015   Change(%)

No. of master funds   159 162  1.89 

No. of participating employers   5,314 6,151 15.75

Tender offers for business takeover 

Tender Offers  2013 2014 2015

For business takeovers 
 Tender offer value (million baht)  308,922 320,779 49,847

 Acquired share value (million baht)   230,863 5,846 42,507

 No. of cases  9 10 8

For delisting

 Tender offer value (million baht)  466 5,238 4,153

 Acquired share value (million baht)   62 4,392 3,401

 No. of cases  2 3 1

Total

 Tender offer value (million baht)  308,388 326,016  54,000

 Acquired share value (million baht)    230,925 10,238 45,908

 No. of cases  11 13 9

Tender offer waivers 
unit: case

Types of Waivers  2013 2014 2015

Granted waivers  14 9 14

  (1) No changes of control   8 4 9

  (2) Rehabilitation   2 1 2

  (3) Granted approval from shareholders’ meetings (white wash)  3 4 2 

  (4) Necessary and appropriate  1 - -

  (5) Partial tender offer  - - 1

Waivers of procedures or methods for making tender offers              -   1 1 
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Related party transaction and acquisition and 30 408,501 59 284,392 45 164,690

 disposal of assets proposed for approval 

 at shareholders’ meeting   

Ordered rectification  10 22,924 12 26,359 19 94,533

Released investor alerts  3 3,420 5 3,919 6 33,940

Ordered rectification, transaction   - - 2 2,822 2 23,940 

 postponed or cancelled 

Actions

Actions against related party transactions and acquisition and disposal of assets 

Rectification orders categorized by issues 

 unit: company

Relevant Accounting Standards  2013 2014 2015

Auditor’s opinion on audit limitation imposed by the management  1 3 3

Auditor’s opinion on non-compliance with accounting standards   - - 1

 and incorrect disclosure 

Under record liabilities  - 1 -

Property, plant and equipment (transfer of the revaluation surplus not  - - 1

 complying with the applicable accounting standards)

No. of 

Companies

No. of 

Companies

No. of 

Companies

NAV 

(million baht)

NAV 

(million baht)

NAV 

(million baht)

2013 2014 2015
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Approval of securities license, derivatives license and trustee license in 2015     

unit: company

Types of Licenses    No. of Approval

1.  A - All types of securities business     3

2.  B - Brokerage, dealing and underwriting of debt securities + investment advisory service +   1

 securities borrowing and lending    

3.  C - Mutual fund management + private fund management + investment advisory service +   3

 venture capital management + brokerage, dealing and underwriting of investment units   
4.  D - Brokerage, dealing and underwriting of investment units      2

5.  Sor-1 – All categories of derivatives businesses    4

6.  Sor-2 – Derivatives brokerage and dealing related to debt securities + derivatives advisory service  1

7. Investment advisory    1

8.  Derivatives advisory service    4

9.  Derivatives fund management     2

10.  Inter-dealer broker    2

11. Agricultural derivatives licenses     1

Total      24
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Activation of securities business, derivatives business and trustee business in 2015 

Types of Businesses    No. of Activation

Securities brokerage     3

Securities dealing     3

Securities underwriting     2

Securities dealing of debt     1

Securities borrowing and lending business (principal and agent)     -

Securities borrowing and lending business (only principal)     2

Mutual fund management     1 

Private fund management     3

Private fund management (provident fund)      1

Securities brokerage, dealing and underwriting of investment unit     2

Investment advisor     3

Derivatives brokerage    2

Derivatives fund management      1

Derivatives dealing (including registration)    2

Inter-dealer brokerage     2

Agricultural derivatives brokerage      1

Sukuk trustee     1

Trustee of private equity trust     3

Trustee of infrastructure trust     3

Note: Excluding companies that request cancellation of old licenses and apply for a new one while operating business continuously.
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Securities, derivatives and trustee business operators    

Types of Businesses  2013 2014 2015

Securities businesses -  Securities brokers  35 36 38 

     -  Securities dealers  33 33 35 

     -  Securities underwriters  37 37 38 
     -  Investment advisors  36 38 40 
     -  Securities borrowing and lending  26 28 30 

     -  Inter-dealer brokers  2 2 4 
     -  Securities financing  1 1 1 
     -  Full branch   499 514 536 

     -  Cyber branch  10 12 13

Asset management -  Mutual fund management   23 23 24

businesses  -  Private fund management  33 33 33 
     -  Private fund management (provident fund) 18 18 17 
     -  Brokers, dealers and underwriters   28 33 34* 
      limited to investment units

     - Venture capital management   2 2 2

     -  Full branch   2 4 8

Derivatives businesses -  Derivatives agents  39 40 41 

     -  Derivatives fund management   14 15 17 
     - Derivatives investment advisor  1 1 1 

     -  Derivatives agent (Institutional investor)  1 1 1 

     -  Derivatives dealers  (Institutional investors) 43 43 43  
     - Derivatives agent (Agricultural)  - - 1 

Trustee businesses -  REIT managers  1 5 10

     - Real Estate Investment Trust trustee  3 6 6

     -  Sukuk trustee  - - 1

     -  Trustee of private equity trust  - - 3

     -  Trustee of infrastructure trust  - - 3 

* YLG Bullion & Futures Company Limited was approved by the Minister of Finance to discontinue operating securities business type D effective 

on 31 December 2015.
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Number of securities companies 

Types of Businesses    2013 2014 2015

Securities company    39 40 42 

Asset management company    24 24 24 

Investment advisory business    6 9 11 

Investment unit brokerage      - 2 3 

Total      69 75 80 

    

Types of Businesses    2013 2014 2015

Other businesses -  Mutual fund supervisor     13 13 13 
     - Custodian   14 14 14 

     -  NAV verifiers of provident fund  13 13 13

     -  Marketing representatives of private fund 11 11 11 

     -  Marketing representatives of deriratives fund 1 1 1

     -  Fund rating agencies   4 4 4 

     -  Credit rating agencies    2 2 2 

     -  Securities registrar   16 16 16

Note: Excluding companies whose operation was temporarily suspended.

Approval of independent professionals 

Financial advisors (company)     2 20 72

Financial advisor supervisors (person)   51 12 359

Auditors (person)    21 14 175

Total of Approved 
Independent 

Professionals As 
of End of 2015

New Renewal

Types

Approval



Note: * Directors of securities businesses may concurrently hold the same position at other securities companies (cross directorship).
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Number of active personnel in securities and derivatives businesses

 unit: position

Types       Active
          2014 2015

Directors and executives*     1,316 1,354

Investment analyst consultants    716 719 

Investment consultants     39,204 46,143 

Investment planners     3,230 3,088

Fund managers      479 449

Approval of personnel in securities and derivatives businesses

 unit: position

Types                       Approval 
         2014 2015

Directors and executives     1,303 1,361 

Investment analyst consultants    1,234 1,246

Investment consultants     44,434 54,973 

Investment planners     3,356 3,277

Fund managers     646 683
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Inspection of market intermediaries 

Types of Businesses No. of   Results and Actions

 Companies

Routine Inspection

Brokers, dealers and underwriters of 

investment units

Asset management companies and insurance 

companies that operate provident business

Mutual fund supervisors

Most companies maintained an acceptable level of risk  

management. In case a company failed to comply with  

regulations or violated the law, the SEC ordered /reiterated  

companies to rectify and pursued legal actions against violations  

of law according to the seriousness of misconduct. Common  

findings were related to:

-  know you customer (KYC) and customer due diligence (CDD);

-  supervision on investment consultant.

Most companies maintained an acceptable level of risk 

management. In case a company failed to comply with 

regulations or violated the law, the SEC ordered/ reiterated  

companies to rectify. Common findings were related to:

- selection of brokers;

-  inspection of know you customer (KYC) and customer due  

 diligence (CDD);

-  supervision of outsources;

-  measures to prevent conflicts of interest;

-  paying contributions and benefits to fund members.

Most companies maintained an acceptable level of risk  

management. 

No significant issues.

7

8

6
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Public complaints 

Types of Complaints    2013 2014 2015

1. Unfair securities trading activities (market manipulation,   30  41 18 

 false news, insider trading) 

2. Unlicensed business    70 34 58

 2.1  Unlicensed securities and derivatives   58 25 45

   businesses   

 2.2  Unlicensed investment advisory service  12 9 13

3. Investment consultants’ misconduct  18 25 15

4. Other complaints     331 294 502

Total      449 394 593

Investigations classified by types of offences 

Types of Offences      Number of Cases

Unfair securities trading activities 

 - Dissemination of false news    9

 - Market manipulation      36

 - Insider trading      25

Corporate frauds or malpractices committed by executives of listed    14 

 companies/issuing companies and falsification of documents or accounts    

Unlicensed securities/derivatives businesses    15

Failure to report securities holding and tender offer/other offences    3

Total        102
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Administrative sanctions and others in 2015  

  The SEC sanctioned 48 offenders, including 41 investment consultants/analysts, four securities company executives/ 

authorized persons, one financial advisor and two financial advisor supervisors, with details as follow:

Investment consultant/ Breach of professional conducts 

Investment analyst 1. Dishonest acts

         1.1   Fraud/embezzlement  - - 1

          1.2   Using client’s trading account to trade securities - - 3

       for himself or another person

      1.3  Taking advantage of client’s asset   - - 1

          1.4   Exploiting investors’ benefit by taking advantage - 4 -

       of their work position     

      1.5   Signing the buy/sell order form of investment units  - 1 -

       without contacting or giving advice to a client company     

      1.6  Concealing violation of the rules  - 4 -

     2.  Unprofessional acts   

          2.1   Giving biased and inappropriate advice to investors - 4 -

          2.2   Providing incomplete information  - 1 -

          2.3   Accepting authorization to make securities  - 21 -

       trading decisions for clients  

          2.4   Trading securities without client’s order - 2 -

          2.5   Failing to perform duties as an investment consultant - 1 -

           2.6   Accepting trading orders from a person who was - 6 -

          not the account owner 

      2.7  Failing to comply with the operational guidelines  - 1 -

           related to KYC/CDD 

      2.8  Interfering with clients’ asset  - 1 -

          2.9  Failing to comply with the rules and regulations of the company - 1 -

Types of Approved

Persons Misconducts Public Reprimand

Sanctions

Suspension Revocation
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     3. Violation of laws or regulations

          3.1 No record of investment advice and clients’ trading orders 1 6 -

     4. Failing to comply with ethics of the Association of 

          Thai Securities Company

      4.1 Failing to follow the rules of employee trading - 1 -

     5.  Unfair trading activities

        5.1 Sending inappropriate orders  - 4 -

Securities company Lack of qualifications

executive/ authorized 1.  Breach of duty  - 1 -

person   2.  Negligent inspection on operation  - 3 -

    

Financial advisor Improper performance of duty  - 1 -

Financial advisor 1.  Improper performance of duty  - 1 -

supervisor  2.  Intentional disclosure of false statements,  - - 1

      concealment of material facts

Auditor   Improper performance of duty       no sanctions

Fund Manager Breach of duty       no sanctions

Total       1 64 6

Note:  1.  Some offenders may commit more than one offense.

           2.  As some of the offenders failed to comply with several regulations, the number of offenders, therefore, is less than the number of 

misconducts.

Types of Approved

Persons Misconducts Public Reprimand

Sanctions

Suspension Revocation
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Legal actions taken under the Securities and Exchange Act B.E. 2535 (1992) 

Types of Offences

Criminal Complaint Settlement

No. of

Persons
No. of

Persons

Fine (Baht)

Securities business   

- Securities brokerage    - 6 2,454,600

-  Unlicensed securities business  8 - -

Total      8 6 2,454,600

Asset management business   

-  Mutual fund    - 5 1,220,300

-  Private fund/investment advisor/derivatives - 1 650,600

   fund management   

-  Fund supervisors    - 1 91,800

-  Asset management executives  - 1 580,400

Total      - 8 2,543,100

Unfair securities trading activities   

-  Market manipulation    4 12 22,173,483.95

-  Dissemination of false news  - 1 1,500,000

-  Insider trading    2 10 48,775,054.11

Total      6 23 72,448,538.06

Takeover     1 4 2,258,800

Total      1 4 2,258,800

Securities issuance and offering  

-  Issuers failed to prepare and submit financial information and 18 24 6,046,200

 operating performance in accordance with the SEC regulations

-  Executives of issuing companies were punished due to the 20 23 5,464,800

 company’s failure to prepare and submit financial information and 

 operating performance in accordance with the SEC regulations 

-  Executives of issuing companies failed to report their acquisition and - 1 225,000

 disposal of securities in accordance with the SEC regulations

Total      38 48 11,736,000



138

Misconduct committed by issuing company executives

-  Fraud      21 - -

-  Breach of duty    2 - -

Total      23 - -

Other   

-  Impart false statements to officer 1 - -

Total      1 - -

Grand Total     77 89 91,441,038.06

Criminal complaints filed under the Derivatives Act B.E. 2546 (2003) 

Types of Offences No. of Persons

Operating unlicensed derivatives business   3

Frauds committed by securities company officers (front – running)   1

Total        4

Types of Offences

Criminal Complaint Settlement

No. of

Persons
No. of

Persons

Fine (Baht)
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Court judgments on 25 cases in 2015

1. Three cases on embezzlement of listed company’s executives

Offences   Sections Judgments

1.1 {A}, the first defendants and {B}, 

the second defendant, as former executive 

and former employee respectively, of {X1} 

Securities Public Company Limited,  for 

seeking unlawful gains. (The criminal  

complaint was filed on December 28, 1999).

1.2  {C}, former executive of {X2} Public 

Company Limited, for falsifying account to 

deceive other persons, concealing report on 

securities trading, and using inside 

information to trade the company’s securities. 

(The criminal complaint was filed on February 

24, 2003).  

1.3 Mr. Ratchasak Susewi, former executive  

of Power-P Public Company Limited, for 

committing fraud and allowing misconducts 

on the company’s accounts and documents. 

(The criminal complaint was filed on December 

7, 2010).

315 in conjunction with  

Section 311 of the SEA

300 in conjunction with  

Section 56 59 238 241 246 

274 275 296 298 312 of 

the SEA

307 308 311 in conjunction 

with Section 313 and 312(2)

(3) of the SEA

On February 21, 2015, the Supreme Court affirmed 

the verdict of the Appeal Court that sentenced the 

second defendant imprisonment without waiting 

penalty on account of aiding the first defendant to 

manage work dishonestly and carelessly and seek 

unlawful gains. Previously, the Supreme Court 

had dismissed {A}’s case due to his death (The 

case reached final judgment).   

On September 22, 2015, the Supreme Court  

affirmed the verdict of the Appeal Court that  

sentenced the defendant to an imprisonment for 

a term of eight years and 18 months and a fine of 

1,850,000 baht. The defendant failed to show up 

in court and was subject to an arrest warrant. (The 

case reached final judgment).  

On March 30, 2015, the Criminal Court sentenced 

the defendant to an eight-year imprisonment for 

embezzling Power-P’s assets, and a separate  

eight-year imprisonment for allowing false records  

or no record of material information in the  

company’s financial statements and documents  

as well as incomplete, incorrect accounting  

records. However, due to the extenuating  

circumstance (the defendant’s confession to the 

offences), the Court reduced each jail term to five 

years and four months, totaling 10 years and eight 

months without suspending the penalties. (The 

case is under consideration of the Appeal Court).
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2. One case on price manipulation

{D}, the first  de fendant ,  and {E}, 

the second defendant, for colluding with 

other persons to manipulate the share 

price of Krisdamahanakorn Public 

Company Limited (KMG). (The complaint was 

filed on April 22, 1993).

42 Chor  (1 ) (2 )  o f  the  

Securit ies Exchange of  

Thailand Act and 

243(1)(2) of the SEA 

On March 16, 2015, the Supreme Court affirmed  

that both defendants were joint principals and  

sentenced the first defendant to a one-year  

imprisonment and a fine of 333,333.33 baht, and 

the second defendant to a one-year and six-month 

imprisonment and a fine of 500,000 baht without 

suspending the penalties. (The case reached final 

judgment).

Offences   Sections Judgments

Master  Bus iness Consul t  Co. ,  Ltd. ,  

Mr. Wittaya Phanrungrat and Mr. Phinij  

Ratanacharrak solicited the public to invest  

in gold futures, which was deemed an  

undertaking of derivatives business without 

license. (The complaint was filed on August 

10, 2011).

16 of Derivatives Act of 

2003

On November 16, 2015, the Supreme Court  

sentenced Phinij to a three-month imprisonment 

and a fine of 207,500 baht. The jail term was  

suspended for two years because only one  

defendant was prosecuted. (The case reached final 

judgment).

Offences   Sections Judgments

3. One case on unlicensed derivatives business
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4. Twenty cases on listed companies’ failure to submit financial statements and  
operating performance in accordance with the SEC notification. (All cases reached the 
final judgment.)

Offences   Sections Judgments

4.1 The financial statements for Q3/2013. 

An executive responsible for the company’s 

operation was also liable to the penalty. (The 

criminal complaint was filed on February 7, 

2014.)

4.2 The financial statements for Q4/2013. 

An executive responsible for the company’s 

operation was also liable to the penalty. (The 

criminal complaint was filed on May 12, 2014.)

4.3 The financial statements for Q4/2013,  

the financial statements for 2013. An  

executive responsible for the company’s 

operation was also liable to the penalty.  

(The criminal complaint was filed on May 12, 

2014.)

4.4 The financial statements for 2013, annual 

registration statement for 2013 (form 56-1). 

An executive responsible for the company’s 

operation was also liable to the penalty. (The 

criminal complaint was filed on June 4, 2014.)

- the company violated 

 Section 56 and 199 in  

 conjunction with Section  

 56 of the SEA

- the executive violated  

 Section 300 of the SEA

On July 17, 2015, the Appeal Court ordered both 

defendants to pay a fine of 108,400 baht each and 

a further fine of 200 baht for everyday during which 

the contravention continued.  

On July 13, 2015, the Criminal Court ordered an 

executive to pay a fine of 573,000 baht (cannot 

take the juristic representative prosecuted within 

time limit)

On February 17, 2015, the Criminal Court ordered 

both defendants to pay a fine of 239,750 baht each 

and a further fine of 500 baht for everyday during 

which the contravention continued. 

On January 8, 2015, the Criminal Court ordered 

both defendants to pay a fine of 209,250 baht each 

and a further fine of 500 baht for everyday during 

which the contravention continued.



142

Offences   Sections Judgments

4.5  The financial statements for 2013, annual 

registration statement for 2013 (form 56-1). 

An executive responsible for the company’s 

operation was also liable to the penalty. (The 

criminal complaint was filed on June 16, 2014.)

4.6  The annual registration statement for 

2013 (form 56-1). An executive responsible 

for the company’s operation was also liable to 

the penalty. (The criminal complaint was filed 

on June 16, 2014.)

4.7 A listed company failed to prepare and 

submit the annual registration statement for 

2013 (form 56-1). An executive responsible 

for the company’s operation was also liable to 

the penalty. (The criminal complaint was filed 

on July 14, 2014.)

4.8 The financial statements for 2013, annual 

registration statement for 2013 (form 56-1).  

An executive responsible for the company’s 

operation was also liable to the penalty. (The 

criminal complaint was filed on July 29, 2014.)

4.9 The financial statements for Q4/2013, the 

financial statements for the year 2013, annual 

registration statement for 2013 (form 56-1). 

(The criminal complaint was filed on July 29, 

2014.)

4.10 The annual report 2013 (form 56-2). An  

executive responsible for the company’s  

operation was also liable to the penalty. (The 

criminal complaint was filed on August 8, 2014.)

- the company violated  

 Section 56 and 199 in  

 conjunction with Section  

 56 of the SEA

- the executive violated  

 Section 300 of the SEA

On June 26, 2015, the Criminal Court ordered both 

defendants to pay a fine of 233,750 baht each and 

a further fine of 500 baht for everyday during which 

the contravention continued.

On January 29, 2015, the Criminal Court ordered 

both defendants to pay a fine of 182,000 baht each 

and a further fine of 500 baht for everyday during 

which the contravention continued.

On February 23, 2015, the Criminal Court ordered 

both defendants to pay a fine of 194,500 baht each 

and a further fine of 500 baht for everyday during 

which the contravention continued.

On January 20, 2015, the Criminal Court ordered  

both defendants to pay a fine of 118,500 baht each  

and a further fine of 150 baht for everyday during 

which the contravention continued.

On March 17, 2015, the Criminal Court ordered  

both defendants to pay a fine of 100,600 baht each 

and a further fine of 200 baht for everyday during 

which the contravention continued.

 

On April 29, 2015, the Criminal Court ordered both 

defendants to pay a fine of 121,000 baht each and 

a further fine of 500 baht for everyday during which 

the contravention continued.
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Offences   Sections Judgments

On May 7, 2015, the Criminal Court ordered both 

defendants to pay a fine of 181,000 baht each and 

a further fine of 500 baht for everyday during which 

the contravention continued.

On May 7, 2015, the Criminal Court ordered both 

defendants to pay a fine of 181,000 baht each and 

a further fine of 500 baht for everyday during which 

the contravention continued.

On March 5, 2015, the Criminal Court ordered both 

defendants to pay a fine of 2,198,000 baht each 

and a further fine of 2,000 baht for everyday during 

which the contravention continued.

On April 29, 2015, the Criminal Court ordered both 

defendants to pay a fine of 117,250 baht each and 

a further fine of 500 baht for everyday during which 

the contravention continued.

On May 20, 2015, the Criminal Court ordered 

the first defendant to pay a fine of 130,250 baht 

and a further fine of 250 baht for everyday during 

which the contravention continued and ordered the  

second defendant to pay a fine of 30,000 baht  

and a further fine for 250 baht for everyday during 

which the contravention continued.

- the company violated  

 Section 56 and 199 in  

 conjunction with Section  

 56 of the SEA

-  the executive violated  

 Section 300 of the SEA

4.11 The annual report 2013 (form 56-2).  

An executive responsible for the company’s 

operation was also liable to the penalty.  

(The criminal complaint was filed on August 

25, 2014.)

4.12 The annual report 2013 (form 56-2). 

An executive responsible for the company’s  

operation was also liable to the penalty. (The 

criminal complaint was filed on August 25, 

2014.)

4.13 The financial statements for 2013, annual 

registration statements for 2013 (form 56-1), 

annual report 2013 (form 56-2). An executive  

responsible for the company’s operation 

was also liable to the penalty. (The criminal  

complaint was filed on September 5, 2014.)

4.14 The financial statements for Q1/2014. 

An executive responsible for the company’s  

operation was also liable to the penalty. (The 

criminal complaint was filed on September 

15, 2014.)

4.15 The annual report 2013 (form 56-2), the 

financial statements for Q1 and Q2/2014.  

An executive responsible for the company’s 

operation was also liable to the penalty. (The 

criminal complaint was filed on October 3, 

2014.)
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Offences   Sections Judgments

On February 26, 2015, the Criminal Court ordered 

both defendants to pay a fine of 316,000 baht each.

On June 30, 2015, the Criminal Court ordered an 

executive to pay a fine of 290,000 baht (cannot 

take the juristic representative prosecuted within 

time limit)

On February 23, 2015, the Criminal Court ordered 

both defendants to pay a fine of 298,500 baht each 

and a further fine of 500 baht for everyday during 

which the contravention continued.

On August 3, 2015, the Criminal Court ordered both 

defendants to pay a fine of 404,000 baht each and a 

further fine of 1,000 baht for everyday during which 

the contravention continued.

On October 22, 2015, the Criminal Court ordered 

both defendants to pay a fine of 30,000 baht each 

and a further fine of 250 baht for everyday during 

which the contravention continued.

4.16 The annual report 2013 (form 56-2). 

An executive responsible for the company’s  

operation was also liable to the penalty. (The 

criminal complaint was filed on October 15, 

2014.)

4.17 The financial statements for Q1/2014. 

An executive responsible for the company’s 

operation was also liable to the penalty. (The 

criminal complaint was filed on October 29, 

2014.)

4.18 The financial statements for Q1 and 

Q2/2014. An executive responsible for the 

company’s operation was also liable to the 

penalty. (The criminal complaint was filed on 

October 29, 2014.)

4.19 The first six months report for 2015. 

An executive responsible for the company’s  

operation was also liable to the penalty. (The 

criminal complaint was filed on February 25, 

2015.)

4.20 The financial statements for Q3/2014. 

An executive responsible for the company’s  

operation was also liable to the penalty. (The 

criminal complaint was filed on March 31, 

2014.)

- the company violated  

 Section 56 and 199 in  

 conjunction with Section  

 56 of the SEA

- the executive violated  

 Section 300 of the SEA
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Statistical highlights of the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET)

         2013  2014 2015

SET Index 1/      1,298.71 1,497.67 1,288.02

Total trading value (million baht)   11,777,210 10,193,179 9,997,371

Average daily trading value (million baht)  48,070 41,605 41,141

Turnover ratio (%) 2/     100.97 80.41 76.49

Market capitalization1/ (million baht)   11,496,765 13,856,283 12,282,754

No. of listed companies 1/     489 502 517

No. of listed securities 1/     1,099 1,592 1,665

P/E ratio (times) 1/     14.60 17.81 22.57

P/BV ratio (times) 1/     2.02 2.13 1.74

Dividend yield (%) 1/     3.24 2.94 3.36

Source: The Stock Exchange of Thailand

Notes:  1/ At the end of period

          2/ Turnover ratio      = trading value

 average market capitalization
x 100( )
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Trading values of the SET      
 
        2013 2014 2015

Net buying value 1/   

 Local institutional investors    108,163 71,424 79,054

 Proprietary trading    -1,723 3,581 -6,417

 Local non-institutional investors  87,471 -38,421 81,708

 Foreign investors    -193,911 -36,584 -154,345

Buying and selling value 2/     23,554,420 20,386,358 19,994,742

 Local institutional investors    2,099,097 1,944,010 2,010,083

 Proprietary trading    3,091,690 1,925,982 1,977,564

 Local non-institutional investors  13,021,186 12,049,002 11,263,801

 Foreign investors    5,342,447 4,467,364 4,743,294

Percentage of buying and selling value (%) 3/  100.00 100.00 100.00

 Local institutional investors    8.9 9.5 10.1

 Proprietary trading    13.1 9.5 9.9

 Local non-institutional investors  55.3 59.1 56.3

 Foreign investor     22.7 21.9 23.7

Source: Stock Exchange of Thailand

Notes:    1/ Net buying value  =  buying value - selling value

           2/ Buying and selling value  =  buying value + selling value

          3/ Percentage of buying and selling value  = buying value + selling value

total market buying and selling value
x 100( )
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Statistical highlights of the Market for Alternative Investment (mai)

        2013  2014 2015

mai Index 1/     356.80 700.05 522.62

Total trading value (million baht)   553,459 946,112 768,097

Average daily trading value (million baht)  2,259 3,862 3,161

Turnover ratio (%) 2/    356.63 337.63 217.42

Market capitalization (million baht) 1/   177,365 383,075 323,478

No. of listed companies 1/    95 111 122

No. of listed securities 1/    127 150 167

P/E ratio (times) 1/    28.32 69.63 52.94

P/BV ratio (times) 1/    2.69 5.64 3.29

Dividend yield (%) 1/    1.46 0.87 1.00

Source: The Stock Exchange of Thailand

Notes:  1/ At the end of period

          2/ Turnover ratio      = trading value

 average market capitalization
x 100( )
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Trading values of the mai  

         2013  2014 2015

Net buying value 1/   

 Local institutional investors    -561 -1,814 3,078

 Proprietary trading    -20 20 20

 Local non-institutional investors  1,372 906 -1,813

 Foreign investors    -791 888 -1,285

Buying and selling value 2/    1,106,917 1,892,224 1,536,195

 Local institutional investors    5,106 7,169 11,377

 Proprietary trading    18,416 7,359 3,976

 Local non-institutional investors  1,065,160 1,834,252 1,484,879

 Foreign investors    18,235 43,444 35,963

Percentage of buying and selling value (%) 3/  100.00 100.00 100.00

 Local institutional investors    0.5 0.4 0.7

 Proprietary trading    1.7 0.4 0.3

 Local non-institutional investors  96.2 96.9 96.7

 Foreign investors    1.6 2.3 2.3

Source: Stock Exchange of Thailand

Notes:    1/ Net buying value  =  buying value - selling value

           2/ Buying and selling value  =  buying value + selling value

          3/ Percentage of buying and selling value  = buying value + selling value

total market buying and selling value
x 100( )
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Statistical highlights of the Thai bond market    

        2013 2014 2015

Government Bond Total Return Index 1/  223.90 244.94 257.43

Average Government Bond Yield (%) 1/  3.92 3.18 2.88

Investment Grade Corp. Bond Total Return Index 1/  191.59 204.39 214.37

Average Investment Grade Corp. Bond Yield (%) 1/  4.19 3.38 2.86

Total trading value  (million baht) 2/  20,896,779 18,867,218 19,653,835

    Government debt securities  20,362,200 18,238,424 18,826,665

    Corporate debt securities 2/   498,255 592,560 807,686

    Foreign bonds    36,324 36,234 19,484

Average daily trading value (million baht) 3/  85,293 77,009 80,880

Turnover ratio (%) 3/    237.84 206.43 203.58

    Government debt securities  294.73 260.91 259.55

    Corporate debt securities   28.16 28.97 34.94

    Foreign bonds    33.76 34.86 21.67

Outstanding value of registered securities (million baht) 1/  8,991,819 9,287,288 10,023,042

    Government debt securities  6,991,899 6,988,684 7,518,399

    Corporate debt securities   1,883,446 2,207,230 2,416,169

    Foreign bonds    116,474 91,374 88,474

No. of registered securities 1/    2,358 2,879 3,029

     Government debt securities  647 622 582

     Corporate debt securities    1,667 2,218 2,409

     Foreign bonds    44 39 38

Percentage of trading value (%)   100.00 100.00 100.00

  Inter-dealers    32.22 28.80 26.07

  Dealers-to-clients    67.78 71.19 73.93

   Non-dealer license financial institutions  1.49 2.58 2.64

   Mutual funds    36.15 43.68 47.81

   Insurance companies   2.82 3.29 2.78

   Domestic companies   6.90 4.67 4.74

   Foreign companies    11.99 9.46 7.28

   Retail investors     0.17 0.21 0.33

   Others    8.27 7.32 8.35

Source: The Thai Bond Market Association

Notes:  1/ At the end of period

          2/ Only outright trading value 

   3/ Turnover Ratio      = trading value

 average market capitalization
x 100( )

 p = preliminary data
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Statistical highlights of the Thailand Futures Exchange (TFEX) 
   
     unit: contract

        2013 2014 2015

SET50 Index Futures   

 Open interest *    37,496 177,704 288,560

 Average daily trading volume   23,217 58,790 110,142

SET50 Index Options   

 Open interest *    1,640 3,543 5,624

 Average daily trading volume   267 444 1,264

Single Stock Futures    

 Open interest *    282,282 704,176 615,012

 Average daily trading volume   34,350 80,100 81,103

Metal Futures   

 Open interest *    13,485 19,819 18,328

 Average daily trading volume   9,014 6,293 6,015

Interest Rate Futures    

 Open interest *    - - - 

 Average daily trading volume   - - -

Brent Crude Oil Futures    

 Open interest *    253 449 384

 Average daily trading volume   189 133 107

USD Futures    

 Open interest *    5,622 12,496   13,584

 Average daily trading volume   976 1,265 1,118

Sector Index Futures    

 Open interest *    - - - 

 Average daily trading volume   - - - 

Source: Thailand Futures Exchange Plc.

Note:   * At the end of period.
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Trading volumes of TFEX     
 
                                                             unit: contract

        2013 2014 2015

Trading volume (long and short) 1/  33,328,252 72,042,300 97,077,798

Local institutional investors    11,972,926 25,916,251 33,797,596

Local non-institutional investors  18,672,749 39,769,129 52,045,981

Foreign investors    2,682,577 6,356,920 11,234,221

Percentage of trading volume (%) 2/  100.00 100.00 100.00

Local institutional investors    35.94 35.98 34.82

Local non-institutional investors  56.02 55.20 53.61

Foreign investors    8.04 8.82 11.57

Source: Thailand Futures Exchange Plc.

Notes:    1/ Trading volume  =  long volume + short volume

              2/ Percentage of trading volume  =  long volume + short volume

    Total trading volume
x 100( )
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SUB-COMMITTEES

1. Sub-committee on Consideration of Regulations on Supervision of Securities and Derivatives  

Business Operators

 (1) To consider and give advice on issuance of regulations on supervision of securities and derivatives business operators, 

securities exchange, over-the-counter centers, derivatives exchange, securities-related agencies, derivatives clearing house, 

and related business operators;

 (2) To perform other duties as assigned by the Capital Market Supervisory Board.

 Comprises:

 (1)  Mr. Kampanart Lohacharoenvanich  Chairman

 (2)  Representative from the Stock Exchange of Thailand Member

 (3)  Representative from the Thailand Futures Exchange Plc. Member

 (4)  Representative from the Association of Thai Securities Companies  Member

 (5)  Representative from the Thai Investors Association  Member

 (6)  Representative from the Association of Investment  Member

         Management Companies 

 (7)  Representative from the Investment Analysts Association  Member

         (in case of relevant matters only) 

 (8)  Mr. Ayuth Krishnamara Member

    (in case of regulations governing securities companies licensed to 

    undertake securities brokerage,securities dealing and underwriting 

    of investment units) 

 (9)  SEC director of the department  Member and Secretary

        in charge of supervision of 

         securities and derivatives 

  businesses operators 

 

Appointed on March 7, 2014 to serve a term from April 1, 2014 to March 31, 2016.   

As of 31 December 2015
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2. Sub-committee on Consideration of Regulations on Issuance and Offering of Equity Instruments and 

Governance of Securities Issuing Companies 

 (1)  To consider and give advice on: 

  (a)  Issuance of regulations on issuance and offering of equity instruments;

  (b)  Issuance of regulations on governance of securities issuing companies under Division 3/1 of the Securities and  

   Exchange Act B.E. 2535;

  (c) Issuance of other regulations attached and related to (a) or (b);

 (2)  To perform other duties as assigned by the Capital Market Supervisory Board.

 Comprises:

 (1) Mr. Pratib Yongvanich Chairman

 (2)    Representative from the Stock Exchange of Thailand  Member

 (3)    Representative from the Association of Thai Securities Companies Member

          (Investment Banking Club)

 (4)    Representative from the Thai Listed Companies Association Member

 (5) Representative from the Thai Investors Association Member

 (6)   Representative from the Investment Analysts Association Member

  (7)    Ms. Patraporn Milindasuta Member

  (8)    Mr. Suchat Boonbanjerdsri Member

 (9) Ms. Pantip Suratin Member

     (10) SEC director of the department  Member and Secretary

               in charge of the supervision of equity,                                        

   hybrid instruments, and warrants, 

   or SEC director of the department 

   in charge of governance of securities 

   issuing companies, as the case maybe 

Appointed on March 7, 2014 to serve a term from April 1, 2014 to March 31, 2016.   

As of 31 December 2015
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3.   Sub-committee on Consideration of Regulations on Issuance and Offering of Debt Securities and Sukuk 

 (1) To consider and give advice on issuance of regulations governing issuance and offering of debt securities, sukuk, and 

other related regulations; 

 (2)  To perform other duties as assigned by the Capital Market Supervisory Board.

 Comprises:

 (1)   Mr. Pratib Yongvanich (since April 1-May 15,2014)                                 Chairman

         Ms. Pornanong Budsaratragoon (since May 16, 2014)

 (2)   Representative from the Thai Listed Companies Association  Member

 (3)  Representative from the Thai Bond Market Association Member

 (4)   Representative from the Thai Investors Association Member

 (5)   Mr. Arsa Indaravijaya Member

 (6)   Ms. Ada Ingawanij Member

 (7)   Mr. Konthee Prasertwongse Member

 (8)   Mr. Sakares Khamwalee Member

 (9)   SEC director of the department Member and Secretary

  in charge of the supervision of 

  debt securities and sukuk

  (7) – (8) involved in case of regulations related to sukuk only.  

Appointed on March 7, 2014 to serve a term from April 1, 2014 to March 31, 2016.    

4.  Sub-committee on Consideration of Regulations on Issuance and Offering of Derivatives or  

Derivatives-Embedded Instruments or Structured Products

 (1) To consider and give advice on issuance of regulations on issuance and offering of derivatives or derivatives-embedded 

instruments, and other related regulations;

 (2) To perform other duties as assigned by the Capital Market Supervisory Board.

 Comprises:

 (1)   Mr. Pratib Yongvanich (since April 1-May15, 2014)                                  Chairman

         Ms. Pornanong  Budsaratragoon (since May 16, 2014) 

 (2)   Representative from the Thai Listed Companies Association Member

 (3)   Representative from the Thai Investors Association Member

 (4)   Representative from the Association of Thai Securities Companies Member

         (Investment Banking Club)

As of 31 December 2015
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 (5)   Representative from the Thai Bond Market Association Member

     (in case of derivatives-embedded instruments 

               or structured products only)

 (6)   Representative from the Stock Exchange of Thailand Member

         (in case of instruments that may be listed on the SET only)

 (7)   Mr. Arsa Indaravijaya Member

 (8)   Mr. Bhudinan Sethanandha Member

 (9)   Mr. Yingyong Nilasena Member

 (10)   SEC director of the department  Member and Secretary

  in charge of the supervision of 

  derivatives, derivatives-embedded 

  instruments or structured products

Appointed on March 7, 2014 to serve a term from April 1, 2014 to March 31, 2016.   

5.  Sub-committee on Consideration of Regulations on Asset Management 

 (1)  To consider and give advice on: 

  (a)  Issuance of regulations on the establishment and management of mutual funds  excluding property funds and 

infrastructure funds; 

  (b)  Issuance of regulations on the establishment and management of private funds including provident funds, venture 

capital management, and derivatives fund management;

  (c)  Issuance of other regulations attached and related to (a) or (b);

 (2)  To perform other duties as assigned by the Capital Market Supervisory Board.

 Comprises:

 (1)   Mr. Kampanart Lohacharoenvanich (since April 1- May 15, 2014)       Chairman

         Ms. Suchada Pavananunt (since May 16, 2014) 

 (2)   Representative from the Association of Investment  Member

         Management Companies 

 (3)   Representative from the Thai Investors Association Member

 (4)   Representative from the Custodian Club selected from Member 

  mutual fund supervisors

 (5)   Representative from the Association of Provident Funds  Member

         (in case of related matters) 

 (6)   Ms. Pornanong  Budsaratragoon Member
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 (7)   SEC director of the department Member and Secretary

         in charge of the establishment of 

         mutual funds and the supervision of 

         mutual fund management and 

         private fund management

      

 Appointed on March 7, 2014 to serve a term from April 1, 2014 to March 31, 2016. 

6.   Sub-committee on Consideration of Regulations on Property Funds, Infrastructure Funds and Real 

Estate Investment Trusts  

 (1)  To consider and give advice on: 

  (a)  Issuance of regulations on the establishment and management of property  funds and infrastructure funds; 

  (b)  Issuance of regulations on real estate investment trusts;

  (c) Issuance of other regulations attached and related to (a) or (b);

 (2)  To perform other duties as assigned by the Capital Market Supervisory Board.

 Comprises:

 (1)    Mr. Pratib Yongvanich (since April 1-May 15, 2014)                                Chairman

          Ms. Pornanong  Budsaratragoon (since May 16, 2014) 

 (2)    Representative from the Stock Exchange of Thailand  Member 

 (3) Representative from the Association of Securities Companies               Member

          (Investment Banking Club)

 (4)    Representative from the Association of Investment Member 

  Management Companies

 (5)    Representative from the Thai Investors Association  Member

 (6)    Representative from the Thai Real Estate Association Member 

 (7)    Representative from the Custodian Club Member 

          selected from mutual fund supervisors 

 (8)  Representative from the State Enterprise Policy Office Member 

          (in case of infrastructure funds only)

 (9)    Mr. Pairat  Monthapan Member 

 (10)  Mr. Simon  Landy Member 
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 (11)  SEC director of the department  Member and Secretary

  in charge of the supervision of 

    financial instruments to invest in 

    property funds, infrastructure funds 

    and real estate investment trusts  

Appointed on March 7, 2014 to serve a term from April 1, 2014 to March 31, 2016. 

7.   Sub-committee on Consideration of Regulations on Business Takeovers

 (1) To consider and give advice on the issuance of regulations on business takeovers; 

 (2) To perform other duties as assigned by the Capital Market Supervisory Board.

 Comprises:

 (1)   Mr. Pratib Yongvanich Chairman

 (2)   Representative from the Stock Exchange of Thailand Member

 (3)   Representative from the Association of Securities Companies          Member

         (Investment Banking Club)

 (4)   Representative from the Association of Investment Member

  Management Companies

 (5)   Mr. Patraporn Milindasuta Member

 (6)   Mr. Suparerk Auychai Member

 (7)   SEC director of the department Member and Secretary

               in charge of business takeovers    

Appointed on March 7, 2014 to serve a term from April 1, 2014 to March 31, 2016. 

8.   Sub-committee on Business Takeovers (Takeovers Panel)

 (1) To make decisions on waiver of tender offers for business takeovers, rules on application for tender offers or any other 

decisions under the regulations on acquisition of securities for business takeovers;

 (2) To make decisions regarding any action or omission of action that may have an impact on tender offers under the 

regulations issued by virtue of Section 250/1 of the SEA;

 (3) To comment or give advice to the Capital Market Supervisory Board and the SEC Office on matters related to  

acting in concert under Section 246 or 247 and any other matter concerning takeovers;
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 (4) To request any person to provide facts, explanation, advice and opinion or documents in support of takeovers  

consideration, as deemed necessary. 

 Consisting of five members whom the Secretary-General selected from the Capital Market Supervisory Board- approved 

List to perform duties on consideration of any matter. The selection focuses on relevant knowledge, expertise and experience 

of members constituting a quorum. The selection criteria are as follows:

 

 (1) One person from category 1 Chairman

 (2) Three persons from category 2 and/or category 3 Member

 (3) One person from category 4                                           Member and Secretary

  Comprises:

 Category 1:  Chairman 

 (1)  Khunying Jada Wattanasiritham

 (2)  Prof.Emeritus Khunying Suchada Kiranandana

 (3)  Ms. Pattareeya Benjapolchai

 Category 2:  Financial Experts as Member

  (1)  Mr. Chavalit  Chindavanig

 (2)  Mr. Paiboon  Nalinthrangkurn

  (3)  Mr. Varah Sucharitakul

 (4)  Prof. Pornchai Chunhajinda, PhD

  (5)  Assoc. Prof. Kamphol Panyagometh, PhD

 Category 3:  Legal Experts as Member

 (1)  Ms. Kulkanist  Khamsirivatchara

 (2)  Mr. Charin  Satchayan

 (3)  Ms. Pornpinant Asawawattanaporn

 (4)  Ms. Manida  Zinmerman

 Category 4:  SEC Representatives as Member and Secretary

 (1)  SEC director of the department in charge of the supervision of business takeovers

 (2)  SEC director of the department in charge of the development of regulations 

Appointed on February 18, 2015 to serve a term from February 19, 2015 to February 18, 2017.
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9.  Legal Sub-committee (Consulting) 

 To consider and give opinions to the SEC Board and the SEC Office on matters as assigned by the SEC Board or as  

requested by the SEC Office, as follows:

 (1) Legal issues under the SEA, the Derivatives Act and other laws;

 (2) To examine and give opinions on the draft regulations of the SEC Board;

 (3) To comment and give recommendation on special assignments.

  

 Comprises:

 (1) Mr. Sarawut Benjakul  Chairman

 (2) Mr. Disatat Hotrakit Member

  Secretary-General, Office of the Council of State             

 (3) Mr. Krisada Chinavicharana Member

  Director-General, Fiscal Policy Office

 (4) Mr. Satorn Topothai                                Member

  Assistant Governor, Bank of Thailand

 (5) Assistant Secretary-General relevant to legislation Member           

  The Securities and Exchange Commission

 The SEC shall appoint an officer to serve as secretary of the sub-committee and not more than two officers to serve as 

assistant secretary. 

Appointed on December 11, 2015 to serve a term from December 1, 2015 to November 30, 2017.

10. Legal Sub-committee (Litigation) 

 To consider and give opinions to the SEC Board and the SEC Office on matters as assigned by the SEC Board or as  

requested by the SEC Office, as follows:

 (1) Criminal proceedings against offenders under the SEA, the Derivatives Act, and other laws as well as acquisition for 

compensation or other benefits under a civil case related to a criminal case, and giving of advice and assistance in relation to 

examination and sufficiency of evidence, conditions and elements of offense, including legal proceedings against the offenders;  

 (2) Seizure or attachment of assets of persons whose actions appear to be evidence of wrongdoing under the SEA and 

the Derivatives Act;

 (3) Requisition of criminal court order to prohibit the persons under (2) from leaving the Kingdom and ordering of temporary 

prohibition of such act before the criminal court issues an order. 
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 Comprises:

 (1) Mr. Sarawut Benjakul  Chairman

 (2) Director-General or Deputy Director-Gerneral                                        Member   

  of Department of Special Investigation as assigned            

 (3) Director-General or Deputy Director-Gerneral Member           

  of Department of Special Litigation as assigned

 (4) Pol. Gen. Sutep  Dechrugsa  Member                        

  (Advisor (Level 10)), the Royal Thai Police

 (5) Mr. Chaiyos Panchabutchai Member

  Senior Expert Public Prosecutor

  Executive Director’s office of Thailand Criminal Law institute

 (6) Mr. Satorn Topothai                                Member

  Assistant Governor, Bank of Thailand

 (7) Assistant Secretary-General relevant to law enforcement Member       

  The Securities and Exchange Commission

 The SEC shall appoint an officer to serve as secretary of the sub-committee and not more than two officers to serve as 

assistant secretary. 

Appointed on December 11, 2015 to serve a term from December 1, 2015 to November 30, 2017.

11.  Appellate Sub-committee

 (1) To make a conclusion on facts and legal issues and propose opinions on appeal cases against the SEC Office’s 

administrative orders to the SEC Board;

 (2) To perform others duties as assigned by the SEC Board.

  Comprises:

 (1)   Mr. Somchai  Kuvijitsuwan Chairman

 (2)   Mr. Nontaphon  Nimsomboon Member

 (3)   Mr. Vichate Tantiwanich Member

 Director of the SEC Administrative Appeals Center  shall serve as secretary of the sub-committee. 

Appointed on April  23, 2015 to serve a term from May 12, 2015 to October  7, 2016.
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 The arbitrators have the power to settle disputes between aggrieved clients and operators of securities business or 

derivatives business or related businesses for breach of contract or non-compliance with the securities law, derivatives law or 

provident fund law.

 They are:

   (1) Assoc. Prof. Kulpatra Sirodom, PhD  

  (2) Assoc. Prof. Gasinee Witoonchart

  (3) Assoc. Prof. Paiboon Sareewiwatthana, PhD

  (4) Mr. Thinawat  Bukhamana

  (5) Mr. Tawat Ananthothai

  (6) Asst. Prof. Tithiphan Chuerboonchai

  (7) Mr. Patchara Surajaras, PhD

  (8) Asst. Prof. Patcharavalai Jayapani, PhD

  (9) Mr. Punlop Pisitsungkakarn

  (10) Prof. Phijaisakdi Horayangkura 

 (11)  Ms. Pattera Dilokrungthirapop

  (12) Prof. Warapatr Todhanakasem, PhD

  (13) Assoc. Prof. Wai  Chamornmarn

  (14) Mr. Somjin Sornpaisarn, PhD 

  (15) Assoc. Prof. Somjai Phagaphasvivat, PhD

  (16) Mr. Suparb Vongkiatkachorn 

  (17) Assoc. Prof. Anan Chantara-Opakorn, PhD

 

Appointed on November 30, 2015 to serve a term until November 29, 2017.

LIST OF ARBITRATORS 

As of 31 December 2015
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